
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND 

ENTERPRISE SPC 
 

TO BE HELD IN THE ZOOM PLATFORM(REMOTE) 
 

ON TUESDAY 14 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 3.30 PM 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

TUESDAY 14 SEPTEMBER 2021
  PAGE 
 

1   Minutes of Meeting 20th April 2021   
 

3 - 10 

2   Matters Arising   
 

 

3   Motion of Notice   
 

 

a   Dublin City to host the Local Division of the Unified Patent Court in Dublin-
Aidan Sweeney, EDE SPC Sectoral Member (Business Representative) 
 

11 - 14 

b   Creation of a stakeholder forum to resolve the privatisation threat to the 
Local Employment Services & Job Clubs within our four Dublin Local 
Development Companies.Cllr Sophie Nicoullaud, Dublin City Council 
 

15 - 18 

4   Presentation: Local Enterprise Development Plan 2021 - 2024,  Greg Swift, Head 
of Enterprise & Economic Development   
 

19 - 88 

5   Progress Report: European Programme Support Office, Anthony Flynn, Executive 
Manager, CRES   
 

89 - 112 

6   Policy: Dublin City - Vision for Dublin, Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of 
Enterprise & Economic Development   

113 - 
116 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be f ilmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s w ebsite. At the start of the meeting the Chair w ill confirm 

if  all or part of the meeting is being f ilmed. 
 
You should be aw are that the Council is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014, the Data Protection Act 1988 and 2018, 
General Data Protection Regulations (EU) 2016/679 and the Defamation Act 2009. Data collected during this w ebcast w ill be retained 

in accordance with the legislation. 
 
Therefore, by entering the Council Chamber/Meeting Room and using the seats around the meeting tables, public gallery etc., you are 

consenting to being f ilmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting. 
 
If  you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Chief Executives Department on Extn. 2101 or DD (01) 222 2100. 

 



 

 
7   Economic Development & Enterprise Management Reports   

 

117 - 
148 

8   Any Other Business 
 

Next SPC Meeting: 9th November 2021 (3.30pm – 5.30pm)  

Council Chamber, City Hall (In line with government guidelines operating at this 
time) 

 

 

 



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  1  
 

 

 

 

Members Present: 

Cllr. Claire O’Connor (Chair), Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Rachael Batten, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Danny Byrne, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Niall Ring, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Donna Cooney, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Mary Freehill, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Michael MacDonncha, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Cat O’Driscoll, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Terence Flanagan, Dublin City Council 

Cllr. Tara Deacy, Dublin City Council 

Aidan Sweeney, IBEC; Sectoral Member (Business Rep) 

Odran Reid, Northside Homecare Service; Sectoral Member (PPN Rep) 

Evanne Kilmurray, Inner City Enterprise (ICE), Sectoral Member (PPN Rep) 

Dr Sarah Ingle, Assoc. of Consulting Engineers in Ireland (ACEI), Sectoral Member (Development Rep) 

 

Apologies: 

Greg Swift, Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 

Natalie McGuinness, Dublin Chamber of Commerce; Sectoral Member (Business Rep) 

 

Officials Present: 

Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief Executive  

Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager  

Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 

Ciara O hAodha, Senior Economic Development Officer 

Grainne Kelly, Head of International Relations  

 

External Presenters: 

Barry Rogers, Smart Tourism Programme Manager, Smart Dublin  

 

 

 

 

 

Strategic Policy Committee 

Economic Development & Enterprise  
Minutes of Meeting  

20th April 2021 (3.30pm – 5.30pm) 

Delivered Remotely via Zoom 

Page 3



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  2  
 

The Chair opened the meeting and advised the Members of the procedure and protocol of remote meetings and asked 

Members to note that the meeting would be recorded and live streamed on Public I, now that we have moved to the Zoom 

platform.  Cllr. MacDonncha agreed to act as Deputy Chair, as a contingency plan if any technical problems arose.  

 

1. Minutes 

Minutes of the previous meeting, which took place on 12th January 2021, were agreed by Evanne Kilmurray and 

seconded by Cllr. Deacy.  

 

In relation to the point raised by Cllr. MacDonncha and Cllr. Deacy regarding the public consultation and Development 

Plan, the Chair advised that she had actioned that item and confirmed contacting the relevant Section.  

 

2. Matters Arising 

None.  

 

Due to technical issues encountered by presenters, the items on the agenda were not presented in sequence.  

 

3. Presentation - Dublin City Council Submission to National Recovery Resilience Plan 2021 – 2023  

Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager, CRES Department 

Copy of presentation was provided in advance of the meeting in the Mod Gov pack . 

 

Anthony Flynn opened by informing Members that The National Recovery and Resilience Plan originates from the EU’s 

Recovery & Resilience Facility (RRF). The RRF will make €672.5bn in loans and grants available to support reforms and 

investments undertaken by Member States. Ireland is expected to receive €853m in grants under the RRF in 2021 and 

2022 with further grants allocated in 2023. In order to access funding, Ireland must develop a National Recovery Resilience 

Plan (NRRP) for approval by the EU. The Department of An Taoiseach launched the public consultation process on the 

2nd February 2021 and the deadline for receipt of submissions was the 22nd February 2021, so turnaround was very tight. 

A submission was made by DCC by the deadline. Dublin City Council’s submission to the National Recovery and Resilience 

Plan identifies challenges and opportunities to reimagine Dublin City and sets out how the City can be regenerated through 

investment, city greening and improved connectivity. Proposals in DCC’s submission cover areas of energy efficiency, 

digital transformation, greening and biodiversity, flood defences and resilience, public realm and wellbeing with proposed 

projects across a number of Departments of the Council. The final submission contained 7 sections within a 37 page 

document highlighting 6 proposal areas (Energy Efficiency, Digital Transformation, Greening & Biodiversity, Flood 

Defences & Resilience, Public Realm and Wellbeing) including 13 potential projects to the value of €464.2M. The Council 

has written to the Dept of an Taoiseach and DPER in advance of 30th April deadline to seek a meeting to further discuss 

the Council’s submission in advance  of the National deadline of submission to the EU Commission by 30th April. 

 

 

 

Page 4



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  3  
 

Headings presented and elaborated on included: 

 DCC Submission to NRRP – Development  

 DCC Submission to NRRP – Context 

 DCC Submission to NRRP – 35 Proposals Across the Organisation 

 DCC Submission to NRRP – Evaluation Process: Prioritisation of Projects  

 DCC Submission to NRRP – Evaluation Process: Project Matrix 

 DCC Submission to NRRP – Final Submission Content  

o 7 sections  

o 37 page document 

o 13 potential projects to value of €464.2m  

 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter, commended the volume of work that had to be done in order to make submission by the 

deadline, and opened the floor for discussion. Cllr. MacDonncha thanked the Presenter and asked for clarification on 

€464.2m grants figure, timelines and availability of additional funding. Cllr. Deacy thanked the Presenter and asked if there 

would be/and had been consultation and conversation at local level with Local Area Managers / Local Area representatives. 

Cllr. Freehill put questions to the presenter on the establishment of the EU Programmes Office, who will man it, and when 

will it be established, who is dealing with BIDS and preparatory work in the interim period , and the issue of potential 

partnerships with Belfast was also raised, she also queried the Urbact & Interreg Fundi ng Programmes. Cllr. Ring 

commented on the lack of time given to draft the submission, saying it was a disgrace and commended DCC on preparing 

and submitting the submission in such a short timeframe.  He questioned if the €464.2m were all grant based or if any of 

it is loan based and questioned if all of what DCC have proposed in their submission will be included in the Ireland’s NRRP 

for approval by the EU.  The issue of the government providing grants to the City Centre Recovery Task  Force was also 

discussed. Evanne Kilmurray commended the work carried out by DCC and asked if there were synergies with other SPC’s 

in drafting DCC’s submission to the NRRP.  The question of the status of 5G connectivity was also raised. Cllr. Cooney 

commended DCC and commented on the diversity of projects in the submissions and asked when we will know the 

outcome of DCC’s submission. Odran Reid put the question of how quickly can these projects commence if funding is 

made available. Aidan Sweeney commended DCC and commented on the slowness of Ireland to submit and asked are 

the same projects included in the NDP as in DCC’s submission to the NRRP.   

 

Response:  

The presenter advised that the sum of funding of €464.2m was made up of 13 potential projects tha t had been prioritised 

from DCC’s Capital Programme and which fitted into the conditions of the Recovery & Resilience Programme.  This is 

upfront funding made available by the EU to kick start the economy and has to be advanced within the next 2 years. He 

advised that consultation had taken place with the Areas on priority projects and this can be an ongoing consultation 

process. The presenter confirmed that the organisation The Wheel has, since July 2020, been available to give support 

and advice to local government EU funding applications. The presenter advised that it was envisaged that the EU 

Programmes Office would be established by August/September 2021 and an operational steering committee were working 

 NRRP – 2021  Timeframe 

30/04/21 – submitted to EU Commission 

May-June 2021 – EU Commission 

assessment 

July 2021 – EU Council assessment 

August 2021 – Ireland’s NRRP published  

 

Page 5



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  4  
 

on its establishment. Regarding URBACT Funding Programme, the presenter advised that DCC were not eligible, as they 

availed of previously. The current call is for those who have not previously availed . He confirmed that other SPC’s were 

consulted regarding DCC’s submission to the NRRP and was unable to provide an update on 5G but advised that Smart 

Dublin would be able to and could provide further information on the matter. The presenter confirmed that DCC’s preference 

is that the €464.2m is by way of grants. He advised that DCC had been advised by the Dept of an Taoiseach that the 

National plan would be published on their website following engagement with the EU Commission, expected to be by 

August 2021, and that DCC had been prepping in the background for some time to make the submission by th e February 

deadline. He confirmed that some projects were the same that were included in the NDP and the NRRP submission and 

DCC are keen to keep Dublin and the City Centre as their primary focus for the next 2 to 3 years.  He confirmed that if 

funding is provided, the projects listed in DCC’s submission are ready to go and can be commenced quickly.  

 

4. Presentation – Local Enterprise Development Plan 2021 – 2024  

Greg Swift, Head of Enterprise & Economic Development   

Copy of presentation was provided in advance of the meeting in the Mod Gov pack  

Due to a family bereavement, Greg Swift was unable to attend the SPC Meeting and it was advised that he would present 

on this Item at a later SPC.  

 

5. Presentation – Smart Tourism  

Barry Rogers, Smart Tourism Programme Manager, Smart Dublin   

Copy of presentation was provided in advance of the meeting in the Mod Gov pack  

 

Barry Rogers presented to the Group on  

 Smart Tourism Programme  

 Smart Tourism Leaders  

 Governance and stakeholders 

 Definition of Smart Tourism 

 Best practice 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter and thanked him for presenting to the SPC and also into the Tourism, City Markets and 

Night Time Economy Working Group previously, and opened the floor for discussion. 

Cllr. Batten raised the question of vandalism of the kiosks. Evanne Kilmurray thanked the presenter and commented on 

how Dublinia were very happy to be a part of these digital / heritage trails, on how Malaga was an example of a very 

accessible city, and how Accenture are bridging digital divide and suggested that the Presenter should make contact with 

them. Cllr. O’Driscoll raised the question of the cultural aspects and how museums/institutions could be integrated into the 

mobile app for heritage trails. Cllr. MacDonncha commented on the work of the community and voluntary groups and could 

these groups become involved with the Digital Trails.  

Response:  

The presenter responded as follows. Anti-vandalism and anti-tampering of the kiosks have been taken into consideration 

and measures put in place to combat this. He agreed to contact Accenture.  Regarding the mobile app for heritage trails, 

 Infrastructure – Micro/Macro  

 Current work streams  

 Mobile App for Heritage Trail(s) Dublin   

 Digital Trails  

 Orientation  

 

Page 6



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  5  
 

data analysis is currently being carried out to work with Museums and Institutions. The presenter confirmed that the tender 

for Digital Trail would include community lead digital trail design and any contract awardee would need to engage with 

community groups as part of the remit of the tender. The presenter agreed to Cllr. MacDonncha advising any voluntary 

group to contact the presenter directly on the matter. The presenter posted his contact details in the chat function.  

 

6. Presentation - Reset Summit Outcomes Report  

Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic Development  

Copy of presentation was provided in advance of the meeting in the Mod Gov pack 

Mary MacSweeney presented to the group on  

 Outcomes reports of the Reset Summit held remotely on 26/11/20 

 25 speakers, 4 panel discussions, key note speaker, 300 attendees  

 Contextual speeches 

 Preparatory process 

 Key insights and observations  

 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter and opened the floor for discussion. 

 None  

 

7. SPC Working Group  

a) Tourism, City Markets including Night Time Economy – Completion Report  - Ciara O hAodha  

Copy of the completion report was provided in advance of the meeting in the Mod Gov pack 

Ciara O hAodha began by thanking the Chair and Members of this Working Group for their contribution and commitment 

during the term of the working group and presented the completion report of the Working Group including: 

 Establishment of Working Group  

 Duration and Reporting 

 Terms of Reference 

 Work Programme 

 

Comments, Feedback & Questions: 

Cllr. Cooney hoped that those proposals in the NT Economy Strategy Implementation which do not come under the remit 

of this SPC, will still be dealt with by another Department/Section/SPC  

 

b) International Relations and EU Affairs – Extension Report – Mary MacSweeney  

Copy of the extension request submitted by Cllr. Freehill and Aidan Sweeny were provided in advance of the meeting in 

the Mod Gov pack 

Mary MacSweeney gave verbal update on the extension request submitted by Cllr. Freehill and Aidan Sweeney. 

 

 Membership of Working Group  

 Meetings held to date 

 Progress on Work Programme  

 Proposals of Night Time Economy Strategy Implementation  

 

Page 7



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  6  
 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter and opened the floor for discussion. 

Richard Shakespeare advised that he was not in favour of an extension, reasons being were work pressures being put on 

an already overstretched staffing team. Over 370 working hours, in addition to normal working day, have been spent 

working on the work programme of the working group including preparatory work in organising and preparing for 7 meetings 

and 5 workshops and the development of the organisations EU Programme Participation Strategy in a 3 month timeframe.  

Staff are currently focusing on providing support to businesses significantly impacted by the global pandemic and economic 

crisis; through the restart grants, business continuity vouchers, trading on line vouchers  and the new Fáilte Ireland grants 

scheme.  In addition to this the main priorities are the City Recovery Strategy and the setting up of the EU Programmes 

Office.  Staffing resources are not in place to take on any further work.  

 

Objections were made by Cllr. Freehill to this and a robust conversation took place. In addition, Cllr. Freehill commented 

on DCC’s lost international contacts and connectivity and asked why there was no information on Dublin included in the 

Eurocities website.  Anthony Flynn responded by confirming that DCC have very close albeit virtual contacts with San Jose 

and Barcelona and the International Office is in existence and operating at full capacity on international matters. 

Confirmation was provided on the Eurocities website which is currently being developed and is in beta form. Eurocities 

requested DCC this week to provide content, which is currently being prepared, and will be submitted shortly to Eurocities 

for uploading on their website; which is going live in August. 

 

The following Councillors/Members were in support of the working group extension request: Cllr. MacDonncha; Cllr. 

Cooney; Cllr. Batten and Cllr. Deacy. Cllr. Ring was not in particular favour of the extension request; stressing that the 

economy recovery in the City is very important and suggested that when the new EU Programmes Office was 

established it could report to this SPC.  

 

Cllr. MacDonncha referred to the Dublin/Belfast Economic Corridor launch which took place in March 2021 and said it was 

a disgrace that there was no Councillor participation or any Councillor invited to speak at it.  The Chair agreed with this 

and asked for it to be recorded in the minutes and it was agreed by the Chair that an official complaint by the Councillors 

would be made to Owen Keegan, Chief Executive, DCC.  

 

After further robust discussions, the Chair stated that one clear framework and one clear objective were required, 

commenting on the completion of the strategy document and the focus to now be pursuing and implementing the strategy.  

The Chair proposed that this item become a Standing Item on this SPC agenda and would be supervised on an ongoing 

basis and put this forward as a solution.  Members were in agreement with ensuring work progressed on the recovery of 

the city post pandemic. The Chair moved forward on this basis.  

 

8. Economic Development and Enterprise Management Reports  

Copy of Management Reports were provided in ModGov pack for April SPC, circulated in advance of meeting 

The Chair advised Members to email DCC Officials directly with any comments on the management reports. 

Page 8



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC 20 April 2021  7  
 

9. Motion of Notice  

a. Urban Recovery, Regeneration and Revitalisation of Dublin City Strategy  

Copy of Aidan Sweeney’s motion together with Management’s Response Jan 2021 and Management’s subsequent 

update April 2021 were provided in the ModGov pack, circulated in advance of the meeting.  

 

Aidan Sweeney briefed the Members on his motion, and the Chair asked if he had any objections to Management’s 

response.  Aidan Sweeney did not but voiced concerns over what other cities recovery strategies are and the need for 

Dublin to analyse them also and capture relevant information.  

 

10. A.O.B.  

 

 

Next SPC Meeting:  14th September 2021 (3.30pm – 5.30pm)  

Council Chamber, City Hall (In line with government guidelines operating at this time)  

 

 

 

 

Action items for Progression: 

 

Agenda 

Item: 

Action: Responsibility: 

5 Circulate contact details of Barry Rogers, Smart Tourism Programme Manager, Smart 

Dublin to Members  

Ciara O hAodha 

6 Circulate Reset Summit Outcome Report to Members  Mary MacSweeney  

7b Official complaint to be made to Chief Executive, DCC, regarding lack of participation of 

Councillors in the Dublin/Belfast Economic Corridor launch which took place March 2021.  

Cllr. Claire O’Connor 

7b This Item to become a Standing Item on Economic Development and Enterprise SPC 

Agenda.  

Cllr. Claire O’Connor, 

Mary MacSweeney/Ciara 

O’hAodha 

 

Page 9





Agenda Item 3: Economic Development & Enterprise SPC 14th Sept 2021: 

 

Motion received from Aidan Sweeney, Sectoral member (Business Representative)  

on 27th August 2021 - Agenda item 3 

Motion for the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC 

 

Dublin City to host the Local Division of the Unified Patent Court in Dublin 

That Dublin City Council calls on the Government to step-up the preparations for hosting the 

Local Division of the Unified Patent Court in Dublin. Ireland stands to gain significantly through 

participation in this specialist court, through the timely hosting of a Local Division in Dublin. It 

will bring benefits to businesses in Dublin, create jobs and help win new investment. Other 

countries, however, are far more advanced in their preparations for the new IP system. There 

is an opportunity cost to Dublin of the country falling further behind in our preparations. 

 

That Dublin City Council further calls on the Government to launch a bid to host the part of the 

Central Division of the Unified Patent Court that was previously designated to be in London. 

This part of the Central Division is responsible for cases in the chemical, pharmaceutical and 

life sciences sectors. These are key areas for Ireland and would bring economic and 

employment benefits to Dublin. Dublin City Council would assist and support in the marketing 

and promotion of the city in a future bid.  

 
 

Aidan Sweeney 
Senior Executive: Government, Enterprise & Regulatory Affairs 

Ibec 

EDE Sectoral member (Business Representative)  

 
 

Page 11





Agenda Item 3a: Economic Development & Enterprise SPC 14th Sept 2021 

Report in Support of Motion for the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC  

Dublin City to host the Local Division of the Unified Patent Court in Dublin 

The new unified patent system (including the Unitary Patent and the Unified Patent Court) will create a simpler 
and more efficient mechanism for obtaining and enforcing patents in Europe. The Unified Patent Court (UPC) is 

to be established as a single court system for patent litigation and enforcement. Only EU Member States will be 

allowed to participate. 

Contracting member states were free to decide how they will participate in the new structure, including the option 
to host a specific part of the new court. On 13 November 2014, the Irish Government announced its decision that 

Ireland would establish a Local Division in Dublin. Progress had been stalled due to Brexit and delays in 

Germany, which have now been resolved, clearing the way for the Unified Patent Court to proceed across 

Europe. Government must ratify the Unified Patent Court Agreement (UPCA) allowing Ireland to participate in this 

new court structure without delay, which will require a referendum. 

Benefits of a Local Division in Dublin 

Ireland stands to gain significantly through participation in this specialist court, through the timely hosting of a 

Local Division in Dublin. The benefit of having a Local Division is likely to be more significant for a country like 

Ireland than for larger countries. Other countries, however, are far more advanced in their preparations for the 
new IP system. There is an opportunity cost to Ireland of falling even further behind other states in our 

preparations for it coming into force, as users of the system will decide on their “preferred” fora within the UPC 

system soon after its launch. If the Irish local division joins the system late, it will be difficult to draw litigation 

activity away from the UPC courts in other states up and running from the outset. Ibec will shortly publish a 

comprehensive report on the benefits for Ireland from active and timely participation in the UPC system.  

An Irish Local Division would provide specific comfort for enterprise, in particular indigenous SMEs who are 
increasing their rate of patenting but might not have been exposed to litigation in recent years. Companies finding 

it necessary to enforce their European patent rights will only have to litigate in one single location. This will 

provide better access to enforcement for companies that currently cannot afford to litigate in multiple jurisdictions.  

Irish companies not only have to continue to diversify their reach across the EU single market and further afield, 
but they have also to diversify their products and product ranges. These will have to be prote cted and would 

benefit from the existence of the unitary patent and the accompanying enforcement mechanism. 

Establishing a Local Division that is both well-run and attractive will be key to competing for patent litigation to be 
heard before the Dublin-based court. Brexit has also raised the profile of IP policy once more. An Irish Local 

Division, that is English-speaking and rooted in common law tradition, would be attractive to European patent 

litigation that would have occurred in the UK, as well as being attractive to non-EU FDI. It would bring substantial 

economic benefits, in line with the economic impact projected for Ireland from the EU-Canada Comprehensive 

Economic and Trade Agreement (CETA). 

Our key competitors for inward investment are far more advanced in their preparations for the new IP system, 
and as things are currently, others stand to enjoy the benefits that Ireland could (and should) be vying for. It is 

important that we conclude the ratification process without delay. Government must make an announcement on 

holding a referendum on the UPCA as a matter of urgency.  

A Dublin Local Division has the potential to complement and expand IP activities by Irish firms. It will build on our 
growing reputation for IP enforcement and position Ireland for global legal services.  Enhancing Ireland’s position 

as an IP hub would benefit SMEs, as well as securing further inward investment. 

Government should put forward Dublin to host part of the Central Division 

The Central Division of the Unified Patent Court is seated in Paris with sections in Munich and a further location 

to be determined. There was to be a section of the Central Division in London, but the UK’s withdrawal from the 
UPCA has resulted in the section requiring a new location. As a stop-gap solution, it will be temporarily housed 

Page 13



between Paris and Munich. The future location of the London section of the Central Division is undecided. A 

number of locations are expected to campaign for it.  

Government should also undertake analysis with a view to launching a bid to host the part of the Central Division 

that was previously designated to be in London. This part of the Central Division is responsible for cases in the 

chemical, pharmaceutical, medical device, and life sciences sectors. These are key areas for Ireland. Its future 
location has yet to be decided, and it will be a political decision. It is clear we can put forward a compelling case.  

The new system will not wait for us. There is now a short window for us to catch-up. A slow start to 

implementation will prove costly and prevent us from making the fullest use of the potential of the unified patent 

system. Government must take prompt action to ensure Ireland does not miss out. 

 

Page 14



Agenda Item 3: Economic Development & Enterprise SPC 14th Sept 2021: 

 

Motion received from Cllr Sophie Nicoullaud, Dublin City Council on 3rd September 2021 

(13.49) 

Deadline for receipt of Motions to SPC was 2nd Sept (COB).  

Whilst the motion was received outside of the motion deadline (received 03.Sept.21; deadline 
02.Sept.2021); in this instance, the chair has agreed to accept the motion as the Lord Mayor 
has referred this motion to the EDE SPC from the full council meeting.  

Motion for the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC – 14th  

Creation of a stakeholder forum based on the model of the Citizen’s Assembly to resolve the 

privatisation threat to the Local Employment Services & Jobs Clubs within our four Dublin 

Local Development Companies.  

The elected members of Dublin City Council call on the City Manager to engage with the 
government to support the creation of a stakeholder forum based on the model of the 
Citizen’s Assembly to resolve the privatisation threat to the Local Employment Services &  
Jobs Clubs within our four Dublin Local Development Companies.  That the City Manager 

engage with the Department of Social Protection to oppose the roll out of a publicly 
advertised tender on a cost bid model for 2022 of the Local Employment Services and Jobs 
Club Contracts and to support the Irish Local Development Network and their proposal for 
the rollout of a Local Development Company let employment services model as part of the 
response to the unemployment crisis arising from the Covid-19 pandemic 

  
Reason: 
 
The Department of Social Protection have advised that Local Employment Services and jobs 
club contracts for 2022 will be rolled into a publicly advertised tender on a cost bid model 
for 2022. 
 
Dublin City Council has four Local Development Companies providing Local Employment 

Services and Job Clubs: 
·        Dublin North West Area Partnership in Finglas, 

·        Dublin South City Partnership in Crumlin, 
·        Dublin City Community Co-op in the inner city and 

·        Ballyfermot Chapelizod Partnership CLG in Ballyfermot. 
  

This decision would have a devastating effect on already vulnerable communities.  The 
elected members, the ILDN including the four LDC, the Unions and members of the Civil 

Societies are opposed to this proposition as it is a fundamental change to a cost met model 

of contract, which is what currently exists. If this Department of Social Protection’s policy 
becomes operationalised, it will be a serious risk to all four Dublin and all nationwide LDC ‘s 
financial stability. 

Page 15



Ireland is in the midst of a Covid-related employment crisis with the future economic outlook 
remaining uncertain. The Department of Social Protection will need to provide community -
based employment services which provide certainty in service provision for all jobseekers, the 
capacity to cater for jobseekers in Dublin (and nationwide) and equity in access for jobseekers 
in all areas of the City (and across Ireland). 
  
The ILD Network of the 4 LDCs in Dublin propose an area-based Employment Service model 

that is embedded in their community. This fits perfectly with the 15 minutes city Dublin is 
working to achieve and leaving only 2 agencies for jobseekers to go would contravene the 

urban plan we are working on in this council. In addition to career guidance experti se there 
include key capacities in mental health and wellbeing supports, family supports, education 

and self-employment expertise and LDCs have a key strength in addressing inequalities. 
 

LDCs are currently closely engaged with jobseekers through the Social Inclusion Community 
Activation Programme, Jobs Clubs, BTWEA and Tus. They benefit from best practice sharing 

and networking to existing Local Employment Services operators through the ILDN network. 
Through their strong linkages with employers, training agencies, community groups and state 
agencies, as well as their local community base and not-for-profit nature, LDC also adhere to 
the Guiding Principles of the Labour Market Advisory Council’s Policy Paper ‘Preparing for 
Economic Recovery. 
  
What we need is a human and community  based approach to the job market. 
 
 
 

Page 16



Agenda Item 3ii: Economic Development & Enterprise SPC 14th Sept 2021: 

Report Motion received from Cllr Sophie Nicoullaud, Dublin City Council to support the 

motion under Agenda Item 3ii 

The Department of Social Protection have advised that Local Employment Services and jobs club 
contracts for 2022 will be rolled into a publicly advertised tender on a cost bid model for 2022.  

Dublin City Council has four Local Development Companies providing Local Employment Services and 
Job Clubs: 

 Dublin North West Area Partnership in Finglas,  

 Dublin South City Partnership in Crumlin,  

 Dublin City Community Co-op in the inner city and  

 Ballyfermot Chapelizod Partnership CLG in Ballyfermot.  

The LDCs is to provide quality guidance, employment, wellbeing and lifelong learning support services 

including self-employment to individuals who are seeking to enter or re-enter the labour market. They 

increase employment and life options for local people. They work collaboratively with community and 

statutory agencies to ensure that individuals who are distanced from opportunity due to 

marginalization are supported to reach their full potential.  

The ILD Network of the 4 LDCs in Dublin propose an area-based Employment Service model that is 

embedded in their community. The current system is a cost met model of contract. It offers 

community-based employment services which provide certainty in service provision for all jobseekers, 

the capacity to cater for jobseekers in Dublin and equity in access for jobseekers in all areas of the 

City. In addition to career guidance expertise the ILD include key capacities in mental health and 

wellbeing supports, family supports, education and self-employment expertise and LDCs have a key 

strength in addressing inequalities. At present the ILD offer a holistic solution to building career path 
which helps their customers to move forward in accessing job market and finding employment.  

LDCs are currently closely engaged with jobseekers through the Social Inclusion Community Activation 

Programme, Jobs Clubs, BTWEA and Tus. They benefit from best practice sharing and networking to 

existing Local Employment Services operators through the ILDN network.  

Through their strong linkages with employers, training agencies, community groups and state 

agencies, as well as their local community base and not-for-profit nature, LDC also adhere to the 

Guiding Principles of the Labour Market Advisory Council’s Policy Paper ‘Preparing for Economic 

Recovery. 

A stakeholders forum should be established to research, identify and create a model of 

employment services that is person and community focussed. It should be given a  budget  & 
secretariat and a year to  issue a its final report . 

It should be constituted from those who have significant expertise and knowledge of the 

needs of those most distant from the labour force: 

Agencies who represents those living in poverty 

 Vincent de Paul 

 TASC 

Page 17



Agencies who have unique insights into the needs of those groups considerably distant from 
economic opportunity  

 National Traveller and Roma organisations such as ITM 

 lone parents’ organisations,  

 women’s organisaiton like MWCI 

 INOU 

Service providers: 

 Local Development Companies 

 Intreo 

State: 

 Department of Social Protections 

 Labour Market Council 

 

Employer organisations: 

 IBEC  

 Small firms Association  

  

 Academia 

NUI Maynooth  

Other 3rd level institutes with experience in public employment services research 

 

Page 18



Local Enterprise Office Dublin City

Development Plan 2021-2024

Economic Development and Enterprise SPC 

14th September 2021

Greg Swift
Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 
LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

P
age 19



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

1 Context
• LEDP is for 2021-2024 a 4 year Plan.

• DRAFT approval from LEO Unit / Department of 
Trade Enterprise and Employment

• 2018 CSO GVA Dublin is a Services’ based economy 
c.82% 

• Manufacturing and Construction combined 
accounting for c.19% 

• Employed expected to have fallen by 32,000 with 
COVID

• Retail & Wholesale (+15% YoY) due to online activity. 

• Professional Services and ICT also saw the numbers 
of employees grow by 4% YoY in Q4 2020 

P
age 20



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

2 Vision/Mission & Objectives
LEO Vision: 

To develop and sustain a positive enterprise ecosystem 
throughout Dublin City that will in particular drive new 
added-value start-ups, the further growth of small and 
micro enterprises and enhance local economies. 

Mission Statement: 

We aim to promote entrepreneurship, foster 
sustainable business start-ups and develop existing 
micro and small businesses to drive job creation and to 
provide accessible high-quality supports for your 
Business ideas. 

P
age 21



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

2 Objectives
Entrepreneurs and Businesses are 
supported to: 
• Increase exports 
• Build resilience 
• Increase productivity 
• Prepare for the Low carbon economy 
• Embrace the Digital economy 
• Innovate 
• Be managed by ambitious & capable 

individuals 
• Fuel regional growth 

P
age 22



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

3 Strategic Priorities
The LEO Dublin City Business Advisors will use the LEO 
support services, Dublin City Enterprise ECO system to 
encourage and advise client companies to become:

• More Competitive, 

• Digitised, 

• Green and Sustainable, 

• Innovative, 

• Increased Exporting and Internationalisation, 

• Improve their Management Skills and Leadership 

• Engage in more Networking. 

A new Consultancy Panel of Experts in these areas is being 
formed. 

P
age 23



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

4 Actions & Activities
The following protocols govern dissemination of information, 
information signposting and inter-organisation referrals. Local 
Enterprise Office Dublin City will continue to implement these 
protocols on an on-going basis and review locally as required. 

• Department of Social Protection 

• Credit Review Office 

• Fáilte Ireland 

• Microfinance Ireland 

• Skillnets

• Education and Training Boards (ETBs) 

• Revenue 

• National Association of Community Enterprise Centres (NACEC) 

P
age 24



LocalEnterprise.ie
#MakingItHappen

6 Delivering the Strategy
• LEO Dublin City is funded annually by Government through Enterprise 

Ireland from the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment 
(DETE). 

• LEO Dublin City commits to the 2021-2024 Learning and Development 
plan for LEO staff for business development skillset to support our clients 
in the ever-changing business environment. 

• A collaborative approach between Enterprise Ireland and the LEO’s to 
address the strategic priorities across Entrepreneurship, Competitiveness 
and Digitalisation, Green/Sustainability, Exporting/Internationalisation 
and Innovation. 

• A Best Practice approach will be adopted to deliver programmes such as 
the Professional Business Advisor programme, Green for Micro, Finance, 
Social Media and other business pillar programmes accordingly. 

• Annual Metrics will be agreed an an annual basis during each of the 4 
years

P
age 25



Thank You
Q&A

Greg Swift: gregswift@leo.dublincity.ie

P
age 26



LOCAL ENTERPRISE OFFICE DUBLIN CITY
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2021-2024

Page 27



Chief Executive 
Dublin City Council

Owen Keegan

The Local Enterprise Office (LEO) Dublin City has thrived since 2014 due 
to the successful working relationship between Local Authorities, The 
Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment, Enterprise Ireland 
and the LEO Network. Continuing to nurture and develop this working 
relationship will be key to realising the potential of this strategy over the 
coming years.

Dublin City faces significant challenges resulting from the impact of the 
COVID 19 and Brexit economic shocks. This has been particularly felt by 
local businesses across Dublin City with some sectors including hospitality, 
tourism and non-essential retail being disproportionally affected. Remote 
working has become the norm for many employees and students, but 
brings with it changes to how businesses operate in the City and indeed 
how Dublin City Council delivers its services. In order to gain greater insights 
into how our economy has been impacted we publish a quarterly edition 
of the Dublin Economic Monitor www.dublineconomy.ie providing key 
economic data that supports better understanding and improved decision 
making. We continue to support and promote Dublin as a great location 
to live, work, study and invest.  The Dublin Place Branding team have run 
many successful campaigns supporting local businesses and attracting 
investment with relevant and updated content available through Dublin.ie 

With every crisis there is opportunity, this strategy will bring with it new 
ideas for Dublin City, with potential additional capacity for growth with a 
focus on placemaking designed to improve the attractiveness of our city 
for new and existing talent and investment.  The green agenda is growing 
and during this planning period we will support business who are adapting 
to a more sustainable way of working and doing business. We have a vision 
for a green and digital Dublin and the business community will play a key 
role in delivering this, with the support of the staff of LEO Dublin City and 
Dublin City Council.

A message From Owen Keegan - Chief Executive Dublin City Council

Page 28

http://www.dublineconomy.ie
http://Dublin.ie


15

17

20

21

21

21

22

22

23

24

24

25

26

26

27

28

32

32

32

32

32

32

32

33

33

33

34

35

35

36

38

41

15

14

7Enterprise Landscape

1.2 Review of 2017-2020

3.1 Strategic Priorities for LEO Dublin City 2021-2024

4.1 Protocols

4.2 Other Initiatives

3.2 Capacity and Capability Development

REDF Projects

Management Development Capability

Department of Social Protection

Credit Review Office

Fáilte Ireland

Microfinance Ireland

Skillnets

Education and Training Boards (ETBs)

Revenue

National Association of Community Enterprise Centres (NACEC)

3.3 National LEO Programmes

Entrepreneurship

Competitiveness and Digitalisation

Green/Sustainability

Innovation

Exporting/Internationalisation

Networks and Clustering

Business Information Advisory Services

Enterprise Support Services

Entrepreneurship Support Services

Local Economic Development Services

6Section 1 - Context

Section 2 - Vision/Mission and Overarching Objective

Section 3 - Strategic Priorities

Section 4 - Associated Actions and Activities

Section 5 - Risks and New Initiatives

Section 6 - Delivering the Strategy

Appendix 1: LEO Dublin City - Performance Metrics

Appendix 2: Case Studies

Appendix 3: Customer Charter

5Executive Summary
4

Foreword

content

Page 29



This Local Enterprise Development Plan is aimed at developing and sustaining a positive 
enterprise ecosystem in Dublin City that will in particular drive new added value start-ups, the 
further growth of small and micro enterprises and enhance the Dublin City economy.

In this plan the LEO Dublin City will be focusing on supporting those who wish to start a business, 
with its ‘First Stop Shop’ and provide the necessary advice and development programmes to do 
so. It has become apparent throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic that businesses will need to 
acquire new skills and adopt to new ways of working over the period of this plan and beyond. 
Within this plan there will be a strong focus on key areas that include Entrepreneurship, 
Competitiveness & Digitalisation, Green/Sustainability, Innovation, Exporting, networking and 
developing Management Capacity to assist the development of new and existing business to 
survive and to grow in an evolving work and economic environment.

The Enterprise Eco System is strong in Dublin City with a significant tech sector, professional 
services, education, food, creative industries, retail and tourism offerings. The Economic 
Development Office will identify the economic requirements of the City to ensure there is a 
proactive environment for business in the City. 

LEO Staff are a key part of delivering this plan and Dublin City Council are committed to 
ensuring that the LEO office has a staff that have the necessary skills and resources, are highly 
motivated, client focused and enjoy addressing and meeting the challenges that entrepreneurs 
and businesses face.

FOREWORD

Head of Enterprise and Economic 
Development

Dublin City Council

Greg Swift

4 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 30



Local Enterprise Office Dublin City (LEO), is an office of Dublin City Council and provides a “First 
Stop Shop” for anyone seeking information and support on planning, starting, sustaining or 
growing a business in Dublin.  LEO Dublin City is driving the development of local enterprise, 
putting micro and small business at the heart of job creation in the city. LEO Dublin City provide 
expert support to business start-ups and work to increase the job potential of new and existing 
micro and small businesses with information, advice, training, mentoring, networking, seminars, 
awards and financial support.

Since 2014, LEO Dublin City has continued to meet and exceed annual targets due to the 
capacity and tenacity of the team to achieve and provide the best possible support to Dublin 
City based Businesses. 

The LEO structure has been instrumental in supporting and guiding micro enterprises through 
the Covid-19 Pandemic. Products such as the Business Continuity Voucher and Trading Online 
Voucher introduced a whole new cohort of businesses to their Local Enterprise Office during 
2020. LEO Dublin City now seek to build on the momentum gained through the provision of 
effective supports and solutions and continue to make Dublin City an excellent choice to start 
and grow a business. 

Over the next four years, LEO Dublin City will strive to provide a first class support to the 
enterprise ecosystem in Dublin City. 

A key focus will be to maximise opportunities for job creation and retention, attained through: 

1. Creating and raising local enterprise awareness and developing an enterprise culture and 
community-based enterprise activity 

2. Providing a single/ first point of contact service to the business community – providing 
business advice, direction and signposting , business counselling and mentoring 

3. Providing support to private sector and community initiatives to secure the establishment 
and/or expansion of commercially viable micro-enterprise projects

4. Providing comprehensive pre- and post-start-up support to new and expanding micro 
enterprises

5. Influencing the allocation of  resources for micro-enterprise from EU, private and public 
funding sources

6. Promoting the general economic development of Dublin City 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

5Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 31



Dublin is the capital of Ireland and its largest city. At the time of the 2016 Census it had a 
population of approximately 1.35 million people representing 28% of the national population. 
Since then, the population has been growing at an estimated average annual rate of 1.5%1. It 
generates 40% 2  of the GDP of the State. It is predominately a services’ based economy with 
that sector accounting for c.81% of the total activity while Manufacturing and Construction 
combined accounting for c.19%2.

The Dublin City Council area is the most populous Dublin region with a population of 554,554 
at the time of the 2016 census. The population is both young and diverse with 35% of people 
between the ages of 15 and 34 years and 22% of the population born outside Ireland3 . It 
benefits from a highly educated workforce with 40% educated to third level or higher3. It is also 
a digitally connected city, where 95% of households have fixed broadband4 .

As the State’s capital, Dublin performs a significant economic, administrative and cultural 
role. It operates as a gateway to the European Union for many businesses - multi-national 
corporations as well as export-oriented local SMEs.

Despite the economic challenges of 2020 CRIF Vision Net reported that some 21,924 new 
companies were formed in Ireland. Dublin continues to be the most popular location for 
business formation accounting for 10,089 of new companies formed in 2020

At the end of 2020 the labour force in the Dublin region totalled c740,000 or 30% of the national 
total which is a marginal drop on the 750,000 seen pre-pandemic. In addition the overall 
numbers employed have fallen by 32,000 due to the pandemic the sectoral split is largely 
unchanged. In broad terms 88% of employees worked in Services with 7% in Industry and 5% 
in Construction. Only Admin, Construction and Hospitality have seen their proportion reduce. 
Retail & Wholesale has seen both its proportion of employment and the absolute numbers 
increase over the past year (+15% YoY) due to an increase in online activity.

The largest components of the Services Sector are the Public Sector (27%) (which includes health 
and education), Wholesale and Retail (14%), Information and Communications Technology 
(11%) and Professional Services (10%). Professional Services and ICT also saw the numbers of 
employees grow by 4% YoY in Q4 2020 with Public Service, specifically Health, the only other 
sector which saw employment grow.

  1 CSO – LFS estimates 2020
  2 CSO – GVA 2018
  3 CSO – Census 2016
  4 CSO – March 2020 Dublin Region
     CRIF Vision Net 

SECTION 1: CONTEXT

6 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 32



The pre-pandemic sectoral split is reflected in the 2018 enterprise profile of Dublin, which is the 
latest data available. This shows that almost a third of all enterprises nationally are located in 
the city, a proportion that rises to over a half when it comes to Information and Communications 
enterprises (ICT) and two thirds for Financial and Insurance Services. The largest sector as 
measured by enterprise numbers is Professional Services, followed by Retail, Construction and 
logistics.
91% of enterprises in Dublin have between 0 and 10 employees with construction, logistics, 
ICT, real estate, professional services and Arts, Entertainment & Recreation showing average 
numbers per enterprise in that range on an aggregate basis.

Supported by Enterprise Ireland and within the policy and funding responsibility of the 
Department of Business Enterprise and Innovation, LEO Dublin City will operate within the 
context of internal, national and regional enterprise policies and plans. While writing this plan, 
the following policy and plans were reviewed: 

The nine Regional Enterprise Plans are an integral part of Ireland’s enterprise policy, aimed at 
driving economic growth and sustaining better standards of living throughout Ireland.

The REPs provide perspective and ideas from the ‘bottom-up’. They are informed by an 
understanding of unique local challenges, strengths and assets and enable more effective 
translation of national policy into regional and local impact. Each Plan has been created by 
regional stakeholders who have collectively identified a number of Strategic Objectives for 
enterprise development for their region. LEO Dublin City and the Dublin City Council have 
engaged in the development of  the Dublin Regional Enterprise Plan and strive to shape and 
implement its recommendations.

The unemployment rate in Dublin at the end of 2020 was 6.2% versus 5.7% nationally, both up 
from 4.5% at the end of 2019. However, this does not take into account those on income support. 
On a national basis the total on the live register and receiving the pandemic unemployment 
payment is 27%5. 

 5 CSO – January 2021 live register figures
 6 CSO Business Demography 2018

Enterprise Landscape6

Implementing National Research and Policy at Local Level 

1. Regional Enterprise Plan

7Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 33



Informed by the Programme for Partnership Project Ireland recognises that economic and 
social progress go hand in hand and is supported by the National Planning Framework to 2040 
and the National Development Plan 2018-2027. 

One of the ten strategic outcomes outlined in the plan that is of particular relevance to LEO 
Dublin City is:  A strong Economy, supported by enterprise, innovation and skills.

The NDP sets out the investment priorities that will underpin the successful implementation of 
the National Planning Framework.

Within the plan, LEO Dublin City will strive to achieve National Objective 5 – A Strong Economy 
supported by Enterprise, Innovation and Skills it states that this element of the Plan will be 
achieved by:

• Supporting entrepreneurialism and building competitive clusters in strategic sectors and 
activities;

• Through collaborative actions at regional and local level
• By realising a significant uplift in the performance of enterprises in terms of innovation, 

export potential and productivity; and
• By attracting further investment to the regions

Enterprise 2025 Renewed, is Ireland’s national enterprise strategy with the stated vision to 
make Ireland “The best place to succeed in business”. It aims to embed resilience in Irish 
Enterprises and contribute to strong economic performance over a longer term through a 
number of priorities. 

These include:

• An increased emphasis on developing Irish owned enterprises – enhancing productivity 
and delivering quality jobs – and helping companies to navigate Brexit;

• Building on our existing strengths 
and seeking out new opportunities 
through collaboration and clustering 
within our distinctive foreign and 
Irish owned enterprise mix;

• Placing a spotlight on innovation 
(including disruptive technologies) 
and talent development, so that 
more enterprises are developing new 
products, services and solutions, and 
are more competitive internationally;

• Realising the full potential of our 
regions – developing places that are 
attractive for business investment 
and for people to live and work; and

• Raising Ireland’s visibility 
internationally, protecting 
Ireland’s reputation, and providing 
opportunities for our enterprises 
supported by the Global Footprint

2. Project Ireland 2040:

3. National Development Plan 2018-2027:

4. Enterprise 2025 Renewed:

8 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 34



At  the national level, the Future Jobs Ireland 2019 initiative will, as part of a multiannual 
framework, give effect to national enterprise policy objectives and leverage a ‘whole of 
Government’ approach so that all policy levers at the national level, relevant to job creation 
and labour force participation, talent development, enterprise growth, innovation and 
competitiveness, and transition to a low carbon economy, are engaged on an agenda that will 
prepare for Ireland’s future enterprise and economic needs.

A key challenge for the Local Enterprise Offices arising from this policy document is how they 
will address within their client base the issue of improving their productivity. This challenge 
calls for greater diversity in our enterprise base, the promotion of enterprise productivity, the 
enhancemen  of the framework conditions for firm creation and growth, an improvement 
in leadership and managements skills in SMEs and for the need to encourage SMEs to use 
technology and business process improvement to increase productivity. LEO Dublin City 
continue to develop training and investment solutions to address such challenges. 

The Report of the SME Taskforce: National SME and Entrepreneurship Growth Plan suggests 
clear deliverables to be implemented in the short, medium and long term, these include: 

• Internationalisation
• Productivity, Digitalisation and Competitiveness
• Networks and Clustering 
• Entrepreneurship

This strategy has been developed in line with the outputs of the SME taskforce. To achieve the 
objectives of the task force, a well-resourced and effective network of support agencies will be 
critical in reinforcing the role of SMEs as the backbone of the Irish economy, in every city, town 
and village across the country.
  
LEO Dublin City look forward to the establishment of the SME and Entrepreneurship 
Implementation Group to take the vision of this Growth Plan forward and form strong 
government policy in the area of Entrepreneurship. 

The key findings of the OECD National Report on Entrepreneurship also point towards the 
requirement for more robust policy and greater entrepreneurship supports. LEO Dublin City 
identified the following findings as a key resource to guide this strategy:  

• While attitudes to entrepreneurship are positive, business dynamism and the start-up 
rate are relatively low, Irish SMEs are not very active in international markets, and SME 
productivity growth is stagnant. There are also weaknesses in SME management skills, 
capital investment levels and technology adoption

• Ireland offers a favourable regulatory environment, low taxation, extensive R&D support 
and good physical infrastructure. However, access to finance remains problematic and 
incentives could be strengthened for investment in SMEs and entrepreneurship

• Ireland has a comprehensive and solid set of support programmes for SMEs and 
entrepreneurship. However, there is a danger of some traditional SMEs falling between 
the support offers of the Local Enterprise Offices (LEOs), which mainly focus on smaller 
enterprises, and Enterprise Ireland, which primarily targets firms demonstrating export 
potential. The remit of the LEOs could be expanded to address this concern, with 
corresponding resources.

5. Future Jobs Ireland: Preparing now for Tomorrow’s Economy:

6. The OECD Roadmap:

9Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 35



• There are large spatial variations in conditions for SME and entrepreneurship activity within 
Ireland. The LEOs play an important function in providing tailored support for SMEs and 
entrepreneurship in their areas in collaboration with other bodies working locally and 
regionally. However there is potential to enhance local level policies to build local networks 
of enterprises working on common skills and innovation projects, particularly in local 
industry clusters

• Ireland has many SMEs with low productivity compared to the frontier firms in their industry. 
A range of policy initiatives need to be applied to address this multifaceted issue. They 
include increasing take up by SMEs of Skillnet Ireland management training programmes, 
expanding vouchers for digitalisation processes in SMEs, integrating international standards 
adhesion in SME development programmes, and increasing SMEs take up of R&D incentives

• While there is a reasonable supply of business development services in Ireland, in particular 
through the LEO network and Enterprise Ireland, and while SMEs and entrepreneurs have 
good access to mentoring opportunities, there remains scope for improvement. A business 
diagnostic tool could be used more widely as an entry point to business development 
services, management training programmes and financial support for consultancy 
expanded, training and guidelines for external mentors improved and potential gaps in the 
provision of services assessed.

(Adopted from; OECD Report on SME and Entrepreneurship Policy in Ireland, 2019.)

Dublin City faces significant challenges resulting from the impact of the COVID-19 and Brexit 
economic shocks. An additional 32,000 unemployed in the Dublin Region during the COVID 
crisis particularly felt by local businesses with some sectors including hospitality, tourism and 
non-essential retail being disproportionally affected.  With 88% of employment working in 
the service sectors and remote working has become the norm for many employees. This new 
remote way of working brings with it challenges and changes to how businesses will operate in 
the City. It has become apparent throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic that businesses will need 
to acquire new skills and adopt to new ways of working over the period of this plan and beyond. 
With Brexit some businesses are facing difficulties with their supply chains so there will be an 
adjusting period while new norms of trading are being established.

With 91% of all enterprises employing less than 10 people in the Dublin Region, the role of the 
Local Enterprise Dublin City and its services to businesses will be critical over the coming years 
to address the fallout from the crisis.  

With every crisis there is opportunity, for example Retail and Wholesale business have increased 
by 15% YOY with the increase in online activity and professional services and ICT are seeing an 
increase of 4%. This Local Enterprise Development Plan will bring with it new opportunities for 
Dublin City with potential additional capacity available for business to expand, grow and the 
opportunity for businesses to concentrate on attracting and retaining top talent and investment 
into the City.  The green agenda is growing part of the response and during this planning period 
LEO Dublin City will support business who are adapting to a more sustainable way of working 
and doing business.  

LEO Dublin City and the wider Economic Development unit will monitor the trends over the next 
12 months and beyond to measure the true impact of the pandemic as government payment 
supports begin to be phased out. Only then will the true impact of the pandemic begin to 
emerge, with businesses in specific sectors such as hospitality and tourism having little or no 
cash flow over the previous 12-18 months. 

Dublin City Council publish a quarterly edition of the Dublin Economic Monitor www.
dublineconomy.ie providing key economic data to that supports better understanding and 
improved decision making on the effects of COVID and Brexit. 
 

The impact of Brexit and the Covid crisis on businesses, 
LEO clients, and the local economy of Dublin City:

Page 36

http://www.dublineconomy.ie
http://www.dublineconomy.ie


11Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 37



As part of the plan preparation a detailed SWOT analysis was carried out internally by LEO 
Dublin City. This brought the entire team together to look holistically at LEO Dublin City and 
consider where strengths exist but also what weaknesses are present in LEO. This exercise 
has aided LEO Dublin City to produce a strong SWOT analysis that prepares the team to look 
forward to the next four years with a strong sense of, unity purpose and direction. 

The Economic Development Unit (EDU) is responsible for the promotion of Economic 
Development in the Dublin City Council administrative area. The remit of the EDU derives from 
the introduction of the Local Economic & Community Development Plan (LECP) as part of the 
Local Government Reform Act 2014. 

The Economic Development Unit is the sister office and closely aligned to the operation and the 
activities of the Local Enterprise Office Dublin City

The vision above sets out the overarching objective, which involves using resources, knowledge 
and expertise, to make a positive difference for those who live, work, visit and invest in Dublin 
City. The mission of the Economic support offices within Dublin City Council is;

SWOT Analysis of LEO Dublin City 

Dublin City Council: Promoting Economic Development to Support a City of Opportunity 
that Encourages an Inclusive and Sustainable Economy

12 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 38



This is achieved by engaging, promoting, facilitating and collaborating with internal and 
external stakeholders, across a specific range of interventions designed to deliver on this vision. 
These interventions will be identified and assessed with reference to the 4 pillars of Economic 
Development, which have been selected to offer clarity and focus to the work. These pillars 
were identified following consultation with a range of stakeholders and the completion of a 
SWOT analysis.

The Economic and Enterprise eco-system in Dublin city is strengthened, through engagement 
with a wide range of stakeholders, designed to improve and support various policy initiatives, 
projects, events and research documents.  The Economic Development Unit have identified 
a number of high level projects under each of the Pillars that when delivered, will result in 
positive change. 

The Economic Development Unit deliver on these four pillars under 4 priority areas of Policy, 
Projects, Research and Events and are fact driven and embedded in data and research.

The Economic Development Unit have identified a number of high level projects under each of 
the Pillars that when delivered, will result in positive change. 

1. Human Development: 

• Summit Series: Dublin Re-set Summit: (Research, Promotion, Future of Dublin)
• Skills - Future of Work (Dublin Region Skills Forum - FutureScope)
• Your Dublin Your Voice: (Dublin Survey Panel)

2. Place Making and Clusters: 

• Enterprise Space: (Research, Dublin Region Enterprise Plan
• Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor: (Engagement with eight local authorities and two 

universities)
• Dublin Region Enterprise Plan: DREP

• To support initiatives that will improve the quality of people’s lives. 

• To enhance the ability of the City to attract and retain world-class talent through 
Placemaking. 

• To promote Dublin as an attractive place to live, work, visit and invest. 

• To foster a culture of creativity and innovation in a globally connected City. 

• To engage with economic stakeholders to maximise the alignment and impact of 
resources.

13Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 39



4. Climate and Innovation

• Social Enterprise: (Responsible Innovation Summit, Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards)
• Green Business: Responsible Innovation – MODOS
• Smart Dublin: Dublin as a Test Bed for Smart Innovation 

1.2 Review of 2017-2020
The LEO support mechanism is working effectively and with new economic and business 
challenges continually emerging, there is no room for complacency. LEO Dublin City is and will 
continue to be a key constituent of the local entrepreneurial ecosystem and is a key delivery 
agent of business supports.

The outputs highlight that the model is working effectively. The LEO enterprise support 
mechanism is a key constituent of the of the national and local entrepreneurial Ecosystem.  

3. Promotion & Investment

• Dublin Economic Monitor: DEM
• Dublin Place Brand 
• DCC EU Programme Participation Strategy

Dublin City Council’s Economic Developmnet Strategy 2022 – 2028 is being developed in 2021 
in response to the COVID 19 Global Pandemic, the Roadmap to Reopening Ireland, the recent 
Reset Summit for the city and the National Recovery & Resilience Plan. 

14 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 40



Business Information & Advisory Services:

LEO Vision:

Mission Statement:

First Stop Enterprise & Business Support Solution

To develop and sustain a positive enterprise ecosystem  throughout Dublin City  that will in 
particular drive new added-value start-ups, the further growth of small and micro enterprises 
and enhance local economies.

Provide enhanced and nationally recognised First Stop Shop (FFS) referral 
and advisory service in Dublin City

Over the period 2014-2020, the First Stop Shop has been developed to be a key support 
mechanism within LEO Dublin City. The Local Enterprise Office Dublin City will continue to 
function as the local first-stop shop for new entrepreneurs and existing micro-enterprise 
and small business owners. The LEO is the front door through which all information on State 
supports for small and micro-businesses can be accessed and signposted to other supports 
and bodies with programmes relevant to small business as well as important local services and 
compliance requirements can be provided. 

We aim to promote entrepreneurship, foster sustainable business start-ups and develop 
existing micro and small businesses to drive job creation and to provide accessible high-quality 
supports for your Business ideas. Entrepreneurs and Businesses are supported to:

• Increase exports
• Build resilience 
• Increase productivity 
• Prepare for the Low carbon economy 
• Embrace the Digital economy 
• Innovate
• Be managed by ambitious & capable individuals
• Fuel regional growth

SECTION 2 - VISION/MISSION AND OVERARCHING OBJECTIVES

Page 41



Make it Easier to do Business

Improve the competitiveness and productivity of small and micro enterprises 
through enhancing SME management capabilities

Page 42



LEO Dublin City will endeavour to promote and support an accessible enterprise ecosystem 
that actively supports entrepreneurs to make the most of their time, a precious resource for 
any business. LEO Dublin city will continue to engage with portfolio clients to promote new and 
existing products which may assist them to manage their business more effectively. 

2020 was a challenging year with the sudden onset of Covid-19 and the ongoing concern of a 
no deal Brexit. Despite this, LEO Dublin City provided all services remotely and approved 79 
applications for M1 support in 2020 (including TAME grants). Associated with these approvals is 
the potential to create 130 new sustainable jobs.  The capacity of the LEO to adapt to the needs 
of the business community makes it a key cog in the enterprise support ecosystem. In order to 
continue to maximise the potential of LEO Dublin City clients, innovation and digitalisation will 
be a priority focus. The following objectives and actions have been identified:  

Enterprise Support Services:
Maximise Business Potential

LEO Dublin City have identified the following objectives and actions 

17Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 43



Collaborate with Enterprise Ireland
Collaboration and engagement with Enterprise Ireland (EI) continues to be prioritised. With 
21 companies transferred from LEO Dublin city EI in 2020, a strong pipeline of LEO clients 
are being supported towards a transition to EI supports.  This is being achieved via ongoing 
communication and engagement between EI and LEO Business Advisors. LEO Dublin City will 
continue to work collaboratively with Enterprise Ireland to identify clients with growth and 
export potential. Approving LEO Clients for Enterprise Ireland supports is one such approach 
that has proven effective. The following objectives and actions will support this area of work: 

Increase the level of innovation within micro and small businesses

Increase the export capabilities of small and micro enterprises, beyond the UK 
in particular

18 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 44



19Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 45



LEO Dublin City will act as the catalyst and advocate for the establishment of a best practice 
enterprise culture among start-ups, micro and small businesses; while promoting enterprise 
and self-employment as a viable career option among the wider population. This will be 
achieved by implementing the following:  

Entrepreneurship Support Services:
Promote a Best Practice Enterprise Culture

Foster, promote and support local entrepreneurship

Enhance the confidence, ambition and leadership skills of small and micro 
enterprises

20 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 46



LEO Dublin City will aim to leverage the full range of potential enterprise support/economic 
development promotion mechanisms across Dublin City Council’s economic development remit, 
including enterprise space, rates framework, economic development, etc to start-ups and small 
businesses in city.

Local Economic Development Services:
Environment for Start-Ups

SECTION 3 - STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
3.1 Strategic Priorities for LEO Dublin City 2021-2024

One of the key components of the Local Enterprise Development Plan is the work that LEO Dublin 
City will do with its client portfolio. There are approximately 400 clients in the client portfolio. The 
main aim is to manage and grow the businesses in the clients portfolio and generate a net jobs 
increase across the portfolio. 

Clients in the Portfolio are Measure 1 financially assisted businesses. LEO Dublin City has two 
Business Advisors who will actively manage their clients to develop them to their true potential. The 
portfolio will be divided into Performing, Start Up, Stagnant and Divesting. The business advisors 
will work with those business who have started and are stagnant to get them to perform. During 
each year of the plan new clients will be added to the portfolio at each Evaluation Committee 
meeting. Clients who are not engaging will be recommended for divesting at the end of each year. 

The LEO Dublin City Business Advisors will use the LEO support services, Dublin City Enterprise 
ECO system to encourage and advise client companies to become more Competitive, Digitised, 
Green and Sustainable, Innovative, increased Exporting and Internationalisation, Improve their 
Management Skills and Leadership and engage in more Networking. A new Consultancy Panel of 
Experts in these areas is being formed. 

How LEO Dublin City will work with Portfolio Clients:

Promote economic development at local level

Page 47



LEO Dublin City will continuously support third parties in the delivery of programs tailored for 
specific clients’ needs such as those with a disability and/or in long-term un-employment. 

LEO Dublin City will actively continue to engage with Enterprise Ireland and other support 
agencies to ensure their client’s potential is maximised. A client first policy is in place to ensure 
that client’s needs are carefully considered in partnership with Enterprise Ireland to ensure 
they are receiving the right level of funding and support. 

Dublin City is a well connected  in terms of broadband and the council has a broadband officer 
to monitor and improve digital connectivity. It is envisaged that the rollout of 5G will be an 
additional draw to attract and grow the vital tech sector in Dublin City. 

LEO Dublin City works closely with key business interest groups to understand the needs of 
the business community. This coupled with ongoing engagement with trainers and mentors 
provides an up to date analysis of the skills and training requirements of local entrepreneurs.  

Encouraging youth entrepreneurship is also key to ensuring a pipeline of new entrepreneurs. 
It has been established that Ireland lags behind in youth entrepreneur figures so the following 
actions will be used to address this: 

1. An active schools program culminating in schools competition for the best business. 
This program plants the seeds which may encourage future school leavers to follow an 
entrepreneurial path. 

2. The IBYE program, (Ireland’s Best Young Entrepreneur) is designed to encourage younger 
entrepreneurs, while positioned as a competition there is a very important training and 
networking element to this program which has real impact. 

LEO Micro and Small business clients demonstrated great agility when faced with the challenge 
to survive and sustain their businesses during 2020 in particular. Many businesses embraced 
the opportunity to add digital capability such as on-line trading, and virtual meetings capacityto 
ensure continued engagement to sustain and in many cases expand and or pivot their business 
operations during the COVID pandemic. Having the opportunity to explore and adopt these 
initial changes, many business owners have been awakened to the fact they need to introduce 
further digitalisation, in order to better serve their customers’ on one part and become more 
efficient and productive on the other.

Competitiveness and Digitalisation

Entrepreneurship
The Entrepreneurship eco-system is critical to the Dublin City Economy. LEO Dublin City will 
endeavor to nurture and encourage entrepreneurship and to increase the conversion rate 
of participants on the start your own business courses.  Through implementing the Business 
Supports process LEO Dublin City will ensure a robust screening process, that will direct clients 
to the supports required and will assist in identifying potential HPSU clients. 

LEO Dublin City will tailor courses to the needs and aspirations of participants. All programs 
are open and inclusive designed to provide participants with the essential skills required to 
prepare them to succeed in a highly competitive landscape. 

LEO client Portfolio management aims to:
• To grow the LEO client businesses
• To increase the full time equivalent net jobs in the portfolio on an annual basis
• To transfer clients who are ready for further growth and expansion to Enterprise Ireland
• To provide mentoring and advice as required
• To engage portfolio clients with consultancy panel services
• To engage clients and inform them of opportunities available to them in the Dublin City 

Enterprise ECO System

22 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 48



The ‘Green for Micro’ initiative will help small businesses decarbonise and become more 
sustainable. Making businesses more sustainable is not just the right thing to do from an 
environmental point of view, it also makes good business sense. The Triple Bottom line will 
become a consideration for many businesses considering not just profit but their impact on 
people and the planet also. 

Recent survey results *show that 33% of respondents plan to switch to businesses which are 
doing more about sustainability, while 49% also said they intend to become better informed 
about the impact their purchasing has on the planet. With climate change, changing regulations, 
rising resource costs and changing customer expectations, adopting a more eco-friendly 
approach is the best way forward for business. The Green for Micro Programme will begin the 
journey to greater sustainability for many micro businesses and lead to further initiatives and 
investments over the 2021-2024 period. 
(*Survey source: AIB Sustainability Index, December 2020)

2. MODOS is a circular economy training programme for micro, small and medium size 
enterprises. It emerged as a joint initiative of the Economic Development Office (EDO) of Dublin 
City Council and the Eastern Midlands Waste Region Office (EMWRO). MODOS has garnered 
interest from stakeholders countrywide and will be a key resource to assist businesses meet 
their obligations under the green/sustainability agenda. 

Over the coming years the Dublin region will be able to continue to develop such programmes 
in a collaborative way to best meet the needs of businesses. When firstly launched in 2019, 
MODOS was the first Circular Economy Training Program for micro, small and medium 
enterprises ever developed in the country. While initially targeting Dublin-based businesses, 
the program rollout has subsequently been successfully promoted nationwide and has grown 
to include circular economy events and webinars, a mentoring service and a CE Innovation 
Award. 

While Green for Micro and MODOS are two key approaches, the Dublin LEOs will also be 
working closely with key representatives within their Local Authority structure to consider how 
sustainability can be continuously be promoted and implemented.

• Increase LEO staff one-to-one client engagement to identify on-going client needs.
• Continue to promote and develop the LEAN for Micro programme to LEO clients to drive 

efficiency and improve productivity.
• Develop new, measurable productivity management development programmes for our 

LEO clients.
• Drive productivity improvements through capital and skills funding.
• Deliver the LEO non-financial supports to firms up to 20 employees.
• Work with EI HPSU Section to drive scale within identified LEO enterprises.
• Develop and deliver sectoral initiatives/networking programmes at local level to maximise 

local sectoral strengths and ambitions.
• Promote MODOS and the new Green for Micro programme to promote enable small and 

micro businesses future-proof their businesses from an environmental perspective.
Green / Sustainability
1. Green for Micro:

Key actions reflect wider LEO National Strategy and include:

The four Dublin region LEOs will continue to support all client companies to face challenges 
in boosting productivity, rapidly adopting digitalisation and actively pursuing innovation 
to increase competitiveness. LEO Dublin City will continue to work closely with Enterprise 
Ireland to maximise client take up of relevant Enterprise Ireland products and services to 
drive competitiveness, accelerate the adoption and implementation of sustainable business 
practices and develop local sectoral networks and clusters to drive productivity, knowledge 
sharing and competitiveness at local and regional level.

23Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 49



Innovation

Exporting/Internationalisation 

Innovation in product, service, management and selling is increasingly important in the 
connected environment that Irish Businesses operate in.  There is a challenge in raising the 
awareness of the need to be innovative as a starting point and to get companies to take the 
steps to be innovative, this often requires reflection, change and financial/ time risk, which 
is not always embraced. LEO Dublin City are committed to raising the level of innovation of 
companies in the region and will do so by;  

• Ensuring that the ssupporting and promoting innovation is a key delivery of the offices
• Promoting feasibility study funding for early stage companies and Agile Innovation funding 

for more established companies which are the two primary LEO funding mechanisms which 
will be used to encourage innovation

• On a broader economic front continued partnership with EI on delivering seminars/ 
information sessions on innovation

• Breakthrough Innovation Program in partnership with Dublin BIC will be widely publicised 
and participation will be encouraged with other programs to follow where appropriate 
(subject to the successful completion of the Pilot) 

• Innovation in business thinking and processes will be supported by the LEAN for micro 
program and other management programs TBC

• Mentors will be encouraged to signpost innovative clients to the most appropriate supports 
and will be made aware of these supports as they develop to ensure they are receiving the 
highest level of encouragement

• Mentors will be supported in improving their mentoring skills through initiatives such as 
www.mentorsupport.ie once COVID allows 

• Engagement with third level environments will continue to seed fund innovative companies 
coming out of this system where they are close to market. DLR have strong ties with UCD 
Nova and IADT and have funded several companies from these institutions

• LEO Dublin City have strong ties with Trinity, TU Dublin, National College of Art and Design, 
UCD and National College of Ireland

• IDI- Institute of Designers Ireland. Design and Innovation go hand in hand and LEO Dublin 
City 

The four Dublin region LEOs will continue to work together to increase the potential to their 
clients to export. The LEOs will work closely with Enterprise Ireland to maximise client take up 
on relevant Enterprise Ireland export products and services. 

Small businesses continue to express interest in the TAME grant, these businesses are looking 
to export or expand into new markets. Any business approved for a TAME will be travelling 
overseas to develop new market opportunities. LEO offices will seek to assist these businesses 
with links to EI research and overseas offices, as appropriate. 

The Covid-19 pandemic has greatly enhanced consumer confidence in E-commerce and the 
capacity of business owners to take their business online and continue to meet consumer 
demand, where possible. While writing this strategy, LEO (Dublin City) approved (1221) Trading 
Online Vouchers over 11 months, showing the resilience and capacity of businesses in the 
Dublin region to pivot and develop their business online. These businesses are now in a prime 
position to attract new customers and continue to grow their business online, to a potential 
global market. 

LEO business advisors will continue to review their portfolio of LEO supported clients on a 
regular basis and identify initiatives that will help these clients with their exporting activities

24 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 50



Networks and Clustering
Networking is a valuable and productive activity for owner/managers. Networking puts clients 
in contact with like-minded people whose experience and knowledge can help greatly in solving 
the day-to-day problems of business and exploit the opportunities.  Within networks, there 
are shared experiences, friendships to be made and also new opportunities to develop your 
business, make sales or find new suppliers.

LEO Dublin City recognise the importance of business networks and the clustering of relevant 
stakeholders within a specific industry and actively support the following networks and clusters:

This network is an initiative of LEO Dublin City to encourage and support women who are 
starting a business or are already up and running and provides access to a supportive network, 
expert speakers, entry to event and awards and works  to maximise the success and growth 
potential of female entrepreneurs.  Membership of the network increased under Covid 19 
restrictions demonstrating the value of networking and the accessibility of on line events.

ENFUSE is a new initiate developed by the Economic Development Unit and LEO- Dublin City. 
After a successful pilot in 2020, this collaborative approach to bringing third level institutions 
and the business community together will be developed over the next programme period. 

Dublin Food Chain is a collaborative initiative of Local Enterprise Offices in the Dublin area, and 
supported by Bord Bia. The Dublin Food Chain is part of an ongoing effort to harness the power 
of the ‘collective’, in order to ensure that Co. Dublin’s unique food heritage benefits from the 
attention it deserves. Throughout the county, a diverse selection of crucial food training and 
food marketing initiatives are underway. Now, through the Dublin Food Chain brand, these 
programmes can enjoy better linkages and cross-promotion. 

Whether, it is through training, networking or collective marketing, the key aim is to work 
together towards promoting and expanding our valuable food sector. Ultimately, the goal of 
the Dublin Food Chain is to help the county nurture its enviable status as an iconic food brand.

Over the next four years support will be provided to capitalise on the growth of e-commerce 
and  assist entrepreneurs to exploit such opportunities. LEO Dublin City will achieve this via the 
following strategic actions: 

• Development of tailored management Development Programmes 
• Monitoring of portfolio Clients to establish those with greater potential 
• Provision of online workshops with high potential clients and EI Advisors 
• Promotion of TAME to encourage greater participation at international trade events 
• Creation of a Micro Exporters network to support best practice and knowledge exchange 
• Staff development to assist with identifying LEO clients with greater export potential

The Women in Business Network:

ENFUSE:

Dublin Food Chain:

25Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 51



3.2 Capacity and Capability Development
REDF Projects
The Regional Enterprise Development Fund (REDF) supports major new collaborative and 
innovative initiatives that can make a significant impact on enterprise development nationally 
to build the unique USP capabilities to grow the regions around Ireland. A co-financing approach 
is taken to achieve the development and implementation of collaborative and innovative 
projects that can sustain and add to employment at a national, regional and county level. The 
overarching aim of this Scheme is to drive enterprise development and job creation in each 
region throughout Ireland.

The Scheme also seeks to stimulate enterprise clustering initiatives, which are defined as 
structures or organised groups of independent parties designed to stimulate innovative 
activity through promotion, sharing of facilities and exchange of knowledge and expertise and 
by contributing effectively to knowledge transfer, networking, information dissemination and 
collaboration among the undertakings and other organisations in the connectivity.

REDF Projects support the development of initiatives that help strengthen the regional ability to 
adjust and cope with the potential effects of international economic changes that may impact 
on regions or sectors performance nationally.

In Dublin City, the following projects have received REDF Funding: 

26 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 52



Management Development Capability 
The COVID 19 Pandemic greatly challenged the founders and promotors of our Micro and Small 
client businesses and highlighted deficits in their general management capability. Key challenges 
including Financial Management (Cash Flow and Management Accounting ), IT Management/ 
Digitalisation (to support home working / off-site management and e-Commerce capability), HR 
and Sales and Marketing (including Digital Marketing) emerged as areas of particular concern. 

The LEOs in the Dublin region continue to be committed to meeting the management 
development needs of modern businesses and recognise the need to review and enhance 
management and leadership development programmes to meet this need. This will aim to:

• Build the confidence and drive the ambition of local firms to scale and compete internationally
• Build and strengthen the leadership skills and capabilities of small and micro enterprise 

owner/managers. 
• Establish specific micro-credentials for entrepreneurs in these key areas of finance, 

digitalisation, human resources, etc.

LEO Dublin City has a strong panel of trainers and has consistent engagement with them 
to understand the opportunities and deliver programmes to increase the level of skills 
and management development of the local business community. LEO Dublin City will also 
partner with Enterprise Ireland and introduce client companies for appropriate EI Leadership 
programmes such as HPSU. 

Over the next four years a broad programme of supports will be provided to develop 
entrepreneurial skills and future business leaders. LEO Dublin City will undertake to take the 
following strategic actions: 

• Deliver client-focused, needs-based, management development programmes targeted at 
LEO portfolio clients. This to include new measurable programmes.

• Maximise the LEO mentoring programme to increase ambition and capabilities.
• Increase LEO staff one-to-one client engagement to identify export ready clients.
• Facilitate local business networks with a particular focus on peer learning and enhancing 

capabilities.
• Strengthen relationships and networking opportunities with Local Chamber and larger 

multinational companies 
• On a Regional or National basis deliver annual International Leadership programme /s to 

identified LEO portfolio clients.
• Deliver accredited modules of client-focused management development programmes 

27Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 53



3.3 National LEO Programmes
LEO Dublin City’s involvement in National LEO programmes

Local Enterprise Week:
Local Enterprise Week is a National event that takes place annually during the first week of 
March. The week highlights the supports and services available to micro/ small businesses and 
the self-employed through the 31 Local Enterprise Offices nationwide. Operational for 6 years 
in 2021, Local Enterprise Week delivered 400+ events to close to 15,000 people. 

Local Enterprise Week offers a wealth of opportunity to learn, share, inform and contribute to 
the thriving start up and micro enterprise community in Dublin City. The week long programme 
of mentoring, advice and networking highlights the services and supports available to SME’s 
and start-ups, as well as providing a selection of events and workshops, tailored to engage, 
inspire and inform. 

Entrepreneurs from all sectors, including food, tech and craft, have the opportunity to 
participate in predominately FREE workshops, seminars, networking events, advice clinics and 
1 to 1 mentoring on every aspect of business, including: starting a business, trading online, 
finance, digital marketing, scaling your business, exporting, green business, social enterprises 
and being Brexit-ready. 

Anyone who is 
interested in starting 
up a business or has an 
established business 
should get involved 
and benefit from the 
programmes that are on 
offer. Local Enterprise 
Week showcases all 
that is available to 
entrepreneurs bringing 
them together for one 
action packed week.

Local Enterprise Week 
offers a wealth of 
opportunity to learn, share, inform and contribute to the thriving start up and micro enterprise 
community in Dublin City. 

Due to the pandemic in 2021, Local Enterprise Week evolved into a virtual event. This new 
format grew participation by 65%. Larger events hosted up to 400 participants simultaneously. 
Participants restrictions on both time and location have been eradicated or greatly reduced, 
increasing the number of sessions that entrepreneurs could participant in and maximising 
their time. 

10 spotlight events took place and LEO Dublin City hosted the first of these, opening Local 
Enterprise Week with the launch of Green for Micro. 

Adding virtual events provides a workable new event model beneficial to both entrepreneur 
and LEO’s into 2024. The entrepreneur can participate in a greater range of workshops. Time, 
distance and cost are no longer barriers to participation. The LEO’s have opportunity to enhance 
collaboration and therefore cost efficiencies, while continuing to provide cutting edge relevant 
content to entrepreneurs when planning, starting, sustaining and growing their businesses.

28 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 54



In October of each year 2017 to 2019 the four LEOs in the Dublin region organised and 
promoted a major networking event as part of “National Women’s Enterprise Day”. In October 
2020, owing to COVID-19, the event was held online as a single National event. Post-COVID, LEO 
Dublin City will continue to support the regional initiative which will rotate annually between 
each of the 4 x Dublin LEOs for the period 2021-2024.

Dublin City Local Enterprise Office holds the Dublin City Enterprise Award competition annually 
as part of the Local Enterprise Offices National Enterprise Award.  Applications are invited from 
LEO clients and the winner is selected based on the strengths of the application in the following 
areas: 1. Business Plan, 2. Marketing, 3. Finance, 4. Entrepreneurial skills of the promoter and 5. 
Technical Innovations.  The Dublin City Enterprise Award Winner is awarded a prize by the Lord 
Mayor and goes on to represent LEO Dublin City at the National Enterprise awards held later in 
the year.   In previous years the LEO Dublin City winner has acted as a strong ambassador for 
the work of the office and has been profiled through press release, participation in events and 
in panel discussions or through other promotional opportunities.

Organised by the Local Enterprise Office Dublin City, the Student Enterprise Programme was 
established to help create an enterprising culture within secondary schools, encouraging 
students to set up innovative businesses with their classmates, as part of a nation-wide 
competition.

The aim of the programme is to equip students with the opportunity to set up and run 
a business and to enter that business into an Awards programme. The experience offers a 
valuable exercise in teamwork and problem solving as well as an opportunity to network and 
present themselves and their businesses in a public forum.

Students can enter the Student Enterprise Programme individually or in groups but must 
register through a teacher and as part of a school within the Dublin City catchment area.

The Student Enterprise Programme also offers The Enterprise Encounter Programme for 
Leaving Certificate Applied and Leaving Certificate Vocational Programme students. This 
programme gives students a chance to experience entrepreneurship on a very personal level 
through meetings with successful business people.

National Women’s Enterprise:

Student Enterprise:

Enterprise Awards:

29Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 55



Ireland Best Young Entrepreneur: IBYE

Showcase:

1. Best Business Idea (Pre Trading)

2. Best Start-Up Business (Up to 18 months)

3. Best Established Business (Over 18 months)

CATEGORIES

LEO Dublin City encourage entrepreneurs aged between 18 and 35 that have a business idea 
or existing business, enter Ireland’s Best Young Entrepreneur (IBYE) for their chance to win a 
share of the county investment fund as well as an opportunity to represent the Local Enterprise 
Office (LEO) Dublin City at the Regional Finals and possibly the National Finals. 

With a national investment fund of over €2million, targeted business supports and promotion 
opportunities, IBYE offers clients the opportunity to develop their business as well as expand 
their skills. www.ibye.ie 

Showcase at the RDS is the first major trade event of each year, organised by the Design & 
Crafts Council of Ireland and promoted internationally by Enterprise Ireland. The dedicated 
Enterprise Zone on the balcony area, co-ordinated by the Local Enterprise Offices, has become 
known as the home for emerging designers and craftspeople in recent years.   A wide range 
of creative sectors is represented within the Enterprise Zone, such as ceramics, knitwear, 
jewellery, interiors, skincare and giftware. A number of LEO Dublin City clients will participate 
in this initiative each year. Owing to COVID-19, the trade show was held online in January 2021. 
It is hoped that the event can proceed in the RDS in January 2022 and each year thereafter, so 
that Dublin City craft and artisan producers have an opportunity to market themselves on a 
global stage.

To enter the Best Business Idea category you must have a new idea or concept for a business 
that has not yet commenced trading at time of application. This can be an original or unique 
concept, a new idea for a product/service offering or an innovative approach to delivering an 
existing product/ service. 

A start-up business for the IBYE competition is a business which has started trading (i.e. is 
generating revenue from sales.) and is less than 18 months in existence. This stage of the 
business may be focused on research, product/service development, market growth, and has 
potential to grow. It is important that the promoter(s) have a clear milestone development plan 
in place. 

An established business for the IBYE competition must be trading for more than 18 months. An 
established business must also be able to demonstrate a satisfactory track record of success 
to date and be in a position to further develop the existing business. This may include a new 
product/service offering, new market opportunity identified or an innovative approach to 
changing or adapting the existing business model.

30 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 56



Microfinance Ireland provides small loan facilities to businesses that have difficulty raising 
finance from other sources. LEO Dublin City works very closely with MFI and has a dedicated 
resource to ensure that start-up and existing businesses have access to this source of funding, 
regardless of the business sector. In 2020 the numbers of applications for MFI loans processed 
by LEO Dublin City increased significantly (from an average of 21 in 2014 – 2019, to 50 in 2020). 
It is envisaged that the volume of applications will return to “normal” levels post COVID-19.

In conjunction with EI, LEO Dublin City will continue to roll out the LEAN programme to enable 
small businesses with real growth potential to streamline their business processes and 
give them an opportunity to enhance competitiveness. It is anticipated that the numbers of 
participants will grow year on year in the period 2021-2024.

In recognition of the increasing importance for local small businesses to exploit online sales 
opportunities, LEO Dublin City will continue to roll out the Trading Online Voucher scheme, 
actively promoting the programme to eligible small businesses with a view to maximising online 
sales among local suppliers. In the period 2017 through 2020, some 1,705 TOVs were approved 
by LEO Dublin City. Of these, 1094 were approved in 2020. 

This phenomenal growth was a direct consequence of COVID-19, whereby the scheme saw 
huge demand as small businesses focused on online selling. As well as continuing to provide 
the TOV scheme to Dublin Ciity businesses during the period 2021-2024, LEO Dublin City will 
focus on identifying previous TOV recipients that have strong potential to accelerate their digital 
marketing strategy.

Three National initiatives are currently offered through the 31 Local Enterprise Offices and will 
continue to be provided to encourage and enable food production start-ups:

- Digital School of Food: an online learning resource to assist individuals to learn about how to   
  set up a successful food enterprise.
- Food Starter: A “Start Your Own Business” programme aimed at food sector. 
- Food Academy: The Food Academy is an initiative designed collaboratively with Bord Bia,      
Musgraves/SuperValu and the Network of Local Enterprise Offices.   It aims to “Give Small     
Producers a Big Chance”. The Food Academy works with and nurtures small businesses through 
their journey from start up to getting their products on SuperValu shelves.

Food Academy Core Objectives

• Develop an in-depth knowledge of the tools which can be used to assess market gaps for 
your product

• Understand core technical issues facing your food or drink business
•  Learn how to grow sales for your product range through better branding and packaging 

design
• Gain all of the tools and knowledge necessary to launch and build a successful food business 

in Ireland

LEO Dublin City will continue to support and promote the Food Academy 

Food Academy:

Micro-Finance Ireland:

Lean For Micro:

Trading Online Vouchers:

31Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 57



SECTION 4: ASSOCIATED ACTIONS AND ACTIVITIES
4.1 Protocols
The following protocols govern dissemination of information, information signposting and 
inter-organisation referrals. Local Enterprise Office Dublin City will continue to implement these 
protocols on an on-going basis and review locally as required. The aims of the Protocols are:

• To establish a structured link between the Local Enterprise Offices and Protocol Partners to 
support the provision of information and guidance measures for enterprise development;

• To provide for an efficient customer service in response to LEO clients’ queries;
• To provide for informing and updating staff from both organisations of respective 

programmes and services;
• To provide for cooperation on awareness and promotion activities;
• To provide for exchanges between the parties on the uptake and operation of the measures 

and levels of demand for information/guidance by clients of the LEOs;
• To provide for periodic review of the operation of the protocol;
• To Provide for collaboration and efficiencies in the provision of training programmes where 

appropriate.

Department of Social Protection

Credit Review Office

Fáilte Ireland

Skillnets

Microfinance Ireland

Agreed between the Department of Social Protection and The Department of Enterprise, 
Trade and Employment (on behalf of Enterprise Ireland). This protocol aims to maximise the 
recruitment of appropriately skilled persons from the Live Register by enterprise agency client 
companies.

Agreed between the Credit Review Office and The Department of Enterprise, Trade and 
Employment (on behalf of Enterprise Ireland). The Credit Review Office provides a simple, 
effective review process for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, including sole traders and 
farm enterprises, who have had requests for credit refused or existing credit facilities reduced 
or withdrawn.

Agreed between Enterprise Ireland and Fáilte Ireland. Fáilte Ireland. is the National Tourism 
Development Authority, whose role is to support the tourism industry and work to sustain 
Ireland as a high-quality and competitive tourism destination.Fáilte Ireland also works with 
other state agencies and representative bodies, at local and national levels, to implement and 
champion positive and practical strategies that will benefit Irish tourism and the Irish economy.

Agreed between Skillnets and The Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment (on 
behalf of Enterprise Ireland). Skillnets actively supports and works with businesses in Ireland 
to address their current and future skills needs on the basis that training and up-skilling are 
key elements in keeping Irish companies competitive. Skillnets funds groups of companies in 
the same region/sector, and with similar training needs, through training networks that deliver 
subsidised training to Irish businesses.

Agreed between Microfinance Ireland and The Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment 
(on behalf of Enterprise Ireland). Microfinance Ireland, as a not-for-profit lender, has been 
established to deliver the Government’s Microenterprise Loan Fund. All business sectors are 
eligible to apply. Companies may be Sole Traders, Partnerships and Limited Companies with 
fewer than 10 employees and an annual turnover of less than €2 million.  Loans may be used 
to fund the start-up of a business, the purchase of stock, equipment, machinery, and business 
vehicles and are also available to established enterprises.

32 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 58



Education and Training Boards (ETBs)

National Association of Community Enterprise Centres (NACEC)

Revenue

Agreed between Enterprise Ireland and Education & Training Boards Ireland. The ETBs are 
statutory authorities which have responsibility for education and training, youth work and a 
range of other statutory functions. ETBs manage and operate second-level schools, further 
education colleges, multi-faith community national schools and a range of adult and further 
education centres delivering education and training programmes. Further education and 
apprenticeship training is also provided through 16 training centres nationally. ETBs are active 
in local communities through the direct provision of training and education programmes 
delivered in training centres, colleges and other training and educational settings. 

Agreed between Enterprise Ireland and The National Association of Community Enterprise 
Centres. The National Association of Community Enterprise Centres is a strong representative 
body of 120 community enterprise centres in the Republic of Ireland.  Its primary role is to 
support and develop the interests of community enterprise centres on a national basis.

Agreed between The Revenue Commissioners and The Department of Enterprise, Trade and 
Employment (on behalf of Enterprise Ireland). The role of the Revenue Commissioners is “to 
serve the community by fairly and efficiently collecting taxes and duties and implementing 
customs controls”. Specifically, in relation to business, Revenue provides information and 
support under three headings:

• A comprehensive range of information and guidance on taxation issues, customs and 
Revenue requirements relating to starting and running a business, including the Revenue 
Online Service

• Tax Simplification Initiatives for Smaller Businesses
• Supporting Job Creation and other Enterprise Supports.

33Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 59



4.2 Other Initiatives

Breakthrough Innovation Programme:

Dublin Food Chain:

Dublin Tech Summit:

ENFUSE:

During 2020 LEO Dublin City collaborated with the other three LEOs in the Dublin region and 
Dublin Business Innovation Centre (DBIC), to provide the “Breakthrough Innovation Programme” 
to small businesses that are seeking to adopt strong innovative practices and processes in their 
business. This programme, funded by the Regional Enterprise Development Fund, will continue 
to be provided to suitable businesses employing 3 to 50 staff in the period 2021-2024.

Dublin Food Chain is a collaborative initiative of the four Local Enterprise Offices in the Dublin 
region, supported by Bord Bia. It offers a network of food producers, wholesalers, foodservice 
operators and food retailers, and is part of an ongoing effort to harness the power of the 
‘collective’.

The Dublin Tech Summit (DTS) is an international technology conference held in Dublin annually. 
The first summit took place on 15 and 16 February 2017, at the Convention Centre. In light of 
Covid-19 restrictions the, DTS has gone virtual. The 2021 event will see some 5000 attendees 
from 60 countries come together to share their experience and expertise. The Economic 
Development Unit and LEO in Dublin City will continue to support and participate at the Dublin 
Tech Summit. 

ENFUSE is collaborative project between third level institutions and the Economic Development 
Unit/ LEO Dublin City. ENFUSE matches enterprises and social enterprises in Dublin with teams 
of Masters - University Students. During semester 2 (January-May) as part of a module, students 
work in teams of 4-6 with selected enterprises. The students help provide insights, propose 
solutions and ultimately present a bespoke and tangible plan that sets out how challenges and 
opportunities could be addressed by the enterprise.

The student teams present the plan directly to the enterprise and also submit it to their module 
lecturer for academic assessment. Shortlisted student teams then go on to compete as finalists 
at the ENFUSE pitch competition. The teams represent their university and compete by pitching 
in front of industry / expert judges on how their assigned enterprise could address challenges 
and realise opportunities.

ENFUSE aims to:

• Support micro / small-medium enterprises by providing bespoke plans to address challenges 
and develop opportunities.

• Provide participating masters students with real-world consultancy and enterprise 
experience.

• Develop enterprise ecosystem links and synergies between stakeholders and enterprises.

34 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 60



LEO Dublin City is funded annually by Government through Enterprise Ireland from the 
Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment (DETE). LEO Dublin will continue to work 
with Enterprise Ireland and DETE on its annual funding and resourcing requirements to drive 
our strategy. LEO Dublin City commits to maximising its budget allocation ensuring value for 
money in fulfilling its objectives and strategic priorities.

LEO Dublin City commits to the 2021-2024 Learning and Development plan for LEO staff and 
managers to ensure we have the necessary business development skillset to support our 
clients evolving needs to survive and thrive in the ever-changing business environment. A 
collaborative approach between Enterprise Ireland and the LEO’s is taken to design programmes 
to support us in achieving the strategic priorities across Entrepreneurship, Competitiveness 
and Digitalisation, Green/Sustainability, Exporting/Internationalisation and Innovation. A best 
practice approach is adopted to deliver programmes such as the Professional Business Advisor 
programme, Green for Micro, Finance, Social Media and other business pillar programmes 
accordingly.

SECTION 5: RISKS AND NEW INITIATIVES

SECTION 6: DELIVERING THE STRATEGY

IDENTIFIED RISKS:

Funding

Training

35Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 61



LEO Dublin City’s Customer Service Charter is a commitment to the quality of service delivery 
to all clients and sets out what LEO Dublin City will do for you, how we propose to do it, and in 
what time scale. Your LEO is committed to continuously monitoring and improving the quality 
of service delivery to clients. 
(Please see Appendix 3 for full LEO Customer Service Charter). 

Local Enterprise Office Dublin City communications strategy will be fully aligned with the 
national ‘Making It Happen’ marketing and communications strategy for the Local Enterprise 
Offices, as set out by the LEO Communications Committee and LEO Communications Team in 
Enterprise Ireland. 

This strategy will focus on four key pillars:

• Promoting LEO-led programmes, supports and initiatives and those open to LEO clients 
from local authorities, Enterprise Ireland, protocol partners and other stakeholders

• Showcasing LEO and client announcements, regular profiling through case studies and 
thought leadership

• Rolling-out brand communications campaigns locally, to include ‘Pre-Start,’, ‘Start’ and 
‘Grow’ themed campaigns

• Increasing the LEO’s digital footprint online and enhancing social media presence and reach

Customer Service Charter- LEO Dublin City

Communications

APPENDIX 1: LEO DUBLIN CITY - PERFORMANCE METRICS

The Local Enterprise Office Communications Strategy will continue to support National 
Initiatives such as those focused on Exporting, Innovation, Green, Digitalisation and Look for 
Local’.

Note: Metrics will be reviewed and agreed with the LEO Unit on an annual basis over the next four years.

36 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 62



37Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 63



APPENDIX 2: KOPPER KREATION; CASE STUDY

38 Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 64



MOXI LOVES: CASE STUDY

Start: Moxi Loves 
 
Making It Happen: Irish beauty brand prepares for customs, thanks to LEO Dublin City

Despite suffering a setback which would have been 
fatal to most businesses, Dublin entrepreneur and 
BBC’s The Apprentice contestant Pamela Laird has 
successfully pivoted, launched new products and has 
plans to re-enter the UK market in the coming months. 
Her company, Moxi Loves, is an innovative beauty 
business which currently sells its products through 
Penneys and over 900 pharmacies and retail outlets  
in Ireland.

“We have just launched in Primark and Dunnes, and  
we are also selling into Germany through the QVC 
shopping channel, and into Spain through an online 
retailer,” says Pamela. 

The company’s quite unusual name is a reflection 
of both of its owner and the target market she has 
in mind for her products. “In America, if you’ve got 
determination and drive you’ve got moxie,” she explains. 
“It’s quite a feminine word over there. It can apply to a 
woman who knows what she wants and isn’t afraid  

to bend the rules. I took the ‘e’ off to make it a unique 
word for the business.”

She established the company in 2016 and got going 
in earnest the following year. “I really started off in 
2017 when I got a stocking loan,” she says. “I had been 
working on my first product called Eye Catcher for about 
a year. It was a liquid-filled cotton bud which allowed 
you to cleanse and touch up make-up on the go, 
wherever you are.”

The product proved a hit straightaway and was soon 
selling in retailers across Ireland as well as Primark  
and Boots in the UK. But trouble was around the corner.

“When the new EU rules on single-use plastics were 
announced, it meant we had to phase out the product,” 
says Pamela. “The rules won’t come in until 2020,  
but I decided to move early. I used it as an opportunity 
to pivot the range.”

#MakingItHappenLocalEnterprise.ie/Brexit

Making It Happen

Pamela Laird, Founder, Moxi Loves

#BrexitReady

Page 65



STARTUP STORIES:
GYM + COFFEE
OFF TO A FLYING START: HOW LOCAL ENTERPRISE OFFICE DUBLIN CITY 
HELPED IRISH ATHLEISURE BRAND GYM + COFFEE GET FIT FOR SUCCESS

Making It Happen: Mary MacSweeney of Local 
Enterprise Office Dublin City with Diarmuid 
McSweeney and Karl Swaine of Gym + Coffee

LocalEnterprise.ie/Start
Making It Happen

#MakingItHappen

WHEN FRIENDS DIARMUID MCSWEENEY, 
NIALL HORGAN AND KARL SWAINE CAME 
UP WITH THE IDEA FOR GYM + COFFEE, 
AN ATHLEISURE CLOTHING COMPANY, IT 
WASN’T THEIR FIRST ATTEMPT.

 “We were always bouncing ideas off 
each other, not just for businesses but 
for scripts, screenplays, books, plays. 
We always had some sort of itch,” says 
McSweeney.

McSweeney and Horgan are from Cork,  
and studied at UCC together. They met 
Swaine when they moved to Dublin.

McSweeney worked in advertising and had 
lived in Australia. Horgan worked in IT  
and had travelled frequently to Silicon 
Valley. In both places they saw a growing 
trend among young people not just  
to exercise but to combine it with 

socialising. “It was all about going to the 
gym and grabbing a coffee afterwards,”  
he says.

That gave them the idea not just for an 
online business – but its name.

They spent the first year working on the 
business after work. “That was one of  
the keys to our early success. If we were 
hoping to make a living from it from Day 
One it would have placed too much stress 
on the business,” he says.

Having no experience in either ecommerce 
or the clothing industry didn’t stop them. 
“There was a great luxury in being naive  
in that we weren’t aware of the pitfalls.”

They were highly innovative – and frugal 
– in how they promoted it. “We started a 
Summer Stretch series, running outdoor 

group exercise classes over the weekend. 
The response we got was unbelievable. 
People liked that we were walking the talk. 
For us it’s all about having a healthier 
weekend, not ‘buy our gear’.”

By the end of its first year trading they 
were making six figure revenues but not 
profitable. “We knew we needed to up our 
game.”

They got in touch with Local Enterprise 
Office Dublin City. “They were really helpful. 
They outlined all the supports they could 
offer us and told us how they could help. 
We applied for a Business Priming Grant 
which enabled us to take on our first staff 
member, which freed us up to expand 
further.”

Dundrum, the shopping centre, invited 
them to open a pop up shop for two weeks. 

Page 66



APPENDIX 3: CUSTOMER CHARTER

41Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 2021 – 2024 Development Plan Framework
Page 67



Page 68



Impact Report
LEO Dublin City
2014-2020

Measuring the impact of seven years of 
Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 
2014-2020

Pre-Start

Start

Grow

LocalEnterprise.ie
Making It Happen

In partnership withIn partnership with

STARTING OR GROWING 
YOUR OWN BUSINESS? 
WE PROVIDE INFORMATION, EXPERT ADVICE 
AND PRACTICAL SUPPORTS - LOCALLY

Plan

Start

Grow

LocalEnterprise.ie/Dublin City

Page 69



INDEX

3 Who are we 

4  Welcome 

5 Highlights

6 First Stop Shop  

7 Measure 1 Financial Assistance

8 Other Grants

9 Measure 2 Soft Supports

11 Management Development Training & Mentoring

12 Enterprise Promotion & Awards 

14 Networks

15 Building the Ecosystem

16  Economic Development

18 Closing Remarks

Impact Report 2014 - 2020|2

Page 70



| 3Impact Report 2014 - 2020

Who are We
Small businesses are the heart of the Irish economy. 
Tasked with enterprise development and job creation, 
the Local Enterprise Office Network is the most 
important resource for small businesses in Ireland. 
Located in Dublin City Council, the Local Enterprise 
Office Dublin City is the first stop shop for those looking 
to plan, start, or grow their business.

In April 2014 the existing 35 County Enterprise Boards 
were dissolved and 31 Local Enterprise Offices were 
established within the Local Authority structure.

The Department of Jobs, Enterprise and Innovation 
(DJEI) now The Department of Enterprise Trade 
and Employment (DETE) re-structured the delivery 
of supports for micro-enterprise to enhance the 
national enterprise support model for small and micro 
businesses. This adjustment resulted in a coordinated 
and cohesive approach to the development of micro-
enterprise in Ireland and has the potential to contribute 
significantly to future economic growth and job creation 
across the regions. The LEO model ensures that micro-
enterprise and small business service delivery continues 
with significant local input, within a national micro-
enterprise policy framework.

+=

{The funding for the LEOs comes 
from the Irish Exchequer and the EU 

Structural and Investment Funds.}

On a daily basis, LEO Dublin 
City provides the right 
supports at the right time 
to new and existing small 
businesses, including: 
•  financial assistance and 

access to microfinance loans
•  training and development
•  mentoring and advice 
•  signposting to relevant 

bodies and agencies
•  networking opportunities

Enterprise Ireland
A Framework Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) sets the context 
for the operation of the LEOs by 
the Local Authorities, on behalf 
of Enterprise Ireland (EI). Under 
this SLA, EI plays a significant 
oversight role in the activities of 
the LEOs and, through its Centre 
of Excellence (CoE), ensures 
the appropriate matching and 
linking of national policy and 
programmes with local policies 
and programmes.

Dublin City Council
The City and County Management 
Association (CCMA) is a 
representative body for the Chief 
Executives of City and County 
Local Authorities throughout 
Ireland and has a key role 
in ensuring the successful 
implementation of the LEO 
initiative. The LEO and its sister 
office, The Economic Development 
Office now work side by side 
to strengthen the enterprise 
ecosystem in Dublin City.

Pre-Start

Start

Grow

LocalEnterprise.ie
Making It Happen

In partnership withIn partnership with

STARTING OR GROWING 
YOUR OWN BUSINESS? 
WE PROVIDE INFORMATION, EXPERT ADVICE 
AND PRACTICAL SUPPORTS - LOCALLY

Page 71



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|4

The Local Enterprise Office (LEO) Dublin City is the 
‘first stop shop’ for anyone thinking about starting or 
growing a business in Dublin City. While the enterprise 
environment has been radically altered since the 
establishment of the LEOs in 2014, LEO Dublin City 
continues its committment to a single mission: to 
provide new and existing small businesses with the 
expert advice, tailored training and financial supports 
they need to help them thrive.

This report looks back at the impact LEO Dublin City 
has had in the enterprise ecosystem of our capital city 
from 2014 to 2020.

One of the fundamental principles behind the design 
and operation of the LEOs is that they are uniquely 
placed to be both key stakeholders in national 
enterprise strategy to create jobs in Ireland and at 
the same time remain closely connected to the local 
enterprise ecosystem. LEO Dublin City engages with 
its diverse range of businesses every day to deliver 
valuable supports and actively stays connected so that 
it can innovate to meet the ever-changing needs of its 
clients.

LEO Dublin City works closely with the other LEOs in 
the region - Fingal, South Dublin and Dun Laoghaire 
Rathdown. Some of the areas of cooperation include: 
IBYE; Plato; LEAN; Accelerate; Breakthrough; Local 
Enterprise Week; NEWD; Dublin Food Chain; National 
Awards; Digital School of Food, Dublin Regional 
Enterprise Plan. The Dublin LEOs also work closely 
to ensure a smooth transfer of clients between the 
regions over time.

Covid-19 has 
undoubtedly forced 
the world to adjust, 
adapt, and pivot. The 
LEO reworked how it 
delivered key services 
almost overnight and 
shifted training programmes and mentoring supports 
online. New training events were created to support 
businesses through the pandemic like the online 
Lunch & Learn sessions, and Covid-specific training 
courses. 868 Business Contintuity vouchers, part of a 
national initiative, were delivered through the LEOs and 
1,097 Trading Online Vouchers were approved in 2020 
to help Dublin City businesses sell online.

I am confident that LEO Dublin City will continue to 
support ambitious entrepreneurs in Dublin City to plan, 
start, and grow their businesses in 2021 and beyond.

Owen Keegan, 
Chief Executive Officer, Dublin City Council

Welcome 
from Owen Keegan

Page 72



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 5

Output Highlights 2014 - 2020 

1,766

20,000

16,000

Net jobs created

mentoring
hours

participants 
trained 

1,708
companies supported 

to get online 
(TOVs approved) 156

MFI applications 
submitted

569 applicants 
to the Ireland’s Best 
Young Entrepreneur 

Competition

175 
Technical 

Assistance 

for Micro-Exporters 
grants approved

465
M1 grants 

approved worth 
€7,463,428

1800+
participants on the 

Start Your Own 
Business Programme

Page 73



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|6

The Business Advice Group Clinic is a weekly 
information session for those with a business idea 
they want to develop, or who are looking at self-
employment as a realistic career option, or who have 
recently started a business.

At the heart of Ireland’s entrepreneurial ecosystem, 
the LEO team help their clients navigate the organisations 
that can help their business grow, including:
• Local authorities
• Enterprise Ireland
• Education and Training Boards
• Microfinance Ireland
• Fáilte Ireland
• Enterprise Europe Network
• The Revenue Commissioners
• InterTrade Ireland
• Bord Bia
• Skillnet Ireland
• Credit Review Office
• National Association of Community Enterprise 

Centres
• Dept of Communications, Climate Action and 

Environment
• Dept of Employment Affairs and Social Protection
• Strategic Banking Corporation of Ireland

The Local Enterprise Office is the first stop for Dublin City’s aspiring entrepreneurs. The physical or virtual door is 
always open. Every day, the LEO helps business owners find out more about the supports available to help plan, 
start, or grow a business.

First Stop Shop

”

”

“

“

Diarmuid McSweeney, Gym+Coffee
“We got in touch with Local Enterprise Office Dublin City. They 
were really helpful. They outlined all the supports they could 
offer us and told us how they could help.” If Diarmuid McSweeney 
could do one thing differently it would be to approach the Local 
Enterprise Office even earlier than he did. “Starting a business is 
the hard part - it’s easier to keep the ball rolling than it is to start 
it,” he says. “LEOs partner with you so my advice to anyone with 
an idea is to engage with them early so they can tell you what’s 
available to you and how they can help.”

Mary McSweeney, 
Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic 
Development

“With so much on offer to entrepreneurs 
from banks, state agencies and others 
right now, it can be overwhelming for 
entrepreneurs to identify the supports suited 
to their stage of business development. 
The First Stop Shop operated by the LEO is 
a place to help you navigate the enterprise 
eco-system and identify the supports you 
want to examine and avail of in the short or 
longer term”

3590 people have 
attended these sessions 
between 2014 – 2020.

Page 74



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 7

Feasibility grants are designed to assist with 
researching market demand for a product or service 
and examining its sustainability. 

A business start-up grant, the Priming Grant, is 
available to micro enterprises, within 18 months of 
start-up.

The Business Expansion grant is designed to assist 
the business in its growth phase after the initial 18 
month start-up period.

Financial Assistance
Local Enterprise Offices provide a range of grant assistance to eligible businesses. Known as Measure 1 
Supports, these are designed to help fund start-up costs, expansion plans, and jobs growth.

Type of Grant Number of Grants Approved Approved Amount €

Business Expansion 127                        2,873,000.00

Feasibility/Innovation 184                        1,372,978.28

Priming 154                        3,275,450.00 

Total 465                       7,521,428.28

”
“

Paul McDonald, Sonitus Systems
The business expansion grant “allowed us to build on the success we had. 
I’d absolutely recommend it, there were two aspects to it, not just the 
financial support but also the requirement from the LEO for us to have a 
good plan so from our point of view it was beneficial to sit down and have 
a real think about what we were going to do with the business, where we 
were going to target our investment, our time, and our energy.”

” ”
“ “

Rosanne Longmore, Coroflo
“The very first port of call was our Local Enterprise 
Office [on Wood Quay], and they paid for our very 
first prototype, that prototype unlocked the first 
tranche of funding. We couldn’t be any more 
positive about the support that is there for start-
ups, particularly on the government side. It’s just 
phenomenal in this country.”

Brendan Courtney & Sonya Lennon, 
Lennon Courtney
“LEO Dublin City gave us our first taste of business 
building for Lennon Courtney. By receiving the Priming 
Grant, we came out of the traps, firing on all cylinders. 
It wasn’t easy finding the money to match funding but 
being clear about our objectives and milestones set up 
a system of best practice in the company.”

The Evaluation and Approvals Committee, the powerhouse behind all the 
grant approvals, is the volunteer committee that meets to review and approve 
grant funding. The committee is made up by several members including: a Chair 
(City Assistant Chief Executive Officer delegated by the City or County CEO); an 
Enterprise Ireland representative; and five individuals with specific areas of 
business expertise (i.e. proven entrepreneurship, accountancy experience, 
knowledge of markets/sectors/technology, and banking/financial expertise). The 
LEO recognises the significant commitment the committee makes to supporting 
the work of the office and Dublin City’s entrepreneurs, often reading business 
plans and financial information after their day jobs or over their weekends. 

Progression Pathway to 
Enterprise Ireland
LEOs work with small 
companies looking to export 
or trade internationally, 
helping them to grow to a 
point where they can avail of 
Enterprise Ireland supports.

Summary of Grants Approved 2014-2020

Page 75



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|8

The Local Enterprise Office supports businesses as 
they investigate expanding to new markets to grow 
the business. 

The Technical Assistance for Micro Exporters’ 
grants part-funds the cost of investigating and 
researching export markets e.g., exhibiting at trade 
fairs, preparing marketing material, and developing 
websites specifically targeting overseas markets. 

Microfinance Ireland (MFI) is a not-for-profit lender 
established to deliver the Government’s Microenterprise 
Loan Fund. It provides loans of between €2,000 and 
€25,000 to commercially viable businesses that employ 
fewer than 10 people, with an annual turnover of less than 
€2 million.
Local Enterprise Offices assist client companies with their 
MFI loan applications, which attract a discount on standard 
loan rates. 156 LEO Dublin City clients have been supported 
via mentoring to work through the application process.

The Trading Online Voucher Scheme (TOV) is 
designed to get small firms trading online, opening up 
markets at home and abroad. The initiative involves 
training, advice, and financial assistance. Designed 
under the National Digital Strategy to assist small 
businesses to increase their online trade, the scheme 
is funded by the Department of the Environment, 
Climate, and Communications, and delivered by 
Local Enterprise Offices. LEO Dublin City saw an 
unprecedented level of demand for TOVs during the 
COVID-19 pandemic and supported almost 10 times 
the number of companies to start selling online. 
A total of 1,705 vouchers were approved between 
2014 – 2020 to the value €4,111,578. Of this, 1,097 
vouchers collectively worth €2,698,572 were approved 
in 2020 in reponse to the pandemic. ”

“Aisling Grimley, 
The Silk Pillowcase
“When I wanted 
to pivot ... the 
Trading Online 
Vouchers (TOV) 
was instrumental 
in getting my 
eCommerce site 
and social media in 
place.”

Microfinance Ireland

Financial Assistance

LEO Dublin City invested 
€354,272.36 in 
175 companies 
to research and develop 
their overseas markets 
from 2014-2020.

”“
Niamh Herrity, Pink Kong Studios
“The export grants have been really helpful for us 
when we’re pitching in international market places.”

Page 76



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 9

LEO’s flagship programme for those starting 
to consider everything involved in establishing 
a business is the Start Your Own Business 
Programme. The office runs several 
programmes throughout the year with options 
to attend either midweek or weekend courses. 
Over 1800 participants have enjoyed the 
benefits of this programme.

Training for Craft Businesses
140 ambitious city based enterprises have attended the 
Building Craft and Design Enterprise Programme to inject 
new ideas and approaches to product development into 
their practice. This course runs over several months and 
includes 1 to 1 mentoring sessions and a research mission 
to a London trade show. A select number of companies 
from each LEO are supported with a stand/virtual stand in 
the Enterprise Zone of Showcase Ireland in January every 
year. Showcase is one of the biggest trade shows of the 
year with buyers attending from around the world. 

Training for Food Businesses 
The Food Starter programme is an 
online 4 x 1/2 day programme 
designed to help those with a food 
idea, or those at a very early stage of 
starting up a food business.

Food Academy is a training 
programme aimed at supporting and 
nurturing start-up food businesses. 
The Local Enterprise Offices have 
joined forces with Bord Bia and 
SuperValu on this initiative to provide 
a consistent level of food marketing 
knowledge to new and early-stage 
food business owners. At the final 
workshop, participants get the 
opportunity to present their product 
to a panel from SuperValu and if 
successful, can participate in a trial 
based in local shops, which in the 
right circumstances, could progress 
over time to a national listing with 
SuperValu.

An e-learning hub designed to 
support food producers in developing 
their food manufacturing businesses 
from start-up to the growth phase

Other short training courses include: social media, 
taxation, marketing, sales and more.

Training & Mentoring
Over 16,000 participants have attended training programmes offered by Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 
between 2014 – 2020. The LEO offers a diverse range of training programmes aimed at micro/small business and 
entrepreneurs looking to acquire new skills or develop existing ones. The aim is to enable and equip participants 
to start or grow their own businesses. 

”

”

“

“
”

“
Jenny Huston, Edge Only
“the first thing I did was go to the 
LEO, I signed up for an SYOB and that 
was great to get an overview of what 
I should be doing and also to quickly 
realise where my weak spots were. I took 
advantage, I took every course that they 
had going - taxation, digital marketing, 
websites for SMEs, selling to the US - 
and what I loved about it was that you 
could sign up to loads of them at a really 
inexpensive rate.”

Emmet Bosonnet, 
Kopper Kreation
“I feel that the standard 
in the Local Enterprise 
Showcase at the RDS is 
rising each year and it is a 
real testament to the work 
of the Local Enterprise 
Offices countrywide in 
terms of their support 
of small businesses. A 
lot of people would not be here without the financial 
support that they offer. Then there is the range of 
support that they provide - many of the people here 
have participated alongside me at the course the Local 
Enterprise Office ran throughout the course of the year.

Saturday SYOB Participants November 2017
“It provides a great overview of starting up a 
business” 
“very thorough approach, good trainers” 
“excellent forms and explanation on key 
financial principles” 

Food 
Starter  

Food 
Academy 
etc

Digital 
School of 
Food

Page 77



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|10

The Accelerate Programme provides the 
owners/managers of small businesses in the 
Dublin City Area who have been up and running 
for a minimum of 18 months the management 
leadership skills and business knowledge to 
achieve sustainability and growth in their 
business. LEO Dublin City teams up with the 
other Dublin LEOs to offer this programme and 
has trained over 80 companies in the region over 
the last 7 years.

The Lean for Micro programme helps small 
businesses become more competitive and 
productive by adopting ‘lean’ business principles. 
A Lean expert works with the small business 
to undertake a specific cost reduction project 
and assists the company in benchmarking its 
performance.

The objective of the Green for Micro programme - a 
new initiative from the Local Enterprise Offices - is to help 
prepare small businesses for the low carbon, more resource 
efficient economy of the future. This is a free programme, 
available to companies with up to ten employees.

The Breakthrough Innovation Programme brings 
the client through a disciplined framework to discover 
and analyse where the innovation potential lies in the 
enterprise and how business owners can capitalise on those 
opportunities as they strive for growth. Aimed at established 
businesses (trading on average 3 years+), with between 
3 - 50 employees and turnover of approx. €250,000, The 
Breakthrough Innovation Programme aims to help owner/
managers take their business to the next level by delivering 
sophisticated breakthrough innovations.

The LEO supports the Hi-Start programme, in partnership 
with Enterprise Ireland HPSU Unit, venture funds and angel 
investors to assist ambitious early stage growth focused 
companies to identify and build foundations required to 
secure investment and scale the business in international 
markets.

Training & Mentoring
LEO Dublin City works collectively with other partners to deliver quality management development programmes 
for our clients. Partners include the other Dublin LEOs, Enterprise Ireland and more.

”
“

David Doyle, M.D. of B2B Sell
“Many programmes claim to help you increase 
performance and competitiveness but are 
either impractical or plain ‘snake oil’. However, 
the LEO Lean Programme enables you to build 
a roadmap of how to transform your business 
for the better. If you’re genuinely interested 
in moving your business up to the next level, 
you’ll need to do so from a solid foundation, a 
foundation built on LEAN principals. I couldn’t 
recommend the programme highly enough.”

Page 78



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 11

Local Enterprise Office Dublin City’s Mentor Programme is designed to match the knowledge, skills, insights 
and entrepreneurial capability of experienced business practitioners with small business owner/ managers who 
need practical and strategic one to one advice and guidance. The mentor contributes independent, informed 
observation and advice. 

Mentoring

Over 

8,300 
participants 
have been supported by 
the LEO

”
“

Brian Flynn, Nobó
“There is no doubt in my mind that we wouldn’t be 
where we are without the LEO…What’s been really 
important to us is the support the LEO has given 
us from a mentoring perspective…our background 
wasn’t in food and we’re learning as we go but 
throughout that process we’ve had the support of 
the LEO and the experienced professionals they 
employ [as mentors] to give us guidance.”

Brexit Ready 
As hubs of expert advice, information and practical 
supports, dedicated Local Enterprise Office staff 
have been helping businesses to manage a Brexit 
response and take simple steps to prepare for Brexit. 
LEO supports – such as the ‘Prepare Your Business 
for Customs’ workshops – proved crucial to small 
businesses as the UK exited the Single Market and 
Customs Union as well as one-to-one mentoring 
sessions for Dublin city business owners. 

Covid-19
Since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, LEO Dublin 
City has supported 868 businesses with a Business 
Continuity Voucher, worth up to €2,500 in third 
party consultancy costs, in 2020 to help companies 
and sole traders develop short-term and long-term 
strategies to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic. A 
further 17 enterprises were supported through the 
Micro Enterprise Assistance Fund Grant, a minimum 
of €500 to a maximum €1,000, which was developed 
specifically for those not liable for commercial rates.

The LEO has also adapted to growing demand for 
guidance on navigating the challenge by providing 
targeted  training programmes, networking ‘Lunch & 
Learn’ events, and increased mentoring support.

with almost 

20,000
hours 
of mentoring sessions 
from 2014 – 2020.

Page 79



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|12

Previous Dublin City winners include 

Beats Medical, 
Buymie, and 

Strong Roots.

Local Enterprise Week
This high-profile annual initiative showcases the full 
range of enterprise supports LEOs can offer existing 
and aspiring entrepreneurs. A week-long programme 
of mentoring, advice and networking shines a spotlight 
on the services and supports available to SME’s and 
startups, as well as providing a selection of events 
and workshops, tailored to inspire and inform. Local 
Enterprise Week offers a wealth of opportunity to learn, 
share, inform and contribute to the thriving start-up and 
micro enterprise community in Dublin City. 

Enterprise Promotion & Awards

”

Samuel Dennigan, Strong Roots

National Enterprise Awards
31 companies are shortlisted by the LEOs for 
the National Enterprise Awards every year. The 
series of country-wide competitions culminates 
in the national final which takes place in Dublin’s 
Mansion House each May. 12 winning companies 
across a range of categories share a €40,000 
prize fund to further support their business to 
grow and scale.

Ireland’s Best Young Entrepreneur (IBYE)
This €2 million investment competition was 
established in 2014, soon after the City Enterprise 
Board became the Local Enterprise Office, to 
encourage and support a culture of entrepreneurship among 
young people in Ireland, to promote entrepreneurship as 
a career choice, and to encourage the establishment and 
development of new innovative businesses by Ireland’s 
young entrepreneurs. 

Open to existing and aspiring entrepreneurs aged between 
18 and 35, the competition is run by the LEOs and supported 
by the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Employment and 
Enterprise Ireland. From 24 national finalists, three category 
winners were selected across: Best Business Idea; Best 
Start-up Business and Best-Established Business, with one 
overall winner.  Previous Dublin City winners include Beats 
Medical, Buymie, and Strong Roots.

Local Enterprise Office Dublin City promotes the culture of entrepreneurship 
through a number of local, regional, and national initiatives.

Page 80



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 13

Local Enterprise Village
The first inter- county ploughing contest took place in 1931 as a 
result of an argument between two lifelong friends, Denis Allen of 
Gorey, County Wexford and JJ Bergin of Athy, County Kildare. Each 
argued that their respective counties had the best ploughmen. This 
resulted in a challenge being called for. A record breaking 297,000 
visitors attended the Championships in 
2019*. 31 small businesses are supported 
by their Local Enterprise Office each year 
to exhibit their products and services at 
the Local Enterprise Village at the National 
Ploughing Championships. 

*source: National Ploughing Association

Student Enterprise Programme
Helping to seed the idea of entrepreneurship in secondary 
schools, the Student Enterprise Programme
encourages young people to research, establish and run 
their own businesses, with the help of student  enterprise 
coordinators from the Local Enterprise Office.

Across the past 7 academic years (2014/15 to 2020/21), 
approximately 10,500 students have participated in the Dublin 
City Student Enterprise Programme. 

Over 300 
female entrepreneurs attend 
the event each year.

Approximately  

10,500
 students

have participated

National Women’s Enterprise Day
This Local Enterprise Office initiative is an annual event designed to 
celebrate women in business. Events in the programme are free of 
charge and include workshops, panel discussions, facilitated networking 

to connect more entrepreneurs 
with each other and advice 
and insights from some of 
Ireland’s most successful female 
entrepreneurs. 

31 
small businesses 
are supported 
each year

Page 81



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|14

Networks 

The Women in Business Network is a Local Enterprise Office Dublin City 
initiative for women running their own business. Being an entrepreneur can be 
challenging and the group provides opportunities to share experiences, learn from 
other women and expand the business network. 

The Plato Programme is an 18-month 
programme offers owner/manager’s practical 
training, business counselling and support 
to acquire the skills necessary to help your 
business grow. Plato is based on a network 
principle where large companies, both 
multinational and indigenous Irish companies, 
known as parent companies support small 
companies in their area. 

Over 230 
businesses have joined 
the Plato Programme. 

Membership of the 
network by 2020 
grew to 

154
female 
entrepreneurs in 
Dublin City.

“

”
“
Lorna, L.E.A.F.
“The network has helped me hugely. I joined 
when I had just started the business, it was 
great to get such a wealth of knowledge from 
women who had just started and women 
who had been in industry for years. You get 
so supported and they’re really invested in 
helping you out in any way.”

”
Nik’s Tea
“Our Plato journey built a solid network between the group and offered 
practical solutions & business strategies which has improved our financial, 
employment, branding & future planning. We have come away with 
access to professionals who were guest speakers & leaders which will be 
invaluable long after Plato ends. Can’t recommend highly enough.”

Local Enterprise Office networks are key to provide an opportunity for entrepreneurs 
to come together and support each other as they grow and develop their businesses

Dublin Food Chain is an innovative marketing and networking platform 
representing many of the outstanding food and drink producers based 
throughout Dublin city and county. LEO Dublin City collaborate with the other 
Dublin LEOs to offer this network which delivers 8 events per year. The network 
has over 2,000 members in the Dublin region.

The Enterprise Europe Network helps business grow through tailored 
support, new business and technology partnerships, commercial opportunities, 
licensing deals, and partner searches for EU funded R&D. Services are tailored 
to SMEs but are also available to all other businesses, universities and research 
centre’s. 

Page 82



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 15

Dublin City Libraries Almost 1,500 Dublin City businesses have 
attended free business talks in the Central Library from 2014-2020. 
The Business Information Centre, located in the Central Library in the 
Ilac Shopping Centre, is a quality support for entrepreneurs. It is a one 
stop service specialising in business research, consumers’ economic 
activities, market profiling and career information. Resources on offer 
include free access to consumer and market research databases, 
books, periodicals and reports on starting and growing a business. 
An experienced team has built up a reputation of providing quality 
tailored solutions to users needs. They have assisted start-ups with 
projects ranging from luxury jewellery to soft toys and have provided 
information about markets from Ireland to Armenia. 

Ecosystem Development 
An ability to collaborate with key partners underpins Local Enterprise Office success. LEO Dublin City works 
closely with a range of stakeholders - enterprise centres, coworking spaces, enterprise development agencies 
and other units within Dublin City Council - to build out its enterprise supports and contribute to developing a 
healthy city-wide ecosystem for Dublin’s entrepreneurs. 

”

”

“

“

Phuong Vu BeeInstant 
“There are a lot of risks and challenges for a 
completely new and innovative product/solution. It 
is important to be part of a highly credited startup 
ecosystem to learn from your peers, mentors and 
adjust your business strategy quickly. Dublin BIC 
Investor Ready programme offers entrepreneurs 
well-rounded knowledge, network and credibility to 
help your business take off internationally.”

ReCreate
ReCreate is a successful social 
enterprise which seeks to foster 
creativity, promote social inclusion and 
make a positive environmental impact. 
“We redistribute excess materials 
from businesses for creative reuse. 
This award is going to allow us to work 
with 50 primary schools...and bring 
creativity directly to these schools.”

Dublin Business Innovation Centre (Dublin BIC) 
empowers entrepreneurs to start and scale by providing 
a comprehensive range of programmes specifically 
designed to advance the ambitions of early-stage 
companies. Dublin BIC provides programmes across four 
core areas of expertise: Investor-Ready Preparation – 
85% of Dublin BIC investor-ready start-ups receive 
funding; Access to Finance – 350 start-ups have 
received funding through Dublin BIC; Incubation 
Space – managing two of Ireland’s leading start-up 
and co-working hubs; Community & Collaboration –
In knowledge-sharing, business opportunities and 
networking. Dublin BIC aims to help the next generation 
of Irish entrepreneurs start and scale global businesses

The Larkin Centre provides training, 
mentoring and other support services to 
long term unemployed people who are 
considering self-employment or who 
wish to open up a business. The Larkin 
Centre currently provides a number of 
training options and provide a self-
employed information and support 
service. LEO DCC have made an annual 
contribution towards this important work 
that sees on average 200 people trained 
by the Larkin Centre each year.

Inner City Enterprise ICE is a ‘not for profit’ charity set up to help 
unemployed people in Dublin’s inner city establish their own businesses 
or to create their own self -employment. Since 2015, the annual Dublin 
City Social Enterprise Awards have been managed by ICE and co-
funded through the Department of Rural and Community Development 
and Dublin City Council. The competition includes a development 
programme for the awardee social enterprises, including mentoring, 
training and funding. Almost €240,000 in prize funds has been won 
by social enterprise in Dublin City since the inception of this award 
programme and used to further drive their work.

LEO has also supported the ICE Young Entrepreneur Training 
programme, a four week programme that offers an opportunity  for 
young people aged between 18 -30 to learn more about 
entrepreneurship. Approximately 100 participants attend the 
programme each year.

Page 83



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|16

Sample projects under the Placemaking and Cluster pillar are:

The mission of the Economic support offices 
within Dublin City Council is:
• To support initiatives that will improve the quality of people’s lives. 
• To enhance the ability of the City to attract and retain world-class 

talent through Placemaking. 
• To promote Dublin as an attractive place to 
 live, work, visit and invest. 
• To foster a culture of creativity and innovation in a 
 globally connected City. 
• To engage with economic stakeholders to maximise 
 the alignment and impact of resources. 

Economic Development
The Economic Development Office (EDO) is the sister office of the LEO 
and is closely aligned to the operation and the activities of the Local 
Enterprise Office Dublin City. EDO has responsibility for the promotion of 
economic development in Dublin City. 

The Dublin Economic Monitor is a joint initiative on 
behalf of the four Dublin local authorities to track 
developments in the capital’s economy. While there 
is significant information available on developments 
in the national economy, the Monitor is intended to 
address the absence of a regular bulletin on trends 
in the Dublin economy. It will be of particular interest 
to all those doing business in Dublin, work and live in 
Dublin, or are planning to do so. 
A key objective of the Monitor is to develop and 
publish new data series each quarter to increase 
our understanding of the performance of the Dublin 
economy. It involves collaboration with IHS MARKIT to 
develop a Dublin Purchasing Manager Index (PMI). The 
Monitor also includes the Mastercard SpendingPulse 
to deliver unique insights for consumer and tourism 
spending in Dublin. dublineconomy.ie.

Research projects are regularly conducted by EDO. 
EDO continues to develop the details for a framework 
to deliver on a range of research topics into key 
challenge, sectors and issues directly affecting the 
citizens of Dublin.  The outputs of the research will 
be disseminated in a manner designed to influencing 
decision makers within and beyond the Local 
Government sector. The proposed framework would be 
based on the triple Helix model of Industry + Academia 
+ Government.  This model will assist DCC in using a 
robust methodology that will allow for the independent 
verification of research findings.  It is intended that this 
framework will provide the “evidence base” for decision 
making and policy interventions.  Research will be 

divided into short sprints, deep dives and full reports.  
An example of this work is recent research conducted 
by the Economic Development Office in order to gain 
a better understanding of enterprise and co-working 
spaces in Dublin and their impact, Enterprise and co-
working spaces provide start-ups, entrepreneurs and 
freelance workers with much needed space, services, 
supports or links to supports and access to networks, 
knowledge and collaboration opportunities. These 
spaces therefore constitute a vital element of the 
start-up and enterprise ecosystem. 

Dublin City Council’s efforts and commitment to 
support social enterprise development has led Dublin’s 
involvement in the European Commission – European 
Social Economy Regions Project over the last few 
years. The objective of the project is to build networks 
of Social Economy and Social Enterprise stakeholders, 
encourage collaboration and to raise awareness about 
the Social Economy at regional and local level.

The Guinness Enterprise Centre (GEC)
The GEC is a global entrepreneurial superhub. Based in 
Dublin 8 and managed by DBIC, this world class centre 
home to 160+ start-up companies: 100+ co-working 
companies, 800+ entrepreneurs & innovators. The GEC 
has added two new floors to bring the size of the centre 
to 100,000sq ft of enterprise space. This expansion 
was supported by Dublin City Council through a loan 
guarantee and the support of the Enterprise Ireland’s 
Regional Enterprise Development Funds.

Projects are undertaken under the 
following pillars: 

• Placemaking & Clusters; 
• Promotion & Investment; 
• Human Development; 
• Innovation & Transformation

Page 84



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 17

Sample projects under the Promotion and Investment pillar are:

The Dublin City 
Promotion Campaign 
provides video, digital 
and physical marketing 
material designed to 
showcase Dublin as a 
great place to live, work, 
study, and invest.

MODOS, a joint initiative of Dublin City Council 
and the Waste Management Plan Lead Authority 
(WMPLA), is a circular economy training 
programme for micro, small and medium size 
enterprises. The programme comprises dynamic 
training and online classes on the topic of circular 
economy principles, sustainable supply chain, 
resource efficiency, design thinking and customer 
engagement, as well as networking events and 
webinars. 

Dublin.ie launched in March 2016 and has won a Web Award for the 
best government/local government website. The site acts as a city 
branding website and promotes living, working, learning and events 
in Dublin. The site is designed for both national and international 
audiences. We aim to attract skilled talent, global investment, start-
ups and students, whilst promoting sustainability and inspiring those 
already living here to make the most of their Dublin experience. The 
site has had 3,381,700 total visits since the site was launched.

ENFUSE is a new initiative developed by the Economic 
Development Unit and LEO Dublin City. ENFUSE matches 
LEO clients with master level students in DCU, TU Dublin or 
NCI who produce a bespoke plan for the enterprise on how 
to innovate, address challenges, develop opportunities etc. 
Over the last 3 years 57 LEO clients, including 19 social 
enterprises have participated in this programme.  

Sample projects under the  Climate and Transformation pillar are:

Economic Development

Dublin City Council, through the Economic Development Office, is 
delighted to support events and initiatives which align with the 
mission of innovating, collaborating and growing enterprise in 
Dublin City. The Economic Development Office supports a number 
of events for the promotion of city and its entrepreneurial 
ecosystem. 

Sample events sponsored by EDO are: 
Pendulum; The Responsible Innovation Summit; 
Dublin Tech Summit; Startup Week and…

FutureScope: ‘where business gets done’
Since 2016, 1300+ of those most active in the 
tech and entrepreneurial ecosystems gather 
at FutureScope in the Convention Centre 
Dublin to explore the implications of emerging 
technologies. FutureScope attracts innovators 
and innovation seekers. It aims to identify 
collaboration opportunities between high caliber key 
ecosystem members including: investors, startups, 
scaleups, industry, corporates, state supports, 
research centres, entrepreneurial accelerators / 
incubators and consultants

Business leaders share insights on the challenges coming 
down the track, how emerging technologies will impact on 
business and society, the market opportunities that will 
arise and the implications of disruption and innovation. 

has been invested as a result of 
connections facilitated at the event, 
as well as increased awareness 
raising of key funders in the 
Irish Ecosystem including: LEOs, 

Enterprise Ireland, The Halo Business Angel Network, 
Corporate investors and Venture Capital firms.

Over €7 
Million

Page 85



Impact Report 2014 - 2020|18

On behalf of LEO Dublin City, I would like to thank 
Dublin City Council for welcoming the LEO into the 
local authority structure and working to integrate the 
LEO into the Council over the last 7 years. I also wish 
to acknowledge the support and guidance received 
from the LEO Unit – the LEO Centre of Excellence 
– in Enterprise Ireland as we transitioned from City 
Enterprise Board to Local Enteprise Office and worked 
to establish and position the Local Enterprise Office 
both as part of a national network of offices and an 
on-the-ground local hub of expertise and enterprise 
supports.

The environment for small business owners has 
dramatically changed since the Dublin City Enterprise 
Board became the Local Enterprise Office Dublin City in 
2014. At that time, Ireland’s economy was in recovery 
mode. Since then, Ireland’s business 
owners have faced several challenges 
– a difficulty with attracting and 
retaining talent as the economy 
began to flourish again; then the task 
of learning, planning, and adapting 
for the uncertainty and change that 
came with Brexit; and most recently 
the global Covid-19 pandemic. As 
the external circumstances changed, 
so too have Dublin City businesses. 
Our team has witnessed immense 
levels of adaptation, innovation, resilience in our client 
companies. We have and will be right there with these 
businesses, their back-room support team, as they 
plan, start, and grow businesses in the city.

Over the next seven year period, LEO Dublin City will 
continue to strive to provide first class support to the 
enterprise ecosystem in Dublin City. A key focus will 
be to maximise opportunities for job creation and 
retention, attained through: 
1.  Creating and raising local enterprise awareness 

and developing an enterprise culture and 
community-based enterprise activity 

2.  Providing a single/ first point of contact service 
to the business community – providing business 
advice, direction and signposting , business 
counselling and mentoring 

3.  Providing support to private sector and 
community initiatives to secure the 
establishment and/or expansion of commercially 
viable micro-enterprise projects

4.  Providing 
comprehensive pre- 
and post-start-up 
support to new and 
expanding micro 
enterprises 

5.  Influencing the 
allocation of 
resources for micro-
enterprise from EU, private and public funding 
sources 

6.  Promoting the general economic development of 
Dublin City

Local Enterprise Office Dublin City and the Economic 
Development Office will monitor the trends over the 
next 12 months and beyond to measure the true 

impact of the pandemic as government 
payment supports begin to be phased 
out. Only then will the true impact of 
the pandemic begin to emerge with 
businesses in specific sectors such as 
hospitality and tourism having little or 
no cash flow over the previous 12-18 
months. Already in 2021, we are seeing 
an increased demand for a range of 
LEO supports.

Finally, I would like to recognise and 
thank the staff of LEO Dublin City for their work 
over the last number of years. We have an amazing 
team who have gone above and beyond to meet the 
increasing demand for services, particularly in the last 
year as we responded to the challenges of Covid-19.

We look forward to continually adapting right alongside 
new and exisiting LEO clients to deliver the right LEO 
supports at the right time to Dublin City businesses as 
we collectively navigate our way out of the pandemic, 
and to vigorously promote the economic development 
of the city.

Greg Swift, 
Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 
Dublin City 

Closing Remarks

“We have and will be 
right there with these 

businesses, their back-
room support team, as 

they plan, start, and 
grow businesses 

in the city.”

Page 86



Impact Report 2014 - 2020 | 19

Page 87



Pre-Start

Start

Grow

LocalEnterprise.ie
Making It Happen

In partnership withIn partnership with

STARTING OR GROWING 
YOUR OWN BUSINESS? 
WE PROVIDE INFORMATION, EXPERT ADVICE 
AND PRACTICAL SUPPORTS - LOCALLY

 
 
 

LocalEnterprise.ie/DublinCity/
@LEO_DublinCity
@LocalEnterpriseOfficeDublinCity
company/leo-dublin-city/
/LEODublinCity

Find out more at:

Page 88



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 1 | P a g e  

 

Table of Contents 
EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 Launch................................................................. 2 

European Programme Support Office (EPSO) Establishment............................................................. 5 

Strategic Objectives: EPSO Alignment ........................................................................................... 5 

Progress Overview on the EPSO: 7 Core Deliverables ........................................................................ 6 

1. Operational Developments .................................................................................................... 6 

Recruitment: ............................................................................................................................. 6 

CRM System: ............................................................................................................................. 6 

2. Corporate Governance .......................................................................................................... 7 

3. EPSO Project Participation Appraisal Process  ......................................................................... 7 

4. Communications.................................................................................................................... 8 

5. Training & Development Programme ..................................................................................... 8 

6. European Expert Framework ................................................................................................. 8 

7. Events ................................................................................................................................... 8 

Appendix 1: European Programmes Schedule of Events: September – December 2021 ............... 9 

Appendix 2: EPSO Development 2021 Timeframe: ........................................................................10 

 

 

 

Economic Development & Enterprise  
Strategic Policy Committee 

 

European Programme Support Office 
(EPSO): 

Progress Report: 
 

14th September 2021 
 

Page 89



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 2 | P a g e  

EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 Launch 

 

Launch Event: 

Dublin City Council's Economic Development Office and International Relations Office 

hosted the launch of Dublin City Council's EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 

on 20th July 2021. 

 

This strategy launch took place at a critical time in the history of our city, our coun try and 

the European Union. It was extremely timely with the visit of President of the European 

Commission Ursula von der Leyen to Dublin within the same week; announcing a post -Covid 

investment package, which showcased that the EU and Ireland are moving towards 

recovery. 

 

The launch event, with 150 registered attendees, hosted by the Lord Mayor of Dublin Alison 

Gilliland, chaired by Cllr Claire O’Connor, chair of the EDE SPC, heard from representatives 

from the European Commission, Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly and Dublin City 

Council. Minister of State for European Affairs, Minister Thomas Byrne noted the proactive 

approach of Dublin City Council & for ensuring policies, procedures & structures are in place 

for Ireland’s capital city to play a leading  part in EU Programmes during the new EU Budget 

cycle.  

 

Programme and Schedule of Launch Event Agenda: 

09:00    Launch Event 

 

Opening     Cllr Claire O’Connor, Chair of Economic Development & Enterprise SPC  

Welcome:    Lord Mayor of Dublin Alison Gilliland 

National Context:  Minister Thomas Byrne, Minister for European Affairs 

European Commission: Willem Noë, European Semester Officer, European Commission 

Representation in Ireland 

Dublin Regional Context:  Jim Conway, Director, Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly 

Dublin City Context:  Richard Shakespeare, Chief Executive, Dublin City Council  

09.40    Panel Discussion: 

 Willem Noë, European Semester Officer, European Commission Representation in Ireland 

 Jim Conway, Director, Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly 

 Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Economic Development & Enterprise, Dublin City Council  

 Cllr Claire O’Connor, Chair of Economic Development & Enterprise SPC  

Moderated by: Wessel Badenhorst, Director, Urban Mode Ltd 

09.50                            Closing Remarks 

10:00    Event Close 

 

 

 

Page 90



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 3 | P a g e  

Strategy Development: 

 

A year-long process was undertaken for the development of this strategy, bringing together 

City, Regional, National and European voices to share their focus for the next 7 year 

programme period and discuss opportunities for Dublin City, to continue to build a better 

future for those who live, work and visit our Capital city.   

 

Our thematic approach focused on Regional & Urban Development; Horizon Europe; Social 

and Culture & Green and Smart. Throughout the developmental process we gathered 

baseline data to reflect on the participation of Dublin City Council departments and sections 

in EU Programmes during the previous EU budget cycle (2014 to 2020) , and held 5 

information sharing sessions to examine the opportunities for participation in the new EU 

budget cycle (2021 - 2027). Proceedings from the sessions informed the strategy for Dublin 

City Council participation in future EU Programmes.  

We would like to thank all our contributors with Dublin City Council elected members; our 

Strategic Policy Committee members; the European Commission Representation in Ireland, 

Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly; Irish Regions European Office; National Contact Points 

from Enterprise Ireland, Léargas, The Wheel, the Arts Council; and colleagues from the 

Higher Education Institutes across Dublin (DCU, Trinity, TU Dublin and UCD); along with our 

colleagues in Codema, Smart Cities and across Dublin City Council on shared learnings and 

opportunities. 

 

This strategy will support the identification of opportunities within the EU Partnership 

Programmes and Projects and EU funding streams to realise Dublin City Council priorities 

but also contribute to the target areas identified by the European Commission and set out in 

the six EU pillars and the seven EC Flagships areas. It will also allow Dublin City Council to 

further develop policy alignment; capacity building; regional cooperation; public 

consultation; networking opportunities and reputation enhancement through innovative 

approaches and additionally through EU partnership projects   

Table 1: Dublin City Council Strategic Policy Committee Presentations on EU Strategy:  

Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 – Presentation to SPCs 

No SPC Date  Time Status 
1 Economic Development & Enterprise 12th Jan 3.30pm – 5.30pm  Completed 

2 Planning  23rd Feb  3.30pm – 5.30pm  Completed 

3 Finance  25th Mar  2.30pm – 4.30pm  Completed 
4 Climate Action, Environment & Energy 31st Mar  3.30pm – 5.30pm  Completed 

5 Housing & Community 14th April  11am – 1pm  Completed 
6 Arts, Culture, Leisure & Recreation 17th May  9.30 – 11.30 Completed 

7 Traffic & Transport 25th May 3pm – 5pm  Completed 

 

Page 91



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 4 | P a g e  

Imagery 1: Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 - 2027 Launch Event  

    

 

                

          

Page 92



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 5 | P a g e  

 

European Programme Support Office (EPSO) Establishment 

The EU Programme Participation Strategy implementation Steering Committee continue to 

meet on implementing the strategy with the establishment and development of the 

European Programme Support Office (EPSO) for the organisation. 

Priorities to date include resource recruitment; tender brief development to establishment a 

framework of European expertise; establishment of corporate governance, procedures and 

protocols for the operations of the office; developing a communications strategy and event 

programme schedule to year end. 

Table 2: EU Programme Participation Strategy Implementation Steering Committee Mtgs: 

EU Programme Participation Strategy Implementation Steering Committee Mtgs: 
Mth SPC Date  
1 February 2021 12th; 25th  

2 March 2021 12th; 25th 

3 April 2021 22nd  
4 May 2021 20th; 27th  

5 June 2021 3rd; 10th; 17th; 24th 
6 July 2021 15th; 22nd 

7 August 2021 23rd; 25th 

Strategic Objectives: EPSO Alignment  

The establishment and development of the EPSO aligns to the 7 Strategic Objectives of the 

Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027. 

1. To ensure that any participation in an EU partnership project by DCC staff contributes to 

the goals and policy objectives of the European Union and Dublin City Council.  

2. To promote participation in EU partnership projects which will measurably contribute to 

the capacity of DCC to meet its mission and public obligations. 

3. To cooperate with relevant bodies such as national contact points of EU Programmes, 

the Eastern and Midlands Regional Assembly (EMRA) and the Irish Regions European 

Office (IREO) that will assist with the participation of Dublin City Council staff in EU 

partnership projects. 

4. To engage with local communities and targeted beneficiaries matching where possible 

intended impacts with local needs. 

5. To build the international reputation of DCC and the city of Dublin through participation 

in EU partnership projects. 

6. To use participation in EU partnership projects to promote innovation in the operations 

of DCC that is green and smart and that enables openness, diversity and social inclusion. 

7. To ensure that participation in EU partnership projects brings additionality to the 

services of DCC.    

 

Page 93



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 6 | P a g e  

Progress Overview on the EPSO: 7 Core Deliverables 

The establishment of the EPSO and development of the 7 core deliverables of the office has 

continued throughout Q2 & Q3. The EPSO development timeframe for 2021 is illustrated in 

Appendix 2 attached. 

1. Operational Developments 

Recruitment:  

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 6; 7 

Resource recruitment for the EPSO took place during June and first team members joined 

the EU Programme Support Office in July with the appointment of two graduates on 5th July 

2021 under the Local Government Recruitment drive. Maria Julia Chicotti joins the team 

under the Marketing & Communications strand and Muskan Sahdev joins the team under 

the Economic Development & Enterprise strand.  

As the remaining roles within the EPSO are new roles within the organisation, a business 

case was developed and will be submitted to the Department of Housing, Local Government 

and Heritage for sanctioning of these new roles. This follows the normal procedure within 

Local Government for new roles as they are established. As soon as possible after sanction 

from the Department, a recruitment drive will be undertaken to fill these remaining roles. In 

the interim the management and development of the EPSO falls within the Economic 

Development Office under the CRES Department.  

CRM System: 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 6; 7 
 

Throughout August 2021 a number of meetings were held to development the best practice 

options for the EPSO for various CRM systems examining: 

i. Internal – Sharepoint 

ii. Internal – Councillor Portal  

iii. External – Website & Social Media Platforms  

In the interim, while these platforms are being developed; details on the Dublin City Council 

EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 - 2027 launch are being hosted under the 

Economic Development Office section on the Dublin City Council website and being 

disseminated via the EDO Twitter account and Dublin City Council twitter account.  

Table 3: CRM Development Meetings: 

EPSO CRM Development Meetings: 

Mth SPC Date  
1 IS Portal  10th August 

2 HDO Tracker 11th August 
3 Digital Transformation Unit 12th August 

4 Programme Management  12th August  
5 Digital Strategy Interaction  13th August  

6 Digital Transformation Unit 19th August 

7 Digital Transformation Unit 23rd August 

Page 94



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 7 | P a g e  

2. Corporate Governance 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 5; 6; 7 

A suite of Procedure & Protocol practices are currently being examined to develop best 
practice approaches within the EPSO. These will be progressed in the weeks and months 
ahead.  Core Priority 2 will be progressed in the weeks and months ahead as per Appendix 2.  

3. EPSO Project Participation Appraisal Process 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 1; 6; 7 

An evaluation process is currently being developed to examine participation in various EU 

Programme opportunities. The evaluation process is in line with the Dublin City Council 

Objectives 2020 – 2024; the Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 

2027 and the EU Goals 2021 – 2027. Elements of the evaluation process are outlined in Table 

4 and 5 below. Core Priority 3 will be progressed in the weeks and months ahead as per 

Appendix 2.  

 

Table 4: Alignment to Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 - 2027 
Dublin City Council – Benefits of Participating  

1 Policy Alignment 
2 Capacity Building 

3 Regional Cooperation 
4 Network Building 

5 Reputation Enhancement 

6 Innovative Approaches 

7 Financial contributions 
 

Table 5: Evaluation of IURC Involvement: EPSO Matrix Review:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

EU 
Goals 
2021 - 

2027 

Dublin City Council Objectives 2020 – 2024 

 A Green, 
Low 
Carbon 
City 

Safe, Thriving 
Neighbourhoods 

A 
Strong, 
Diverse 
Economy 

Compact 
Growth with 
Connected 
Infrastructure 

Active, 
Inclusive 
Communities 

A 
Vibrant 
Cultural 
Life  

Smarter 
Europe 

      

Greener, 
Carbon-Free 
Europe 

      

Connected 
Europe 

      

Social 
Europe 

      

Europe 
Closer to 
Citizens 

      

 

 

Page 95



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 8 | P a g e  

4. Communications 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 3; 5; 6 

Research, analysis and a number of communication development meetings have taken place to  

examine best practice approaches for EPSO communications.   

A Communication Strategy & Action Plan will be developed in the months ahead for both: 

i. Internal Communications 
ii. External Communications 

 
Table 6: Communication Development Meetings: 

EPSO Communications Development Meetings: 
Mth SPC Date  

1 Communications & Marketing Research Mtg – Smart Cities  12th August 
2 Communications & Marketing Research Mtg – Smart Cities  23rd August 

3 Digital Media Policy  - Communications Unit 1st September 
4 Digital Media Policy  - Communications Unit 3rd September 

5 Social Media Strategy  - Communications Unit 6th September 

 
Core Priority 4 will be progressed in the weeks and months ahead as per Appendix 2.  

5. Training & Development Programme 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 3; 6; 7 

A framework is being examined with potential opportunities for training & development 
programmes for all stakeholders who will be supported by the EPSO: 

i. Internal – EU Programme Support Office Team  

ii. Internal – DCC Staff  

iii. Internal – Councillors and Elected Members 

 

Core Priority 5 will be progressed in the weeks and months ahead as per Appendix 2 in line 
with the Strategic Objective for capacity building across the organisation.  

6. European Expert Framework 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 5; 6; 7 

A tender brief is being drafted for review to progress through a procurement process via 
the eTender platform for the establishment of a European expert framework, which can be 
utilized by the organisation via the EPSO. Core Priority 6 will be progressed in the weeks and 
months ahead as per Appendix 2.  

7. Events 

Strategic Objective Alignment: 4; 5; 6; 7 
Research, analysis and a review has taken place on a number of upcoming EU Programme events  

taking place for the remainder of 2021, as highlighted in Appendix 1. Development will continue of  

the EPSO suite & schedule of events in line with Strategic Objective 4, 5, 6 and 7 of the EU strategy 

implementation. Core Priority 7 will be progressed in the weeks and months ahead as per  

Appendix 1 and Appendix 2.  

Page 96



EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 9 | P a g e  

Appendix 1: European Programmes Schedule of Events: September – December 2021 

September 2021 EU Programmes Events List  

S.No.  EU Programme  Title Date Time Venue 

1 CIVITAS Velo-city 2021  06-09 Sept 21    Virtual 
2 CIVITAS E-buses: from pilots to mainstreaming  09-10  Sept 21  14:30-17:30  Venue 

3 CERV 
European Defence Fund (EDF): Information Day & Networking 
Event  

15-17  Sept 21  09:00-18:00 Virtual 

4 
LIFE 

LIFE ADAPTATE final conference online 
16 September 2021, 10:00 to 16 September 2021, 13:15  

16-Sep-21 10:00-13:15 Virtual 

5 
The Urban Agenda 
for the EU 

The Productive City: How are urban initiatives and actions 
supporting Green, Just and Productive Cities in the EU?  
 

20-Sep-21 14:00-16:00 Virtual 

6 
The Urban Agenda 
for the EU 

The Green City: How are urban initiatives and actions supporting 
Green, Just and Productive Cities in the EU?  
 

27-Sep-21 14:00-16:00 Virtual 

7 LIFE Circwaste webinar: Boosting the Circular Economy  29-30  Sept 21  09:00-17:00 Virtual 

October 2021 EU Programmes Events List  
S.No.  EU Programme  Title Date Time Venue 

1 The Urban Agenda 
for the EU 

The Just City: How are urban initiatives and actions supporting 
Green, Just and Productive Cities in the EU?  

04-Oct-21 14:00-16:00 Virtual 

2 Horizon Europe EPOSS ANNUAL FORUM 2021  04-07 Oct 
21  

  Virtual 

3 UIA European Week of Regions and Cities  11-14 Oct 21    Virtual 
4 CIVITAS ITS World Congress 2021  11-15 Oct 21  09:00-17:00  Virtual 

5 CIVITAS CIVITAS Forum Conference 2021  20-21 Oct 21    Hybrid 

November 2021 EU Programmes Events List  
S.No.  EU Programme  Title Date Time Venue 

1 Horizon Europe EFECS 2021  23-25 Nov    Virtual 

2 CIVITAS ECOMM 2021  24-26 Nov    Virtual 

December 2021 EU Programmes Events List  
S.No.  EU Programme  Title Date Time Venue 

1 CIVITAS POLIS Annual Conference 2021  01-02 Dec  09:00-15:00 Virtual 

P
age 97

https://civitas.eu/events/velo-city-2021
https://civitas.eu/events/e-buses-from-pilots-to-mainstreaming
https://ec.europa.eu/defence-industry-space/european-defence-fund-edf-information-day-networking-event_en
https://ec.europa.eu/defence-industry-space/european-defence-fund-edf-information-day-networking-event_en
https://cinea.ec.europa.eu/events/life-adaptate-final-conference-online_en
https://cinea.ec.europa.eu/events/life-adaptate-final-conference-online_en
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://cinea.ec.europa.eu/events/circwaste-webinar-boosting-circular-economy_en
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://futurium.ec.europa.eu/en/urban-agenda/events/series-webinars-2021-how-are-urban-initiatives-and-actions-supporting-green-just-and-productive
https://horizoneurope.ie/event/eposs-annual-forum-2021
https://uia-initiative.eu/en/news/uia-european-week-regions-and-cities-save-dates
https://civitas.eu/events/its-world-congress-2021
https://civitas.eu/forum2021
https://horizoneurope.ie/event/efecs-2021
https://civitas.eu/events/ecomm-2021
https://civitas.eu/events/polis-annual-conference-2021


EU Programme Support Office (EPSO) Progress Report September  2021 10 | P a g e  

Appendix 2: EPSO Development 2021 Timeframe: 

 

 

P
age 98



EU PROGRAMME 
SUPPPORT OFFICE 
(EPSO)

Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager

Culture, Recreation & Economic Services 

P
age 99



EU Programme Participation Strategy
2021 – 2027 

Launch

2

P
age 100



EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027
Launch Event

Following presentation at 7 DCC SPCs

Hosted on 20th July 2021

150 registered attendees

Expert Panel Discussion

Lord Mayor of Dublin Alison Gilliland 

Welcome Address

Chaired by SPC Chair, Cllr Claire O Connor

European Commission Representation in 

Ireland Presentation

Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly 

Presentation

3

P
age 101



EU PROGRAMME SUPPORT OFFICE (EPSO) 
ESTABLISHMENT

4

• Resource Recruitment

• Corporate Governance

• Procedures & Protocols

• Tender Brief

• Comms Strategy

• Event Programme

EU PROGRAMME PARTICIPATION 
STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION 

STEERING COMMITTEE

15 MEETINGS TO DATE

PRIORITIES TO DATEP
age 102



EU PROGRAMME SUPPORT OFFICE (EPSO) 
EU STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ALIGNMENT

5

POLICY ALLIGNMENT

CAPACITY BUILDING 

REGIONAL COOPERATION

NETWORK BUILDING 

PRIORITIES TO DATE

REPUTATIONAL ENHANCEMENT 

INNOVATICE APPROACHES

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

P
age 103



EPSO DEVELOPMENT TIMEFRAME 
JAN –AUGUST 2021

9

P
age 104



EPSO 
CORE PRIORITIES

7

7

CORE 

PRIORITIES

Operational 
Developments

Corporate 
Governance

EPSO Project Participation 
Appraisal Process

Communications
Training & 

Development 

European Expert 
Framework 

Events

P
age 105



EPSO PROGRESS OVERVIEW 
7 CORE PRIORITIES

OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS

Recruitment 

• First Roles Filled – July 2021

• New Roles required Departmental sanction

CRM Systems 

• Development underway

• 7 Development meetings held to date

Procedure

• Suite of practices being examined

• Best Practice Approaches bring developed 

Protocol

• Suite of practices being examined

• Best Practice Approaches bring developed 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

8

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 6; 7

Strategic Objective Alignment: 5; 6; 7

P
age 106



EPSO PROGRESS OVERVIEW 
7 CORE PRIORITIES

EPSO PROJECT APPRAISAL PROCESS

Evaluation Process being developed aligning 
to:

• Dublin City Council Objectives 2020 – 2024

• DCC EU Programme Participation Strategy 
2021 – 2027

• EU Goals 2021 - 2027

A Communication Strategy & Action Plan 
being developed for both:

• Internal Communications

• External Communications

5 Development meetings held to date

COMMUNICATIONS

9

Strategic Objective Alignment: 1; 6; 7

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 3; 5; 6

P
age 107



EPSO PROGRESS OVERVIEW 
7 CORE PRIORITIES

TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT 

Training & Development Opportunities being 
examined for all stakeholders:

Internal – EU Programme Support Office Team 

Internal – DCC Staff 

Internal – Councillors and Elected Members

Tender brief is being drafted to 
progress procurement process:

• Establishment of a European expert 
framework 

EUROPEAN EXPERT FRAMEWORK

10

Strategic Objective Alignment: 2; 3; 6; 7

Strategic Objective Alignment: 5; 6; 7

P
age 108



EPSO PROGRESS OVERVIEW 
7 CORE PRIORITIES

EPSO EVENTS 

Development of EPSO suite & 
schedule of events in line with 
Strategic Objective

EU Programme events to year end:
• Upcoming EU Programme events 
• taking place for the remainder of 2021

reviewed, research, and analysed
• In line with Programmes which align to 

DCC strategic objectives.  

EU PROGRAMME EVENTS 

11

Strategic Objective Alignment: 4; 5; 6; 7

Strategic Objective Alignment: 4; 5; 6; 7

P
age 109



EU PROGRAMME EVENT CALENDAR
SEPT – DECEMBER 2021

9

P
age 110



EPSO DEVELOPMENT TIMEFRAME 
SEPT – DECEMBER 2021

9

P
age 111



Q & AP
age 112



EDE SPC Developing a new Vision for Dublin     1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Economic Development & Enterprise (EDE) 

Strategic Policy Committee 

Developing a new Vision for Dublin 

14th September 2021 

 

 

There is an opportunity for bold thinking and a new framework to position Dublin as a dynamic 

and leading City of the Future – and enhance its resilience and competitiveness.   

Context  

The challenges facing all cities, including Dublin, in the post Covid world are complex and 

inter-related1. Some of these challenges were existent pre-Covid and have been expedited or 

exposed by it – others are consequential of it. In terms of thematic focus, the impacts of all 

appear to centre on (1) Environmental quality (2) Socio-Economic impacts (3) Management 

and Governance and (4) New transportation and design principles.   

Each challenge has a relative economic impact or indeed a potential upside but there is lack 

of clarity in relation to the extent now and in the future. The relativity is important as Local 

Authorities have multiple priorities but limited budgets and need a more data driven optic on 

return of investment for discretionary programmes.   

Through the pandemic, Local Authorities have been the main agents of policy implementation 

set at a national level and whilst the situation remains somewhat fluid, there is recognition that 

now is a better time to start building for the future – this is more than just recovery. Overall, 

existing knowledge within cities such as Dublin shows that Covid-19 entails a generational 

opportunity for planners and policy makers to take transformative actions towards creating 

cities that are more just, resilient, and sustainable.   

  

                                                 
1 The COVID-19 pandemic: Impacts on cities and major lessons for urban planning, design, and management.  

  

Page 113



EDE SPC Developing a new Vision for Dublin     2 | P a g e  
 

  

  

The narrative against cities has been unhelpful and unrealistic. Cities are home to most of the 

world’s population and are centres of economic growth and innovation. They are and will 

remain core economic hubs but there is no doubt, this is a seminal point to pivot to a new 

Vision and framework for Dublin to support the transformation from a retail, car dominated and 

business centric hot spot to a more sustainable and balanced hub focussed on the need of 

residents. Many eminent urbanists including Jacobs and Gehl argue this is central for long 

term success. This is imperative because the high concentration of people and activities in 

cities make them vulnerable to various stressors.   

The Vision and actions required are distinct from the current raft of Recovery strategies and 

plans. In the main, these plans are looking at tactical interventions to help cities return to the 

pre-Covid starting point along discrete lines, but this is not really desirable or conducive to a 

future proof foundation for economic and social prosperity.  

Dublin City Council has engaged OCO and eutopia to work on developing a new vision for 

Dublin.  OCO Global is a leading economic development advisory firm with 120 consultants 

worldwide across a network of international cities including Dublin, Belfast, London, Paris, 

Frankfurt, New York, Dubai and Tokyo. OCO has successfully delivered more than 1000 

significant advisory projects in economic development and is retained as an advisor to key 

Government departments at a national and state level in all major economies in relation to 

Trade and Investment and place issues. eutopia is an OCO spin out, established in 2020 and 

focused on place-based issues ranging from place management through to regeneration (High 

Street) and place marketing.   

Page 114



EDE SPC Developing a new Vision for Dublin     3 | P a g e  
 

In recognition of the complexity and the level of interconnectedness involved in managing a 

city like Dublin a series of consultations and workshops are being arranged which will have 

input from internal and external stakeholders including city officials and the Lord Mayor and 

Party Leaders. 

The new framework has the potential to have a transformative influence on urban recovery –

ensuring that Dublin can position itself as a leading European capital as well as a great place 

to live, work, study, invest and 

visit. The Invest and Work pillars 

are important as we know there 

will be impacts of the changing 

patterns of working driven by both 

employers and employees.  

This is a risk factor for Dublin even 

if the current predictions are 

overstated with less footfall 

coming into the city and a likely contraction in commercial office space.  

  

A key theme of the new framework will be that Dublin needs to transform as a City based 

around the need of all of its residents. Even though it is currently a successful city by many 

measures, this will not make it future proof. Taking a resident centric approach is important as 

they have more autonomy and flexibility in terms of work patterns and remote working options 

and a much greater choice in procurement of goods and services through online channels.  

The key issues in this discussion will centre on:  

1. Improving urban data  

2. Developing flexible and inclusive strategies  

3. Understanding the city density and structural conditions  

4. Enhancing social protection and income support  

5. Strategies for a green and blue recovery  

6. Recognising enterprise engagement  

  

Page 115



EDE SPC Developing a new Vision for Dublin     4 | P a g e  
 

The approach will involve a series of consultations and workshops designed to define the 

opportunities and challenges and to co-create a roadmap to achieve the Vision and Strategy.   

It is envisaged that the work will be completed at the end of October where an outcomes report 

can be provided to the next SPC meeting scheduled for November 2021. 

 

Mary Mac Sweeney 

Deputy Head of Economic Development and Enterprise 

Page 116



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 1 
 

 

 
Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Economic Development & Enterprise  

Tuesday 14th September 2021  
 

Agenda Item 7: Management Reports 
 

Contents 
1. International Relations: ......................................................................................................... 2 

2. Local Enterprise Office: Training, Mentoring & Financial Grants ... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

3. Dublin Place Brand - Dublin.ie .............................................................................................. 16 

4. Economic Development Office ............................................................................................. 19 

5. Smart Dublin & Smart Districts ............................................................................................. 26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 117



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 2 
 

1. International Relations: 

International Relations continues to develop and enhance international relationships 
through mutually beneficial initiatives, cultural, educational and economic development 
exchanges.  International Relations acts as first point of contact for city, business and 
government visiting delegations from other cities to provide support to the Lord Mayor’s 
office on international relations matters.    
 
April:  Embassy of Latvia 
A virtual meeting was held with H.E Ambassador Janis Silis and Edīte Medne, Deputy Head of 
Mission Embassy of the Republic of Latvia and International Relations to exchange 
information and to discuss potential areas of collaboration between Dublin and Riga.   
 
April:  Embassy of Brazil  
A virtual meeting was held with Ambassador Marcel Biato and Paulo Azevedo, Deputy Head 
of Mission, Embassy of Brazil and International Relations to exchange information and to 
explore how the Embassy can work with the City Council to support future cultural events 
between the Brazilian Community and other communities in the City.  
 
June: Embassy of Poland 
Former Lord Mayor Chu and the Ambassador of Poland to Ireland Anna Sochańskal officially 
launched the mural celebrating Irish-Polish relations in the Grand Canal in Portobello.  The 
mural, inspired by Irish and Polish folk art, has been created by a Polish street artist Aga 
Grandowicz and an Irish street artist Una Woods, as part of the PolskaÉire Festival 2021.   
The project is the initiative of the Embassy of Poland in Dublin, in celebration of 30 years of 
the Embassy’s existence, in partnership with Dubl in City Council and Waterways Ireland.  
 
June:  Lord Mayor Alison Gilliland  
Through our involvement with City Directors of International Affairs Network  a new peer 
network of local government staff from cities across Europe and North America, Dublin was 
invited to participate in the Cities Fortifying Democracy (CFD) project by the German 
Marshall Fund (GMF). 
In this multi-year project, GMF will bring together a cohort of participants from 12 cities 
across the 
U.S. & EU to identify and explore some of the best local innovations to empower cities / 
stakeholders around the world to further and fortify democracy through agency and action 
at city level.  Lord Mayor Alison Gilliland, Cllr. De Róiste, Cllr. McAdam, Cllr. McGrattan and 
Cllr. O’Connor and participating in the CFD project.   
 
July: European Metropolitan Authorities (EMA)  
European Metropolitan Authorities (EMA) is a forum for politicians from Europe's main cities 
and metropolitan areas, whose goal is to provide a space to discuss the challenges of 
European metropolitan governance and define the basis for collaboration between Europe’s 
major metropolises. Dublin, represented by the Lord Mayor Alison Gilliland, was one of 19 
European metropolitan areas who participated in online meeting to discuss the priorities 
and the role of metropolitan areas in the implementation of National Programmes of the 
European Recovery and Resilience Facility Fund and to agree on a common position for joint 
actions. EMA has also become an active platform for dialogue with high representatives of 
the European Commission, the European Parliament and the Committee of the Regions.  
 
EUROCITES Network  
The business continues to be delivered online. 

 

Page 118



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 3 
 

 

2. Local Enterprise Office: Training, Mentoring & Financial Grants  
 

Measure 2 (Mentoring, Training & Communications) Update 21st April – 14th September 2021 
 
LEO COVID-19 Response https://www.localenterprise.ie/response/  
A LEO COVID-19 hub of information is updated on an ongoing basis detailing supports available 
during the pandemic. Supports include: 

- LEO Supports: Mentoring, Training, Funding, Lean, Trading Online Voucher  
- Expert views & client case studies of adapting their business model successfully during the 

pandemic 
- Lunch & Learn series: Webinars on a variety of relevant topics 
- Frequently asked questions 
- Enterprise Ireland Supports https://globalambition.ie/covid-19/  
- Supports for Employers & the Self Employed 
- General Business Supports: listing of all government supports for business 

https://enterprise.gov.ie/en/What-We-Do/Supports-for-SMEs/COVID-19-
supports/Government-supports-to-COVID-19-impacted-businesses.html  

- Online Business Resources: Link to relevant associations & partners information e.g. ISME, 
IBEC, Retail Excellence Ireland 

- Events: A listing of national forthcoming events 
 
BREXIT Supports https://www.localenterprise.ie/Discover-Business-Supports/Brexit/ 
A handy guide to Brexit supports is available through Dublin City Local Enterprise Office to assist 
businesses manage their post Brexit response: 
 
- Scorecards and checklists to help with planning  

- One-to-one mentoring  

- Customs Training  

- Financial supports  

- Access to worldwide support networks  

- Practical Steps to getting your Business Brexit Ready  
 

A comprehensive review of Brexit supports from LEO Dublin City and other state agencies can be 

found here https://www.prepareforbrexit.com/ 

Prepare your business for customs workshops are ongoing across the LEO network. LEO Dublin City 

hosted another workshop on  

 17th May – 9 attendees   

 27th July – 13 booked 
 

Next Prepare your business for customs workshops:  15th October 

 

Brexit specific mentoring: 33 (20 Assigned) (10 outside Dublin) and (3 not engaging) from companies 

have sought assistance from 01/01/2021 – 30/08/2021 vs 12 companies to the end of Aug in 2020. 

Page 119

https://www.localenterprise.ie/response/
https://globalambition.ie/covid-19/
https://enterprise.gov.ie/en/What-We-Do/Supports-for-SMEs/COVID-19-supports/Government-supports-to-COVID-19-impacted-businesses.html
https://enterprise.gov.ie/en/What-We-Do/Supports-for-SMEs/COVID-19-supports/Government-supports-to-COVID-19-impacted-businesses.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/Discover-Business-Supports/Brexit/
https://www.prepareforbrexit.com/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 4 
 

Measure 2 Statistics: Business Advice, Training & Mentoring:  
 
Training https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/ 
 
LEO Dublin City continues to provide a wide array of relevant  training programmes, workshops and 
networking meet-ups online. We are predicting market requirements in line with the level of 
lockdown and providing suitable courses to reflect business needs.  
Upskilling in the area of digital is ongoing supported by complimentary grant funding through the 
Trading Online Voucher scheme. 
 

Courses Completed April to Aug 2021 

 

April 

Date Course Title 

01/04/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

07/04/2021 Marketing & Branding on a shoestring 

08/04/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

13/04/2021 Financial Management for Small Business 

16/04/2021 Trading Online Information Session 

16/04/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

17/04/2021 Start Your Own Business Course (Sat & Weds) 

20/04/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

28/04/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

28/04/2021 Podcasting for Beginners 

TOTAL   

 

May 

Date Course Title 

04/05/2021 Start Your Own Business Course Mid Week May 

05/05/2021 Linkedin for business 

05/05/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

12/05/2021 Book keeping for small business 

12/05/2021 Visual merchandising webinar 

Page 120

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 5 
 

13/05/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

15/05/2021 Start Your Own Business Course May (Sat & Weds) 

17/05/2021 Prepare Your Business For Customs 

20/05/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

26/05/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

 

June 

Date Course Title 

01/06/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

02/06/2021 Canva - a practical workshop 

08/06/2021 Start Your Own Business Mid Week June 

09/06/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

15/06/2021 Financial Management for small business 

17/06/2021 Food Starter June 

17/06/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

22/06/2021 Trading Online Voucher Information Session 

22/06/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

30/06/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

 

July  

Date Course Title 

06/07/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

14/07/2021 Tax & VAT for Beginners 

14/07/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

17/07/2021 Start Your Own Business July (Sat & Weds) 

22/07/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

27/07/2021 Prepare Your Business for Customs 

30/07/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

 

Page 121



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 6 
 

August 

05/08/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

10/08/2021 Start Your Own Business Course August 

13/08/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

17/08/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

25/08/2021 Marketing & Branding on a Shoestring - 1 Morning 

25/08/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

30/08/2021 Filing a 'self assessed' tax return using ROS 

31/08/2021 Business Advice Clinic 

 

Annual target 2021: 1,900 participants 

Quarterly total: 641 participants, down from 1492 for the same period in 2020. 

Year on year comparative: 

 

 

 
Training Survey: an annual survey is undertaken to assess consumer needs. Currently preparing with 

additional questions specific to the pandemic and needs of businesses to sustain. 

 

Page 122



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 7 
 

Start your Own Business Programme  
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Start-Your-Own-Business/  
Is the entry level training programme the Local Enterprise Office (LEO) Dublin City offers and 
graduates of the programme regularly progress onto obtaining funding support from the LEO Dubl in 
City and other state agencies. The programme helps participants to obtain and/or develop the 
necessary skills and knowledge to assess the marketing and financial viability of their business 
idea/project. The programme is delivered over 5 weeks as two engaging and interactive workshops 
per week.  Since March 2020 the programme has run exclusively online.  
 
Annual target 2021: 13 courses with 220 participants 

11 courses delivered, 1 bootcamp & 393 participants 1st Jan – 31st Aug 2021.  

 

 
 
 
Next SYOB September 11th  
 
Food Supports 
Food Starter - https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Food-Industry/Food-
Starter.html  
Four half days delivered online. The programme is designed to help those with a food idea/early 
stage of starting a food business i.e. 0 -24 months, post participation in the Digital School of Food. 
The programme overviews the Irish Food sector to the specifics of starting a food production 
business. Courses in 2021 have been fulled booked. The last completed course took place 1st,3rd, 15th  
& 17th June. The most recent commenced 10th August & proceeds until 26th August.  
 
 
 
Management Development Programmes 
Hi-Start https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Management-

Development/Hi-Start-Management-Development-Programme.html  

This programme assists ambitious early stage growth focused companies  to identify and build 

foundations required to secure investment and scale the business in international markets. 

Commenced 28th June. 

Page 123

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Start-Your-Own-Business/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Food-Industry/Food-Starter.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Food-Industry/Food-Starter.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Management-Development/Hi-Start-Management-Development-Programme.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Management-Development/Hi-Start-Management-Development-Programme.html


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 8 
 

Lean For Micro 
 
The LEAN for Micro programme kicked off in Dublin City with 8 Businesses currently being trained & 
mentored by Jigsaw who are the new LEAN providers selected by Fingal LEO to run this years 
programme. 
 
Mentoring  
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Start-or-Grow-your-Business/Mentoring-Business-
Advice/ 
Under the Local Enterprise Office Mentor Programme, clients work with an experienced mentor to 
identify solutions to areas of exposure within their business. With advice and guidance from their 
mentor, clients develop strategies that are more robust, which address issues and maximise 
potential opportunities. Nominal fees have been introduced and the service continues to be 
delivered remotely.  
 
Annual Target 2021: 1,000 hours. 1,062 hours completed 1st Jan – 31st Aug 2021  

 

 
 
 

 

Page 124

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Start-or-Grow-your-Business/Mentoring-Business-Advice/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Start-or-Grow-your-Business/Mentoring-Business-Advice/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 9 
 

Business Advice Clinics  

Annual target 2021: 500 participants 

614 participants from 1st Jan – 31st Aug 2021 / 122% of annual target achieved. 

 

 

 

Green for Micro www.localenterprise.ie/Green 

The objective of the Green for Micro programme - a new initiative from the Local Enterprise Offices - 

is to help prepare small businesses for the low carbon, more resource efficient economy of the 

future. Explanatory video https://www.localenterprise.ie/Green/What-is-Green-for-Micro/What-is-

Green-For-Micro.html  

 

Business Benefits: 

 Increased cost savings 

 Improved resource efficiency (for example: using less energy, water  and materials) 

 Reduced environmental footprint and greenhouse gas emissions  

 Opportunities for higher and additional value on products and services  

 Increased access to customers, improved corporate image  

 Increased resilience to climate change impacts 

Application: Open. The business is encouraged to watch the lunch & learn series that took place on 

12th March http://%20www.facebook.com/LocalEnterpriseOffices  

Page 125

http://www.localenterprise.ie/Green
https://www.localenterprise.ie/Green/What-is-Green-for-Micro/What-is-Green-For-Micro.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/Green/What-is-Green-for-Micro/What-is-Green-For-Micro.html


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 10 
 

And then submit their application for 2 days mentoring/green consultation, with a value of  €1,800. 

This delivers an audit of their green credentials with next steps. This product is suitable for 

businesses in construction and the built environment, retail, manufacturing, textiles and fashion, 

food, electronics, plastics, and packaging. 

Number of applications received: 11 

Number of applications progressed: 4 

Number of applications finalised: 7 

 

MFI Pre Loan Applications 

61  Micro Finance Pre Loan Applications 1st Jan – 31st August 2021.  

2020 saw 208 pre loan applications. 

 

 

Communications 

A monthly newsletter is disseminated to all subscribers, with reminder mailings also taking place. In 

addition bespoke newsletters took place during April - August: (from 23/03/2021) 

 The Business Show Rebooting Ireland Virtual Summit 01/04/2021 

 Start Up Grind 14/04/2021 

 Grow Your Business with Stripe 17/04/2021 
 Start Up Grind 18/05/2021 

 Hi-Start Management Development Programme 02/06/2021 

 Small Business Assistance Scheme – extended scheme 10 /06/2021 
 The Circular Economy – New Business Opportunities 22/06/2021 

 Look for Local – Connect Local Consumers with Your Products & Services 16/07/2021 
 

Page 126



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 11 
 

Case Studies added to the LEO Dublin City Website  

All case studies https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/ 

 

- The Silk Pillowcase https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Silk-
Pillowcase.html  

- Maker https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/MAKER-Award-Winning-
Graphic-Design-Studio.html  

- Meltdown https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-
Studies/Meltdown%20Toasties.html  

- The Wellness Circle https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Wellness-
Circle.html  

- VRAI https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/VRAI.html  
- Sitto Z https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/SITTO-Z.html - Benefits of 

mentoring case study 
- HairWeavon https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/HairWeavon.html 
- Love in a Box https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Love-In-A-Box.html 
- Bees On the Roof https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Bees-On-The-

Roof.html  
 

Cross promotion in newsletter and social media. Showcasing how clients are diversifying and 

pivoting during the pandemic.  

Campaigns 

Look For Local https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/News/Press-Releases/Look-For-Local-It-

Works-For-Everyone.html  

National LEO campaign, launching on 7th July by An Tánaiste Leo Varadkar. 

Campaign Purposes: to encourage consumers to shop local, accessing products of equal and higher 

quality than those globally sources, while positively impacting on the local economy. For every €10 

spent, the local economy gains by €40. 

Formats: Multimedia campaign i.e. TV (Ireland AM x 6 features over 6 weeks), radio, podcasts, press, 

social media & PR.  

Marketing materials provided to entrepreneurs & listing of participant companies available National 

LEO campaign, launching on 5th July. Link to materials https://we.tl/t-NNmbe3E9u3 

Reports  

Impact Report  2014 – 2020 inclusive 

Outcomes, achievements & client case studies detailed 

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/About-Us/Our-Services/7-Year-Impact-Report-2014-

2020.pdf 

 

 

Page 127

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Silk-Pillowcase.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Silk-Pillowcase.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/MAKER-Award-Winning-Graphic-Design-Studio.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/MAKER-Award-Winning-Graphic-Design-Studio.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Meltdown%20Toasties.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Meltdown%20Toasties.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Wellness-Circle.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/The-Wellness-Circle.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/VRAI.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/SITTO-Z.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/HairWeavon.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Love-In-A-Box.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Bees-On-The-Roof.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Case-Studies/Bees-On-The-Roof.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/News/Press-Releases/Look-For-Local-It-Works-For-Everyone.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/News/Press-Releases/Look-For-Local-It-Works-For-Everyone.html
https://scanner.topsec.com/?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwe.tl%2Ft-NNmbe3E9u3&d=1962&t=3a50dd228f95efbfb52faefba4e7280eeea1e4c4&r=show
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/About-Us/Our-Services/7-Year-Impact-Report-2014-2020.pdf
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/About-Us/Our-Services/7-Year-Impact-Report-2014-2020.pdf


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 12 
 

Inter departmental Projects with Dublin City Council Colleagues    

Work Matters With The Library  

 Videos to promote enterprise supports in the library: mentor video & 4 case 

studies/testimonial videos from clients.  

 Business plan workshops: libraries commissioned additional workshops with trainers 

Optimum. These will be timed to complement the spring & autumn LEO libraries schedule. 

Increasing the touch points for clients to learn how to develop a business plan, so that 

applications coming to business advisors and mentors are more fully developed, maximising 

the entrepreneurs time when they get in front of either mentor or business adv isor. 

 https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/libraries/using-your-library/work-matters-your- local-

library 

 

New Products 

Green for Micro Programme https://www.localenterprise.ie/Green   

11 applications processed. 6 completed, 5 Applications in stream. Cost savings of up to 49.7% 
identified for one client. Increasing marketing activity to attract further participation.  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

Page 128

https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/libraries/using-your-library/work-matters-your-local-library
https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/libraries/using-your-library/work-matters-your-local-library
https://www.localenterprise.ie/Green


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 13 
 

    

     

     

Measure 1 (Grants) Approvals Metrics: April 1st – August 31st 2021     

 #No of M1 Grant Applications Jobs  Value of M1 Grants  

Type of Grant Annual 
Target 

Total # No 
Approved 

April – 
August 
2021 

Variance Total Jobs 
Created 
Target - 

Grant 
Approvals 

Total Jobs 
Created - 

From Grant 
Approvals 

April – 
August 2021 

Annual 
Target  

Total Value 
M1 Grant 
Approved 

April - 
August 2021 

Variance 

Feasibility Grant 23 5  18  23 5 €172,500 €49,020 €123,480 

Priming 21 7  14  31 17 €315,000 €172,500 €142,500 

Business 
Expansion Grant 

16 8 8  32 20 €400,000 €217,500 €182,500 

TOTAL  60 20  40  86  42  €887,500 €439,020 €448,480 

 

 

P
age 129



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 14 
 

  

 

GMIS No. Company Name Grant Type first name last name 
Executive 

Official 
Amount 

Recommended 
Jobs associated 

with funding 

9032975 MYNE Nutrition Feasibility Jennifer O'Connell Ross Curley €12,370 1 

9032907 Qodify Payments Ltd Feasibility Eamonn Fitzgerald Peter Sheridan €7,000 1 

9028313 Qilta Ltd Feasibility Jim Dunne Peter Sheridan €10,250 1 

9026035-02 Boundary Blade Ltd Business Expansion Aidan Murphy Peter Sheridan €10,000 1 

9032912 Notions Creative Business Expansion Jamie Maguire Ross Curley €40,000 3 

9010542-02 Brandfire Limited Business Expansion Nuala Canning Ross Curley €7,500 1 

9006374-02 National Wax Museum Plus / Irish Rock 
N Roll Museum 

Business Expansion Brendan Kearns Peter Sheridan €35,000 3 

9031568 Seceuropark Limited Business Expansion Diarmuid McAuliffe Dermot Shortt €30,000 3 

9032913 Manakau Ltd Priming Dan Evison Dermot Shortt €47,500 5 

9032914 Kelstar Aviation Priming Steve Kelly Peter Sheridan €25,000 2 

9019422 The Moodytoons Storytelling Business Feasibility Conor Casby Dermot Shortt €11,900 1 

9032402 FinopsBirdseye Feasibility Mark McHugh Peter Sheridan €7,500 1 

9030508 Jengus Limited T/A Mulch.ie Business Expansion Eugene O'Keane Dermot Shortt €30,000 3 

9032875 Utilityfair Limited Business Expansion Neil Ryan Peter Sheridan €40,000 4 

P
age 130



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 15 
 

9026551-02 Decent Reusables Ltd trading as Mother 
Reusables 

Business Expansion Sarah Byrne Ross Curley €25,000 2 

9033215 The Home Moment Ltd Priming Eileen Denham Dermot Shortt €30,000 3 

9032098 Bees on the Roof Ltd. Priming Emma Finn Ross Curley €10,000 1 

9031374 Fizfit Ltd Trading as Fizfit Priming Gary Twohig Ross Curley €10,000 1 

9029333 Woodbury Learning Academy Limited 
T/A Learnful 

Priming Shane Ormsby Peter Sheridan €30,000 3 

9033216 Back To Work Connect Priming Gina Oglesby Ross Curley €20,000 2 

     Total €439,020 42 

 

P
age 131



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 16 
 

3. Dublin Place Brand - Dublin.ie 

Strategy & Research  

As we emerge from the pandemic, we now have an urgency to move the project forward. This 
includes developing an increased focus on an international audience, which will have more of a 
direct input into attracting investment and people to the city. We also want to put in place  

This next phase is to build on the activities of the Place Brand to date and to develop and implement 

a longer-term place branding strategy. The project will continue to be led by Dublin City Council, 

however, we would like to have more support and input into the project from the city’s main 

stakeholders. To develop the strategy and KPIs for the project, we began a tender process to 

appointment contractors in mid 2021. Stage 1 proposals have been submitted for the Multi 

Stakeholder Framework Agreement for Place Branding Consultancy Services tender. Stage 2 will 

commence in mid-September. This is the largest piece of work being undertaken by the unit in 2021. 

The work of the Dublin Place Brand will also be included in the upcoming Regional Enterprise Plan.  

Photography & Videography 

Outdoor hospitality shoots 

As part of the We Can Dublin Again campaign, the Dublin Brand Team have engaged the services of 

Guy Boggan, an up-and-coming photographer, to shoot both stil ls and video of outdoor hospitality 

across the city. Four locations have been completed to date including Coffee Angel, South Anne 

Street; Brother Hubbard, Capel Street; Hugos, Merrion Row and Sprezzatura, Camden Street. A 

range of models were engaged, selected to highlight the diversity of our city. These assets will be 

used in future campaigns to aid city recovery, and they will be uploaded to Assetbank for use by 

other departments.  

 

  

  
 

 

Page 132



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 17 
 

Campaigns 

 

Climate Action Week (13th - 19th September) 

Assisted the Climate Officer, Sabrina Dekker, with the outdoor campaign to promote climate action 

week including booking space and proving feedback on creative. We will be supporting through 

amplification of events across social media. In addition the team are  working with the Active 

Mobility department to promote Dublin Bike Week (running in conjunction with Climate Action 

week) by producing bike seat covers made from recycled materials which will be handed out at a 

series of events during the week. 
 

Your Dublin Your Voice Survey - Student Campaign 

Your Dublin Your Voice seeks feedback via online surveys on a range of issues that impact the quality 

of life in the city. The results of these surveys play an important part in making decisions on the 

future direction of our city.  However, students and younger people are not well represented on this 

opinion panel. We have been working with Juliet Passmore to increase their representation. This has 

included a paid social media advertising campaign, plus a series of meetings with university student 

unions across Dublin including TU Dublin, UCD, DCU and Trinity. This has resulted in a series of on -
campus and online promotional initiatives encouraging students to join the panel and have their say.  

 

Brand & Campaign Impact 

Do the campaigns work and are they worth it? We ran a Your Dublin, Your Voice survey in April 2021 
to find out. We received 991 responses, 63% of whom live in the city administrative area.  

52% of respondents indicated that they had seen the brand  in the past two years. That compares to 

19% for Fáilte Ireland’s ‘Dublin – Surprising By Nature’ brand. In terms of campaign effectiveness, 

clear messaging had the most impact. For example, 77% of respondents said the ‘Make A Day Of It’ 
campaign encouraged them to visit the city centre. Full details below: 

 

 

Page 133



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 18 
 

Dublin.ie Content Update 

All guide content under the core site headings of Live, Work, Invest & Study, was updated and re -

written in Q2 of 2021. The updated content is both more search engine friendly and easier for users 
to read. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 134



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 19 
 

4. Economic Development Office  

 

SPC Progress Report 
Economic Development Office  

14th September 2021 

 

Q2 & Q3 EDO Events 

Event Economic Pillar Date 

1. Economic & Enterprise SPC Strategic Approach 20th April 2021 

2. EU Programme Participation Strategy  
SPC Presentations 

Strategic Approach 14th April, 17th & 
25th May 2021 

3. MODOS – Pathway to Circular Economy D8 Taster 
Session 

Climate & Innovation 5th May 2021 

4. Enfuse Challenge Final Pitch & Award Ceremony Place-Making & Clustering 27th May 2021 
5. Harvard Growth Labs – launch of urban city 

navigator (EDO pilot users)  
Climate & Innovation 2nd June 2021 

6. Metroverse Launch Promotion & Investment 2nd June 2021 
7. Dublin Economic Monitor 25th Edition Promotion & Investment 3rd June 2021 

8. Your Dublin Your Voice Heritage Survey Place-Making & Clustering 8th – 18th June 2021 
9. OECD RRR Social Economy Project Peer Meeting 

Climate & Innovation 8th July 2021 

10. EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 
Launch 

Strategic Approach 20th July 2021 

11. EDE SPC Special Briefing on Standing Order Review Strategic Approach 27th July 2021 

12. Dublin City Development Plan – City Economy 
Chapter 

Strategic Approach July 2021 

13. MODOS Innovation Award Evaluation 
Climate & Innovation 30th July 2021 

14. Social Enterprise Awards 2021 Evaluation 
 26th August 2021 

15. Dublin Economic Monitor 26th Edition Promotion & Investment 9th September 2021 
16. OECD Social & Solidarity Economy Conference Place-Making & Clustering 13th – 16th Sept 

17. Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Strategic Approach 14th September 
2021 

 
 

Climate & 

Innovation 

Page 135



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 20 
 

Q4 EDO Events 

Event Economic Pillar Date 
1. Climate Kik Circular Cities Accelerator Programme Climate & Innovation 2nd Sept – 10th Dec 21 

2. Dublin Climate Action Week – Modos Event: Making 
Tourism Circular 

Climate & Innovation 16th September 

3. Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards 2021 Place-Making & Clustering 22nd September 

4. SEAI & REI Webinar on Circular Economy featuring 
MODOS 

Climate & Innovation 24th September 2021 

5. Vision for Dublin – Party Lead Consultation Promotion & Investment 27th September 2021 

6. Your Dublin Your Voice Economic Development 
Survey 

Promotion & Investment 28th Sept – 8th October 

7. Diversity in Tech Awards Promotion & Investment 7th October 2021 

8. OECD/EC Project – Respond, Rebuild, Reinvent on 
Social Economy  Innovation   

Place-Making & Clustering 7th October 2021 

9. LGMA & CCMA National Conference Event 
‘Economic Opportunities and Climate Action – Local 
Authorities supporting Enterprise’ 

Climate & Innovation 12th – 13th October 
2021 

10. MODOS Programme for Tourism & Hospitality 
Sector 

Climate & Innovation 13th October – 19th 
November 

11. Responsible Innovation Summit Climate & Innovation 19-22 October 

12. Profit with Purpose Publication  Climate & Innovation 19th October 2021 
13. ESER Social Economy & Circular Economy Event Climate & Innovation 19th October 2021 

14. Dublin Regional Enterprise Plan 2022 – 2024 Launch Promotion & Investment October 2021 
15. Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Strategic Approach 14th November 2021 

16. Dublin City Summit Series – Night Time Economy Promotion & Investment 25th November 2021 

17. Dublin Economic Monitor 27th Edition Promotion & Investment December 2021 
18. Enterprise Hubs Survey & Report Publication  Place-Making & Clustering December 2021 

 

Departmental Update: 
 

1. Economic Development Action Plan 2021 – Strategic Approach 

The EDO Action Plan & Work Programme continues to adapt for 2021 in response to the COVID 

19 Global Pandemic, the Roadmap to Reopening Ireland and the Governments COVID-19: 

Reframing the Challenge, Continuing Our Recovery and Reconnecting announced on 31st 

August 2021.  

 

Policy: 

2. Dublin Region Enterprise Action Plan (DREAP) 2024 – Innovation & Transformation 

Dublin Region Enterprise Action Plan 2022 – 2024 Project Working Groups were established in 

June to inform development of next Dublin Region Enterprise Action Plan up to 2024. Six 

Strategic Objectives have been identified for the next DREAP, with Dublin City leading on 

Strategic Objective 5 on Transition to Low Carbon Economy; whilst contributing to all other 5 

objectives.  

Strategic Objective 1  

Strategic Objective 2 (SMEs & Startups):    Lead: Oisín Geoghan, LEO Fingal  

Strategic Objective 3 (Placemaking):    Lead: Aidan Sweeney, IBEC 

Strategic Objective 4 (Employment/Enterprise Inclusion): Lead: Tom Cooney, TUD 

Strategic Objective 5 (Low Carbon Transition):   Lead: Mary MacSweeney, DCC 

Strategic objective 6: (Skills & talent)    Lead: Declan McCulloch/DETE 

Page 136



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 21 
 

Project Delivery Team meetings took place throughout June, July and August. Departmental 

workshop was held on 10th September; in advance of the final Dublin Region Enterprise Action 

Plan 2022 – 2024 being launched in October. 

3. Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor - Placemaking & Clustering 

The Political Advisory Group made up of the 24 elected representatives has been arranged. A 

briefing session with University of Ulster and DCU moderating was organised. This meeting to 

be held in person. Councils North of the Border to propose suitable locations that can safely 

host a two hour meeting with 24 elected representatives and 10 staff approx. Each Council 

following up with details of the two businesses selected who will be profiled. Dublin City 

Council have nominated VRAI and Moxi Love. Fingal to continue to Chair meetings until year 

end. The Chair will then switch to one of the other Councils involved.  

4. Local Economic & Community Plan (LECP) – Innovation & Transformation 

Review of Local Economic & Community Plan 2016 – 2021 guidelines & practices were 

completed and collated with Community Department in June 2021 and submitted to CMMA 

working group to feed back to the Department; in advance of the development of the 2022 – 

2027 guidelines & practices for the next Local Economic & Community Plans.  

5. Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee: SPC - Strategic Approach 

The April sitting of the Economic Development & Enterprise SPC meeting took place on 20th 

April remotely via MS Teams. Presentations included Dublin City Council’s submission to the 

Recovery and Resilience Plan. The final submission contained 7 sections within a 37 page 

document highlighting 6 proposal areas (Energy Efficiency, Digital Transformation, Greening & 

Biodiversity, Flood Defences & Resilience, Public Realm and Wellbeing) including 13 potential  

projects to the value of €464.2M. A presentation was provided on the Smart Tourism 

programme being led by Smart Cities and Fáilte Ireland; as well as a presentation on the Reset 

Summit Outcomes Report. Completion report was provided for the work completed by the 

Tourism, City Markets including Night Time Economy SPC Working Group. An extension 

request was heard on the International Relations & EU Affairs SPC Working Group with 

members agreeing that this item would be a standing item on the SPC Agenda for future 

meetings. Management Reports highlighted developments in International Relations, 

Economic Development, Local Enterprise Office, Dublin.ie, and Smart Dublin and Smart Ci ties,  

which were circulated in advance of the meeting. A motion of notice was discussed on the 

proposed Urban Recovery, Regeneration and Revitalisation of Dublin City Strategy, with 

members highlighting the work being undertaken by the established City Recovery Office. The 

next EDE SPC meeting is scheduled for 14th September 2021.  

 

Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee: Special Briefing Meeting 

A special briefing session with SPC members was held on 27th July, on the New Standing 

Orders 2021, which govern SPC Meetings and came into effect in June; following a Review of  

Standing Orders over the course of 2021 by the Protocol Committee. SPC members were 

briefed on Standing Orders 37 & 48 which relate to SPC meetings. A discussion took place on 

these changes and members agreed on duration of meetings and meeting lengths; format of  

Agenda and content of SPC meetings, with a focus on strategic items; and rules of debate for 

the Motions of Notice.  

 

Page 137



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 22 
 

6. Dublin Night Time Economy Strategy – Innovation & Transformation 

Following the work completed as part of the Tourism, City Markets including Ni ght Time 

Economy SPC Working Group; the preparatory work has been completed on the 

commencement of the development of A Night Time Economy Strategy. Progression will 

continue during September & October, with the Strategy being launched in November.  

7. Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 - 2027 - Strategic Approach 

The Dublin City Council EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 - 2027 was launched on 

20th July. The launch with 150 registered attendees, hosted by the Lord Mayor of Dubl in Alison 

Gilliland, chaired by Cllr Claire O’Connor, chair of the EDE SPC, heard from representatives 

from the European Commission, Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly and Dublin City Council . 

Minister of State for European Affairs, Minister Thomas Byrne noted the proactive approach of  

Dublin City Council & for ensuring policies, procedures & structures are in place for Ireland’s 

capital city to play a leading part in EU Programmes during the new EU Budget cycle.  

8. European Programme Support Office (EPSO) – Promotion & Investment 

The implementation of the strategy is continuing with the establishment of the European  

Programme Support Office for the organisation, with resource recruitment taking place during 

June and first staff members in place in July. The EU Programme Participation Strategy 

implementation Steering Committee continue to meet on implementing the strategy and the 

development of the support office, with resource recruitment; tender brief development to 

establishment a framework of European expertise and establishment of corporate governance, 

procedures and protocols for the operations of the office and developing a communications 

strategy and event programme to year end.  

9. Dublin City Development Plan – City Economy Chapter  - Strategic Approach 

The Economic Development Office collaborated with our colleagues in the Planning 

Department on the development of the City Economy Chapter of the Dublin City Development 

Plan during July. Economic data from DEM; survey results and findings from YDYV; Social 

Economy and Circular Economy projects and developments were considered during the 

process.  

Projects: 

10. MODOS - Sustainability Training for Business - Climate & Innovation 

The MODOS Innovation Award pilot, in alignment with the suite of LEO offering and pro ducts, 

continued to receive applications through July. The MODOS Innovation pilot will ran in Q3 in 

collaboration with the Regional Waste Office. An evaluation of innovation applications took 

place on 30th July; with winners announced during Climate Action Week, during a MODOS 

virtual event on Tourism & Circularity on 16th September. Modos Training Programme for the 

Tourism & Hospitality sector will be delivered from 13th October – 8th Nov in collaboration with 

Economic Development, Regional Waste Office, Dublin 8 Area Office & Digital Hub.  

11. Dublin Economic Monitor – Climate & Innovation  

The 26th edition of the Dublin Economic Monitor Publication developed throughout June , July 

& August with editorial meeting on 28th July 2021 with 4 Dublin Local Authorities, and external 

consultants Grant Thornton & Packed House. The 26th edition of the Dublin Economic Monitor 

Publication was published on 9th September with articles from Fáilte Ireland & ITIC focusing on 

the Tourism sector, impact of Covid19 and the recovery possibilities for the sector. 

Page 138



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 23 
 

12. European Social Economy Regions 2021 Placemaking & Clusters 

Dublin City Council has been participating in the European Commissions’ European Social 

Economy Regions (ESER) - 2021 Project. The objective of the project is to build networks of 

Social Economy and Social Enterprise stakeholders and to raise awareness about social 

economies at regional and local levels. The Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards on 22nd 

September will be the third event of the ESER calendar, with a Social Enterprise & Circular 

Economy event in late October closing the 2021 programme. 

13. OECD/EC Project – Respond, Rebuild, Reinvent on Social Economy  Innovation  - Strategic  

Dublin City was successful in the competitive process to participate in the OECD p roject, 

Respond, Rebuild, Reinvent on Social Economy Innovation. Dublin is one of 8 global cities 

participating in the project, running from July – Dec 2021. The initial kick off meeting with al l  8 

global cities and partners was held on 29th June 2021.  OECD address the cities and each got to 

update briefly on challenges of employment and mental health.  Workshop on the chal lenges 

with the agreed partner cities took place on 8th July 2021. The project will be showcased during 

the OECD Social & Solidarity Economy Conference taking place 13th – 16th September. 

14. ENFUSE (previously Enterprise Challenge 2020): Human Development   

The ENFUSE -2021 initiative was launched in early January with new branding and programme. 

The initiative is a collaboration between the LEO, EDO, HEI, students & enterprises. Three 

universities are taking place this year with DCU, TU Dublin and NCAI. The initiative ran between 

February and May 2021; with a Final pitch & award ceremony on 27th May 2021. 

15. Excellence in Local Government Awards - Placemaking & Clusters 

Economic Development submitted one application to the Chambers Ireland Excellence in Local  

Government Awards on 7th May on the ENFUSE project. Whilst good feedback was received on 

the application in August; this application was not shortlisted for the award taking place in 

November.  

16. EIT Climate KIC – Circular Cities Accelerator - Climate & Innovation 

Dublin City has been chosen to take part in the EIT Climate KIC accelerator programme. Dubl in 

will be joining Berlin, Athens, Vejle (Denmark) and Brasov (Romania), with the option to involve 

more cities as the project develops. The research institutions involved are Trinity College 

Dublin (Tangent); Technical University of Denmark (DTU) and Luvent Consulting. The Corporate 

Partner is UPS. The Circular Cities Accelerator proposal is a three year pan-European project 

that sets out to identify circular economy challenges in cities and to utilise innovations 

emerging from early stage micro-enterprises and SMEs to solve these challenges. The proposal 

has been approved for part-funding by the European Institute of Innovation and Technology 

(EIT) – an independent EU body set up to deliver innovation in the EU, under its EIT Climate KIC 

programme. EIT Climate CIK is a Knowledge and Innovation Community (KIC), working to 

accelerate the transition to a zero-carbon, climate-resilient society. The initial pilot programme 

will run from Sept – December 2021. 

 Events: 

17. Event Sponsorship - Promotion & Investment 

The Economic Development Office provide support to various events across the city 

throughout the year. During 2021, this event sponsorship had been developed to assist in 

supporting identified economic sectors – Tech, Social Enterprise, Green Business / Circular 

Page 139

https://www.tcd.ie/tangent/about/
https://www.dtu.dk/english
https://www.luvent-consulting.com/
https://www.ups.com/ie/en/Home.page
https://eit.europa.eu/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 24 
 

Economy, Tourism, Markets, Food and Design. As a result of COVID19, all events were 

postponed during the emergency period and any events held have been provided as a remote 

virtual offering in line with government guidelines. We have received a number of sponsorship 

requests for virtual and hybrid events for the remainder of 2021. We have amended our Event 

Sponsorship procedure and policy has been reviewed and amended as a result . 

18. Dublin Summit Series – Promotion & Investment  

The Dublin City Summit Series will take place in late November 2021 and will focus on the Nigh 

Time Economy. The Summit will bring together experts, policy makers and practitioners in the 

Night Time Economy sectors identifying key findings & calls to action from the Summit. These 

findings and outcomes report will be delivered following the Summit.  

19. Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards 2020: Placemaking & Clusters 

Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards 2021, managed by Inner City Enterprise and funded by 

Dublin City Council and the Department of Rural and Community Development contain a 

development programme for the awardee social enterprises, including mentoring, training and 

funding. Judging took place on 26th August of all applicants with 8 Social Enterprise finalists 

progressing to the Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards 2021 event on 22nd September. The 

awards, co-ordinated by Economic Development will be the first hybrid event for the EDO held 

in Wood Quay venue and livestreamed for virtual attendees. The 2021 trophies have been 

commissioned by Social Enterprise, Pace.  

20. SEAI & REI Webinar on Circular Economy featuring MODOS - Climate & Innovation 

MODOS will be showcase at Sustainable Energy Authority of Ireland (SEAI) and Retail 

Excellence Ireland (REI) webinar in late September on circular economy, sustainability and the 

retail sector. SEAI will speak about energy efficiency along with SEAI grants and supports 

available with an additional speaker on green financing, and MODOS will focus on the ci rcular 

economy, guidance for the retail sector and highlighting the MODOS training programme.  

21. Dublin Tech Summit - Placemaking & Clusters 

Economic Development are supporting the Dublin Tech Summit Awards 2021 taking place on 

7th October 2021. Economic Development are sponsoring the Rising Star Category, as part of 

our role in promoting and supporting entrepreneurship and leadership in the technology 

sector. Judging took place in early August with pre-event recording taking place in late August.   

22. LGMA & CCMA National Conference Event, Economic Opportunities and Climate Action – 

Local Authorities supporting Enterprise - Climate & Innovation 

The LGMA, CCMA, CARO and Maynooth University are hosting an online conference on Climate 

Action Economic Opportunities specifically on Local Authorities supporting enterprise on 12th & 

13th October. DCC will participate on the Dublin Region Enterprise Plan Strategic Objective 5 

Transition to Low Carbon Economy and the MODOS programme. 

23. Responsible Innovation Summit – Climate & Innovation 

The Responsible Innovation Summit 2021 will be held across four dates 19th - 22nd October.  

Each day will address a different theme: Day 1: Layers of Change Day 2: Redefining Business as 

Usual Day 3: Life Changing Innovation and Day 4: Leaders of Change.   The format has also 

changed and will allow for events to be hosted by others through an application process and 

be part of the format. The next edition of Profit with Purpose available to be disseminated as 

part of the Summit. 

Page 140



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 25 
 

Research: 

24. Your Dublin Your Voice: Placemaking & Clusters  

The third survey of 2021 was dissemination in June (8th – 18th June) on the Heritage of Dublin 

City in collaboration with Dublin City’s Heritage Officer. Data Results were collated and 

cleansed for reporting & dissemination in July with Dept & stakeholders. The final survey of 

2021 will focus on the Economic Development Strategy. This survey will be disseminated 

between has been drafted & reviewed & will be disseminated in September and wi l l  run 28 th  

September – 8th October. 

 

25. Smart Tourism Data: Placemaking & Clusters  

Development with the Smart Tourism Data working group continues with developments with 

Mastercard to explore smart tourism data and Three to explore available date. Economic 

Development supported the Smart Cities application submission for the European Smart 

Tourism Campaign 2022. 

26. Enterprise Survey: – Human Development 

A revised enterprise hubs survey has been drafted and was issued to the Dublin region 

enterprise network via Heads of LEOS. This survey will capture the impact Covid19 has had on 

enterprise hubs, how they have diversified and capture capacity across the Dublin Region. A 

final report is expected to be concluded in Autumn for delivery as part of the Dublin Region 

Enterprise Plan. 

 

27. Maker Space Report: – Placemaking & Clusters 

A Dublin region Maker Space report; which was an action of the Dublin Regional Enterprise 

Action Plan 2020 was postponed for delivery in 2021. Report is now completed for 

dissemination. 

 

 

Page 141



Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 26 
 

5. Smart Dublin & Smart Districts 

Smart Dublin is an initiative of the four Dublin Local Authorities to engage with smart technol ogy 
providers, researchers and citizens to solve challenges and improve city life.  It aims to position 
Dublin as a world leader in the development of new urban solutions, using open data, and with the 
city region as a test bed.  

DCC Smart City Unit under the Smart Dublin umbrella, Dublin City Council has developed a world-
leading Smart City programme.  It drives forward the use of new technologies to improve our ci ty’s 
operations; improving efficiencies, reducing costs, driving economic growth and future proofing our 
communities.  

Smart Districts are strategically selected locations where targeted smart city projects can be fast-
tracked to measure impact and potential scalability. Each Smart District is unique, with bespoke 
programmes developed to meet the specific needs of the district residents and also provide growing 
businesses with a wider variety of testbed locations. 

Dublin City Council supports three out of the five Smart Dublin districts; Smart Docklands, Smart DCU 
and our latest smart district Smart D8, a smart district focusing on Health and Well Being. It has also 
recently established a Smart Tourism Programme in partnership with Failte Ireland. 

 

  

For more information on Smart Dublin Project, see the Public Trello Board: 
https://trello.com/b/188O9azF/smart-dublin-project-board 

 

Smart City Updates:  

European Capital of Innovation 

(iCapital) Awards 2021 Semi-

Finalists 

DCC’s Smart City team 

submitted an application during 

the summer and Dublin has 

been selected as a semi- finalist 

in the European Capital of 
Innovation Category.  

 

Page 142

https://trello.com/b/188O9azF/smart-dublin-project-board


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 27 
 

Supported by the European Innovation Council under Horizon Europe, the prize recognises the 

European cities for their most innovative city practices in the framework of a developed, multi -
faceted, well-functioning city innovation ecosystem that boosts game-changing innovation. 

The 2021 semi-finalists selected by a high-level jury of independent experts are (in alphabetical 

order): 

The European Capital of Innovation category 

 Ankara (Turkey) 

 Bruxelles (Belgium) 

 Dublin (Ireland) 

 Dortmund (Germany) 

 Istanbul (Turkey) 

 Izmir (Turkey) 

 Malaga (Spain) 

 Vilnius (Lithuania) 

Next Steps: 

Each city will be invited to a private hearing with the jury members held remotely in October 2021.   
The hearings follow strict rules that allow each city to present the submitted application and answer 
to potential jury questions related to the award criteria. 

The jury members will then select three finalists in both categories.  One winner and two runners-up 
per category will be announced at the European Innovation Council Summit on 24-25 November 
2021. 

Apart from the prestigious recognition, the European Capital of Innovation category  winner will 
receive a prize of €1,000,000, while the two runners-up of this category will get €100,000 each. 

For more information: https://eic.ec.europa.eu/news/european-capital-innovation-awards-
icapital-2021-discover-years-semi-finalists-2021-09-02_en  

 

1. Smart D8 – A Smart Health and Wellbeing District 

Launched by Minister Simon Harris via a 

live webinar on the 10th of March 2021 

Smart D8 also announced its first open 

pilot call for solutions in the areas of 

Population Health and Mental Health. The 

themes were identified after feedback 

from a community engagement survey 

with the people of Dublin 8 earlier in the    
year.  

The open call: 

 Received 37 initial applications 

 10 proposals were shortlisted and representatives were invited to present their solutions to 

a high-level evaluation panel.    

Page 143

https://ec.europa.eu/info/research-and-innovation/funding/funding-opportunities/funding-programmes-and-open-calls/horizon-europe_en
https://eic.ec.europa.eu/eic-funding-opportunities/eic-prizes/european-capital-innovation-awards_en#ecl-inpage-241
https://eic.ec.europa.eu/news/european-capital-innovation-awards-icapital-2021-discover-years-semi-finalists-2021-09-02_en
https://eic.ec.europa.eu/news/european-capital-innovation-awards-icapital-2021-discover-years-semi-finalists-2021-09-02_en


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 28 
 

 Five pilots were successful and the winners were announced on the 16 th of August: 

https://smartdublin.ie/smartd8-pilot-selection-announcement/     

Pilots in the area of Mental Health: 

Ways to Wellbeing: Learning from Locals – supported by St.Patrick’s Mental Health Services, this 

project will support primary and secondary school students to learn about mental health and 
wellbeing by engaging with the older community in Dublin 8.   

Virtual Reality Meditation Platform – led by Solas VR, this project will pilot a Virtual Reality 

Meditation platform in the community creating a short VR escape and time and space to step back 

from events or situations that are impacting them.    

Mental Health Literacy – focused on empowering adults engaged with mental health services; this 

proposal aims to address the challenges of health and digital health literacy to support decision-
making and treatment planning using a co-design process. 

Pilots in the area of Population Health: 

Heart of our City – partnered by the Irish Heart Foundation and Novartis, Heart of our City is a 

program focusing on heart health in Dublin 8 by connecting people locally with a range of resources 
to support their cardiovascular health. 

Civic Dollar, A Social Currency Community Platform –This pilot encourages citizens to improve health 

by getting active and visiting local parks and open spaces. Using a mobile app, you can earn Civic 

Dollars and claim rewards for physical activity in the local area. Alternatively, you can donate your 
Civic Dollars to a local community group. 

Supported by DCC Smart Cities, South Central Area Office and DCC Parks as well as Smart D8 and the 

Smart Tourism programme, one of the main aims is to engage local businesses, tourist destinations, 

cultural heritage sites, local amenities and to encourage their participation. It’s hoped that by 

offering local rewards we can stimulate local business recovery and support local economic growth 
as well as having a positive impact on citizens. 

 

2. Smart DCU – World’s first E-Scooter 

Computer Vision Research Pilot.  

A new AI-powered e-scooter research pilot 

project has launched in Dublin City University 

(DCU) as part of the Smart DCU initiative. It is 

the world’s first research project focused on 

computer vision in e-scooters and the pilot wi l l  
be Ireland’s first major e-scooter trial. 

 

A fleet of computer vision enabled e-scooters have been deployed for staff use within DCU. The pilot 

will be in place for 6 months to try to improve e-scooter safety and to contribute to e-scooter safety 

standards in Ireland. The purpose of the research project is to improve e-scooter safety and to 
contribute to e-scooter safety standards in Ireland. 

The e-scooters will be capable of pedestrian detection and lane segmentation algorithms. This wi l l 

allow the scooter to understand how many people are in their path, as well as whether they are on 

Page 144

https://smartdublin.ie/smartd8-pilot-selection-announcement/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 29 
 

the road, a cycle lane, or footpath. The technology will ensure that e -scooters are safe from the 
users perspective as well as pedestrians and other road users. It’s anticipated that the pilot will  als o 
address other areas including traffic congestion alerts, road condition monitoring, street 
infrastructure mapping and kerbside management.  

Link: https://smartdublin.ie/e-scooters-worlds-first-computer-vision-pilot-at-smart-dcu/  

 

3. Smart Tourism Programme  
In Jan 2021 Dublin City Council and 

Fáilte Ireland partnered to create the 

Smart Tourism Programme for Dublin. 

The programme focuses on introducing 

new technology and supporting 

innovation in the tourism industry in 

Dublin. Website:  https://smartdublin.ie/smart-tourism/ 

Some recent updates include:  

 European Capital of Smart Tourism Dublin bid: The Smart Tourism programme coordinated 

and submitted a bid for Dublin to become the Smart Tourism Capital of Europe in 2022. The 

award celebrates destinations with best in class development in Accessible, Sustainable, 

Digital and Creative/innovative tourism. Shortlisting of the award will occur in September 

2021. The bid team included members from Smart Dublin, Fáilte Ireland and Dublin City 

Council Culture Company.  

 

 Mobile App for Heritage Trail(s) Tender Dublin: In May 2021 Dublin City Council published a 

tender for a Mobile Application for Heritage Trail(s) development. The tender, closed in late  

June and has attracted much interest from interactive and immersive technology providers – 

the evaluations are ongoing and the successful tender will be announced in the coming 

weeks.  

 

 

4. Smart Docklands Network Meeting 
The latest Smart Docklands Network Meeting was 

hosted via webinar on Wed 2nd June with over 120 

attendees.  The webinar shared details on the 

expansion of the Smart Districts Model, the 

innovative telecoms work happening across DCC as 

well as highlighting a number of flagship projects 

that are being delivered.  The webinar is available to 

watch here: [https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=n7jmXHApcPU] 

 

 

 

 

Page 145

https://smartdublin.ie/e-scooters-worlds-first-computer-vision-pilot-at-smart-dcu/
https://smartdublin.ie/smart-tourism/
https://scanner.topsec.com/?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3Dn7jmXHApcPU&t=1f42142fad1a1651cbec86e3872b97998814b79f&d=1962&r=show


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 30 
 

5. Academy of the Near Future 
Academy of the Near Future is a smart 

cities education programme being 

developed by Dublin City Council, Smart 

Docklands and CONNECT, the world 

leading Science Foundation Ireland 

Research Centre for Future Networks and 

Communications at Trinity College Dublin. 

Visioneers: Visioneers is a new smart cities education module that forms part of the ‘Academy of the 

Near Future’ initiative, established by Dublin City Council and Trinity College Dublin in 2019.  The 

programme has won funding from Science Foundation Ireland’s (SFI) Discover Programme to 

support the delivery of workshops to Transition Year students around Ireland (1,000 students)  The 

initiative is a partnership of CONNECT with Dublin City Council via the Smart Docklands project. The 

workshops will introduce participants to sensors and the Internet of Things with a focus on how this 

can address city challenges. Visioneers is one of 49 public engagement and education initiatives, 

which will share a national investment of €5.2 million through the SFI Discover Programme, which 

aims to improve public understanding of science, technology, engineering, and maths (STEM) and 

engage a wide audience of people with STEM topics. If you know of a transition year programme 

that would like to participate, please get in touch! Website: https://nearfuture.ie/  

 

6. Dublin Cycle Buddy App:  
This was one of the winning ideas from the ‘Velo 

City’ international cycling conference, which was 

held in Dublin in 2019. Former Lord Mayor, Hazel 

Chu launched the app at the end of May to help 

make cycling around Dublin easier. See Link: 

https://smartdublin.ie/lord-mayor-officially-

launches-dublin-cycling-buddy-app/  

 

The Dublin Cycling Buddy helps cyclists find bike-friendly routes, cycle parking facilities and allow 

users to suggest improvements for Dublin’s roads and cycle lanes. Users can also find the best routes 

for trips, provide community feedback, participate in city challenges and competitions, win prizes, as 

well as access hints and tips for better cycling in Dublin. Dublin Cycle Buddy also includes real  time 

data on all of Dublin’s bike-sharing options and shows locations of cycle parking across the ci ty. The 

app is free to download from Apple’s App Store or Google Play. The app has been downloaded by 

over 2,000 users within the first week of the launch. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 146

https://scanner.topsec.com/?r=show&u=https%3A%2F%2Fnearfuture.ie%2F&d=1962&t=2178aa5f425706e14906fcc6928d6dc73a4c0673
https://scanner.topsec.com/?r=show&u=https%3A%2F%2Fsmartdocklands.ie%2F&d=1962&t=455bbc9b5cd31cdcc19dfe42dc8d105cadbdc0d2
https://scanner.topsec.com/?r=show&u=https%3A%2F%2Fsmartdocklands.ie%2F&d=1962&t=455bbc9b5cd31cdcc19dfe42dc8d105cadbdc0d2
https://scanner.topsec.com/?r=show&u=https%3A%2F%2Fconnectcentre.ie%2F&d=1962&t=47665804f721bc13875f97e8798f2e50fd482f82
https://nearfuture.ie/
https://smartdublin.ie/lord-mayor-officially-launches-dublin-cycling-buddy-app/
https://smartdublin.ie/lord-mayor-officially-launches-dublin-cycling-buddy-app/


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 31 
 

7. Ring Buoy Project  

The Ring Buoy project was initiated by DCC in 

collaboration with Water Safety Ireland to 

trial and test solutions that can help address 

vandalism and theft of ring buoys. 
The project uses an innovative procurement 

methodology, the first of its kind in Ireland 

that allows local authorities to pilot and buy 

the validated solutions  

 

https://smartdocklands.ie/project/ring-buoy-theft/ 

 

The process enables DCC to trial 4 innovative solutions over a 9-month period.  These solutions were 

demonstrated a part of a live demo in docklands in mid-June.   

Four companies are trialling 25 sensors each across the four Dublin local authority areas, each 

solution has unique attributes from the type of sensing, to type of connectivity and the use of  a udit 

trails for inspections. The 9-month trial period will end in September 2021, at which point the 

solutions will be evaluated. This collaboration with Water Safety Ireland has seen 23 local authorities 

sign up to the framework where the water safety development officers will be able to purchase the 

successful solutions.   

DCC supported Sligo County Council’s application for funding under the Department of Rural and 

Community Development Digital Innovation Programme (DIP) to scale up the ring buoy solutions 

with 10 local authorities at the end of phase 1. The consortium were awarded €120K between the 10 

participating local authorities under the scaling up stream. 

“This stream provided funds to scale-up an already proven technology or initiative. For example, a 

project that has only been trialled at a municipal level in Ireland could be scaled-up to county level,  

or county level to national level. Alternatively, a project that sought to benefit a particular cohort 

within society or address a specific challenge could be broadened to i nclude additional cohorts / 

challenges.” See: https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/05bba-projects-funded-under-the-

digital-innovation-programme-2021/#sligo  

 

8. Google Airview partnership:  
Google and Dublin City Council are working 

together on a flagship initiative to measure local 

street by street air quality across the city. The 

Air View Dublin partnership will see Google’s 

first ever EV Street View car deployed around 

the city to measure air quality for one year, 

starting from the 10th May. This also the first 

time a Google Street View car has been used in 

Ireland to capture air pollution, in addition to 
capturing imagery for the company’s maps app. 

 

Page 147

https://smartdocklands.ie/project/ring-buoy-theft/
https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/05bba-projects-funded-under-the-digital-innovation-programme-2021/#sligo
https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/05bba-projects-funded-under-the-digital-innovation-programme-2021/#sligo


Economic Development & Enterprise SPC Management Reports September 2021 32 
 

9. Accelerating the potential of drones:  

Minister McGrath announced 20 projects to 

be funded under Public Service Innovation 

Fund – ‘Accelerating the potential of drones’ 

was one of the funded projects which is led 

by Dublin City Council in collaboration with 

Irish Aviation Authority, Local Government 

Management Agency and Smart Dublin. The 

project aims to accelerate the potential of 

drones for local government. From 

discovering innovative new use-cases, to bolstering public trust and safety, this project wil l explore  

how Councils can use drone technology to deliver better, safer and more efficient services. The 

project will be delivered over the rest of 2021 with support from partners the Irish Aviation 

Authority, the Local Government Management Agency, Smart Dublin and U-Flyte.   The webinar 

launch is available here: https://smartdublin.ie/accelerating-the-potential-of-drones-for-local-
government-webinar/ 

 

10. WIFI4EU launches in partnership with Virgin Media 

Virgin Media Business has teamed up with 

the Smart City programme in Dublin City 

Council to roll out free WiFi hotspots in 

more than 30 locations, connecting 

communities, enabling them to develop 

and expand their current services or 

activities and aiming to reduce digital 

poverty in these areas. The initiative was officially launched around World WiFi Day (June 20 th) which 

promotes digital inclusion. A map of the Wifi4EU locations are available at the link: 

https://smartdublin.ie/wifi4eu/ 

A representative from Cabbage Garden and Bradóg Youth Services, two of the recipients of the free 

WIFI hotspots were featured on Ireland AM on Sunday 20th of June 2021, highlighting the benefits of  

WIFI to their service and the positive impacts they hope it will bring to their local communities. Over 

the coming months the Smart City team will give each of the WiFi locations the opportunity to 

feature their stories and showcase the services and activities provided by their organisation 

For any queries in relation to any of the above please contact: 

Jamie Cudden, Smart City Programme Manager Jamie.cudden@dublincity.ie  or; Nicola Graham, 
Smart City Operations Manager Nicola.graham@dublincity.ie  

 

Page 148

https://smartdublin.ie/accelerating-the-potential-of-drones-for-local-government-webinar/
https://smartdublin.ie/accelerating-the-potential-of-drones-for-local-government-webinar/
https://smartdublin.ie/wifi4eu/
mailto:Jamie.cudden@dublincity.ie
mailto:Nicola.graham@dublincity.ie

	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Meeting 20th April 2021
	3a Dublin City to host the Local Division of the Unified Patent Court in Dublin-Aidan Sweeney, EDE SPC Sectoral Member (Business Representative)
	Report in Support of Dublin and the Unified Patent Court Motion Aidan Sweeney 13.09.21

	3b Creation of a stakeholder forum to resolve the privatisation threat to the Local Employment Services & Job Clubs within our four Dublin Local Development Companies.Cllr Sophie Nicoullaud, Dublin City Council
	Report to support Motion Cllr Sophie Nicoullaud

	4 Presentation: Local Enterprise Development Plan 2021 - 2024,  Greg Swift, Head of Enterprise & Economic Development
	LEDP 21-july
	Bookmark 1
	FOREWORD
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	SECTION 1: CONTEXT
	Enterprise Landscape
	1.2 Review of 2017-2020
	Section 2 - Vision/Mission and Overarching Objectives
	Business Information & Advisory Services:
	Enterprise Support Services
	Entrepreneurship Support Services
	Local Economic Development Services
	Section 3 - Strategic Priorities
	3.1 Strategic Priorities for LEO Dublin City 2021-2-24
	Entrepreneurship
	Competitiveness and Digitalisation
	Green / Sustainability
	Innovation
	Exporting/Internationalisation
	Networks and Clustering
	3.2 Capacity and Capability Development
	REDF Projects
	Management Development Capability 
	3.3 National LEO Programmes
	Section 4: Associated Actions and activities
	4.1 Protocols
	Department of Social Protection
	Credit Review Office
	Fáilte Ireland
	Microfinance Ireland
	Skillnets
	Education and Training Boards (ETBs)
	Revenue
	National Association of Community Enterprise Centres (NACEC)
	4.2 Other Initiatives
	Section 5: risks and new initiatives
	Section 6: delivering the strategy
	Appendix 1: LEO Dublin city - performance metrics
	Appendix 2: kopper kreation; case study

	LEO Dublin City Impact Report 2014-2020

	5 Progress Report: European Programme Support Office, Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager, CRES
	Presentation EPSO Progress Report_EDE SPC 14Sept2021 F02

	6 Policy: Dublin City - Vision for Dublin, Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic Development
	7 Economic Development & Enterprise Management Reports

